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originally issued in Serbian language
(For management purposes only)

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE OWNER OF INTESA LEASING D.0.0. BEOGRAD
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Intesa Leasing d.0.0. Beograd (hereinafter: the
Company), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2022, and the income statement,
statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as
at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with the Accounting Law and reqgulations of the National bank of Serbia governing the financial
reporting of financial lessors in the Republic of Serbia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing applicable in the Republic of Serbia. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards)
(IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the Republic of Serbia, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Other information included in the Company's Annual Business Report

Other information consists of the information included in the Annual business report other than the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Management is responsible for the preparation of
other information in accordance with the legal requirements of the Republic of Serbia.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other information. In connection with our audit
of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. In addition, we assessed whether
the other information has been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with Law on Accounting
of Republic of Serbia, in particular, whether the other information complies with the Law on Accounting of
Republic of Serbia in terms of formal requirements and procedure for preparing the other information in
the context of materiality, i.e. whether any non-compliance with these requirements could influence
judgments made on the basis of the other information.
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Other information included in the Company's Annual Business Report (continued)
Based on the procedures undertaken, to the extent we are able to assess it, we report that:

1. the other information describing the facts that are also presented in the financial statements is, in
all material respects, consistent with the financial statements; and

2. the other information is prepared in accordance with requirements of the Law on Accounting of
Republic of Serbia.

In addition, our responsibility is to report, based on the knowledge and understanding of the Company
obtained in the audit, on whether the other information contains any material misstatement. Based on the
procedures we have performed on the other information obtained, we have not identified any material
misstatement.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the Accounting Law and regulations of the National bank of Serbia governing the financial
reporting of financial lessors in the Republic of Serbia, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing applicable in the Republic of Serbia will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing applicable in the Republic of Serbia, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

o Obtain anunderstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
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Auditors' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Belgrade, 24 February 2023

Nikola Ribar N 2E0SH
Authorized Auditor
Ernst & Young d.o.o. Beograd



Annex 1

ID number: 17492713

To be filled In by the financial leasing provider

Activity Code: 6451

TAX ID: 103023875

Name: Intesa Leasing doo Belgrade

Headquarters: Belgrade, Milentija Popoviéa 7b

BALANCE SHEET
as of 31.12.2022,

(in thousands of dinars)

Account group,
account

Position

AOP
code

Note
numbe

Amount of
the current
year

Amount of previous
year

The final | Initial state
state e

1

2

5

6 7

Assets

24

Cash and cash equivalents

15

247,050

171,874

23 (except 237, as
well as part of
account 239), as
well as part 289 and
pan of account 492
as a deductible

Short-term financial assets

N

16

4,922,012

2,157,445

10

Inventory

o|Oo
o|O

20 and 21, as well
as parts of
accounts 280 and
281 and part of
account 492 as a
deductible item

Short - term receivables from financial leasing

18

8,309,295

7,012,887

29 and part of the
account 284

Operating lease receivables

[¢4]

01

Intangible assets

19

25,387

23,268

02 (except 024
ang parts 027,
028 and 029), part
11, part 12 and
part 13

Property, plant and equipment

20

74,803

18,184

05

Funds given in the law

06

Funds given in operating leases

04, as well as
parts of accounts
280 and 281 and

pact of account

482 as a
deductible item

Long-term receivables from financial leasing

0

18

15,724,059

12,710,805

03 (except 030,
031 and part of
account 039), as
well as part 289
and part of
account 492 as a
deductible item

Long-term financial assets

031 and part of
account 039

Investments in associates and joint ventures

0]

030 and part of
account 039

Investments in subsidiaries




A o AP Note | Amount of Amount c;fa;r)rewous
ccount group, Position numbe [the current = —
account code The final |Initial state
r year
state e
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
024 and parts of i
accounts 027, 028
and 029 and parts |Investment property 0(0(11]4
of accounts 11, 12
and 13
223 Current tax assets 0|0(1]5
288 Deferred tax assets 0{0ot1(6 1,452 3,030
Fixed assets held for sale and assets of
14 R . . 010(1
discontinued operations
15, 16, 22 (except
223), 25, 26, 27,
283, 285, 287 and Other assets o|of1(8
part 289 22 128,060 | 109,480
TOTAL ASSETS (from 0001 to 0018) 0[0|1]9 29,432,118 22,206,973
|
Liabilities !
CAPITAL olalol4 [
30 and 00 Equity and shares 26 960,374 960,374
237 Own shares and shares 0f40]|2 '
34 Gain 0t410|3| 28 241,733 163,010
35 Loss 0l4|0|4 |
32 and 33 -
demand balance | XESErVes 0[4[0|5| 27 | 568348 412,!538
32 and 33 — Debt .
Balance Unrealized losses 0(4|0|6
41 (except 419),
part 44, part 490 |OBLIGATIONS olalol7
and part 282 as  [Long-term financial liabilities |
deductible 23 120,480,327 16,518,008
Section 44, Part 490
and Part 282 as  |Short-term financial liabitittes 0(4(0]|8 ,
deductible 23 6,922,977 | 3,953,038
40 Reservations 0[(4|0|9]| 24 7,599 8,480
Liabilities based on assets held for sale and |
467 assets suspended for sale 0}4|110
481 Current tax liabilities ol4[1]4 22517 22,599
. 498 Deferred tax liabilities 0l|4(1t2
419, 43, 45, 46
(except 467), 47, 48 L
(except 481) u 491, Other liabilities 0l4(1]3
493. 494, 497 u 499 25 228,243 1681926
TOTAL LIABILITIES (from 0407 to 0413) 0(4(1]4 27.661.663 |20.671,051
Participation without the right of control 0[4]1(5 I
TOTAL CAPITAL
(0401 - 0402 + 0403 - 0404 + 0405 - 0406 + [0|4(1]|6
0415)2 0 1,770,455 | 1,535,822
TOTAL LACK OF CAPITAL '
(0401 - 0402 + 0403 - 0404 + 0405 - 0406 + |0|4|1|7
0415)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (0414 + 0416 - 0417) 0(4(1]8 29,432,118 22‘20!6‘973
In Belgrade, Legal rgpl}zz b [fdtehre financial
on February 24, 2023 \ N\!u ‘m\\\“
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Anex 2

10 number: 17492713

To be filled in by the financial leasing provider

TAX 1D: 103023875

Aclvity code: 6491

Name: Intesa Leasing doo Belgrade

Headquarters: Belgrade, Milentija Popoviéa 7b

INCOME STATEMENT

in the period from 01.01.2021. to 31.12.2022.

(in thousands of dinars)

Account .
o Note Current | Previous
group, Position AOP code number year year
account
1 2 3 4 5 6
600, 850, 653 .
and 656 Interest income 17]0)10]1 5 760,883 | 532,579
22209338 jnterest expenses 11002 5 233702 | 167,385
Net interest income (1001 - 1002) 110|033 527,181 365,194
Net interest expenses (1002 - 1001) 100 4
61+ 62 Revenues from operating leases and rent 110[0]5
Part of 514 Operating lease and rental expenses 1]10[0]6
60. except 600 [Other income from financial leasing 1 ({007 B 155,848 129,043
513, part of 514 |Other expenses on the basis of financial leasing} 1 | 0 | O | 8 6 95,792 64,945
83 Profit from sale of leased assets and other 11ololo
assets
571 Losses from sale of leased assets and other 1 1lol1lo
assets
(65 - 650 - B53 -
856 - 659 + 66) - |Net income from exchange rate differences and 1lol1|1
(55 - 550 - 553 - |the effects of the contracted currency clause
556 - 559 + 56)
(55-550- 553 -
556 - 558 + 56) - [Net expense from exchange rate differences
(65- 650 - 653 - and the effects of the agreed currency clause tpot)2 7 2,818 3.361
B56 - B5S + 66)
(682 + 683 +
neo 688) - (582 [Net income from impairment of receivables 11043
+583 + except [from leasing and financial assets
588)
(582 + 583 +
part of 588) - Net expense from impairment of receivables on 08 4 620
(682 +683 + the basis of leasing and financial assets Tojr)4 8 66.8 34,
part of 688)
(684 + 686 + Net income from impairment of assets leased
687 + pan of out under operating leases and rent, leased
688) - (584 + assets and assets taken over in exchange forl 1 | 0 | 1 | 5
586 + 587 + part |uncollected receivables and receivables from
of 588) leases and sales
(558374:;;3[?0’; Net expense on impairment of assets leased
588) - (684 + and rent, leased assets and assets taken in| , | o | 4 | g 9 42,914 9,690
686 + 687 + parl exchange for uncollected receivables and
of 688) receivables on lease and sale
Net income from investments in subsidiaries,
?g; 677 - 872 associates, joint ventures, securites and| 1 [ O [ 1| 7 1,173
financial denvatives




Account

. Note Current | Previous
a%rcoouup‘;t Position AOP code number year year
1 2 4 5 6
Net loss on investments in subsidiaries,
f’g; S77-872 lassociates, joint ventures, securities and 0|18
financial derivatives
64 (except 642)
+ 67 (except Other operating income 0119 10 80,264 €3.177
872,674 1 677)
540 + 541 Depreciation of21|o0 11 16,161 14,622
TOTAL NET OPERATING INCOME
{1003 - 1004 + 1005 - 1006 + 1007 - 1008 + 0|21 539,972 | 410,176
1009 - 1010 + 1011 - 1012 + 1013 - 1014 +
1015- 1016 + 1017 - 1018 + 1018 - 1020) 20
TOTAL NET OPERATING EXPENSES
(1003 - 1004 + 1005 - 1006 + 1007 - 1008 + 0122
1009 - 1010 + 1011 - 1012 + 1013 - 1014 +
1015 - 1016 + 1017 - 1018 + 1019 - 1020)
57 Costs of salaries and other personal expences ol213 12 152,665 132,848
(gross)
642 + 659 + 674
+680+681+ |Other income 012 ] 4 13 6,517 3,115
685 + 689
51 (except 513w
514) + 53 + 54
(except 540 u
541) + 559 + 57 |Other expenses 01215 13 83,352 70,802
(except 572 n
577) + 580 +
581 + 585 + 589
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
2 4 1
(1021 - 1022 - 1023 + 1024 - 1025) 2 0 0 6 310472 | 20964
LOSS BEFORE TAX olal7
(1021 - 1022 - 1023 + 1024 - 1025) < 0
721 Income tax 02|38 14 67,161 45,876
722 Profit from deferred taxes 012(9
722 Deferred tax loss 0[3]0 1,578 755
PROFIT AFTER TAX
{1028 - 1027 - 1028 + 1029 - 1030) 2 0 013 |1 241,733 | 183,010
LOSS AFTER TAX ol3l2
(1026 - 1027 - 1028 + 1029 - 1030) < 0
69 - 59 Net operating profit of discontinued operations 0313
59 - 69 Net operating loss of discontinued operations 013 |4
RESULT OF THE PERIOD - PROFIT
(1031- 1032 + 1033 - 1034) 2 0 0133 241,733 | 163,010
RESULT OF THE PERIOD - LOSS olaie
(1031 - 1032 + 1033 -1034) <0
Profit belonging to the parent entity 0]|13]7
Profit belonging to owners without control fights 0|3 |8
Loss belonging to the parent entity 013 |9
Loss belonging to owners without the right of olalo
control




Account
group, Position AOP code mTrztbGer C;:;ernt Prs\eriaorus
account
1 2 3 4 5 6
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share (in dinars without 1 lolal
money)
Rgduced (diluted) earnings per share (in dinars 11lolal>
without money)
In Belgrade, Legal re\pgsehtah\{e of the financial

on February 24, 2023
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Anex 3

|0 number: 17492743

To be fllled in by the financial leasing provider

Actlvity code: §491

TAX ID: 103023875

Name: Intesa Leasing doo Belgrade

Headquarters: Belgrade, Milentija Popovi¢a 7b

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
in the period from 01.01. to 31.12.2022.

(in thousands of dinars)

Account

group, account

Position

AOP code

Note
number

Current
code

Previous
year

1

2

3

4

5

6

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

210|10(1

241,733

163,010

LOSS OF THE PERIOD

2101012

330

Other period result

Components of other result that cannot be
reclassified to profit or loss:

Increase in revaluation reserves based on intangible
assets and fixed assets

330

Reduction of revaluation reserves based on
intangible assets and fixed assets

333

Actuarial gains

333

Actuarial loss

332

Positive effects of changes in the value of equity
instruments that are measured at fair value through
other results

332

Negative effects of changes in the value of equity
instruments that are measured at fair value through
other results

7,200

11,621

338

Unrealized gains on instruments for hedging of
equity securities measured at fair value through
profit or loss

338

Unrealized gains on instruments for hedging of
equity securities measured at fair value through
profit or loss

338

Unrealized gains based on financial liabilities of
financial leasing providers valued at fair value
through income statement resulting from a change
in the credit wonthiness of a financial leasing
provider

338

Unrealized losses based on financial liabilities of
financial leasing providers valued at fair value
through the income statement resulting from a
change in the credit worthiness of the financial
leasing provider




Account
group, account

Position

Note
number

Current
cod

Previous
year

1

2

4

6

338

Positive effects of value changes based on other
components of other results that cannot be
reclassified in gain or loss

338

Negative effects of value changes based on other
components of other results that cannot be
reclassified in gain or loss

332

Components of other results that may be
reclassified in gain or loss:

Positive effects of changing the value of debt
instruments valued at fair value through other
results

332

Negative effects of changing the value of debt
instruments that are valued at fair value through
other results

337

Gains on cash flow hedging instruments

337

Losses from instruments intended to hedge against
cash flow risks

331

Unrealized gains on transactions and balances in
foreign currencies and translation of results and
financial positions of foreign operations

331

Unrealized losses due to the calculation of
transactions and balances in foreign currencies and
the transtation of results and financial positions of
foreign operations

336

Unrealized gains on instruments intended to hedge
against the risk of net investment in foreign
operations

336

Unrealized losses on instruments intended to hedge
against the risk of net investment in foreign
operations

339

Unrealized gains on other hedging instruments

339

Unrealized losses on other hedging instruments

339

Positive effects of changes in value based on other
components of other results that may be reclassified
to profit or loss

339

Negative effects of changes in value based on other
components of other results that may be reclassified
to profit or loss

33

Taxable profit relating to other results of the period

33

Tax loss relating to other results of the period

Total positive other result of the period (2003 - 2004
+ 2005 - 2006 + 2007 - 2008 + 2009 - 2010 + 2011 -
2012 + 2013 - 2014 + 2015 - 2016 + 2017 - 2018 +
2019 - 2020 + 2021 - 2022 + 2023 2024 + 2025 -
2026 + 2027 -2028) 2 0

Total negative other period result (2003 - 2004 +
2005 - 2008 + 2007 - 2008 + 2009 - 2010 + 2011 -
2012 + 2013 - 2014 + 2015 - 2016 + 2017 - 2018 +
2019 - 2020 + 2021 - 2022 + 2023 -2024 + 2025 -
2026 + 2027 - 2028) <0

7.2Q0

11,821




Account . Note Current | Previous
group, account Position AQP code number code year
1 2 3 4 5 6
TOTAL POSITIVE RESULT OF THE PERIOD
(2001 - 2002 + 2029 - 2030) 2 0 21031 234,533 | 151389
TOTAL NEGATIVE RESULT OF THE PERIOD slolz|2
(2001 - 2002 + 2029 - 2030) < 0
Total positive result of the period belonging to the
X 2|1013]|3

parent entity
Total positive result of the period belonging to 2lolzla
owners without the right of control
Total negative result of the period belonging to the 2lolzls
parent entity
Total negative result of the period belonging to 2lolale
owners without the right of control

In Belgrade,

on February 24, 2023

repee: ent*hfe of the financial
~leasia ﬁk:vider
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ID number: 17492713

Name of financial leasing provider: Intesa Leasing d.0.0. Belgrade

Activity code:

6491

TAX ID:
103023875

Headquarters of the financial \easing provider: Belgrade, Milentija Popoviéa 7b ;

REPORT ON CHANGES IN EQUITY
in the period from 01.01. to 31.12.2022.

Annex 5

(in thousands of dinars)

Ordinal
no.

DESCRIPTION

ADP

Equity
and
shares
{group
counts

excepl
302

AQP

Cremn
shares
{account
217

AQP

Emission

premium

{accounl
202)

AOP

Reserves
{account
group
32)

AOP

Ravaluation
resarves
{group
caleulates
33 demand
balances}

ADP

Revaluation
rosoves
{group
caleulates
Al dod
batances))

ADP

Profit
{account
group
34)

AOP

Loss
[accoum
group
35)

AQP

Participation
without the
right of
control

ADP

Total{g. 2-

3r+de+5

6-7+8.9+
10)2 ¢

ACP

Tolal
{n. 2-
3+d
+ 5+
6T +
g0+
10p <
9

i

[:)

7

0

31

12

Opening balance
on January 1 of
ihe previous yoar

4001

960,374

4033

298,047

4129

Effects of the first
appheation of new
IFRS - increase

4002

4034

4068

4130

15,433

4147

4148

4165

105,679

4201

4237

4281

1,384 533

4287

4166

4202

4238

Effocts of the first
apphcation of new
IFRS - reduchan

4035

4067

4090

4131

4149

4167

4203

4238

Changa n
accounung poiicies
ang comeption of
matenal emors in
the previous year -
NCrgase

4026

4088

4100

4132

4150

4168

4204

4240

Change in
accounting polices
ard comachon of
matgnat arors in
the previous year -
reduchion

4005

4089

410

4133

4151

4241

Adjusted starting
balance on
January 1 of the
previous year
{ordinal number 1
+2-3+ 4-5)

560,374

4038

4070

4102

280,047

4134

19,433

4152

4170

106,679

4206

4242

4282

1,384,533

4288

Cuarall posibve
other result of the
_penod

4135

4153

4243

Total negatve
other result of the
penca

4136

1621

4154

4244

Profit fer the
currenl year

x 4171

163,010

4245

Less for the
CUmEM paar

4207

4245

Transter from
rasanvas Lo fesults
dua lo carcellation
of reserves —
INEreassd

x 4172

4247

Transfer from
(ESeTVes Lo rasulls
due Lo cancellalion
of reserves -
reguction

4208

4245

Transactons 'with
owTIers resorded
directly in equity -
increase

4007

4071

4103

x 4173

4209

4249

Transacuons with
owners récorded

4040

4072

4104

3 4174

4210

4250




Ordinal
no.

ODESCRIPTION

AQP

Equity
and
shares
{group
counts
30,
axcaept
302)

AQP

Cram
shares
jaceouni
237)

AQP

Emission

premium

{account
302)

ACP

Reserves
(accounl
group
32)

ACP

Revaluation
FOSErYes
(group
caleul ates
33 demand
balances)

ACQP

Revaluation
resorves
[group
calgulates
33 debt
balancos))

AGP

Prafil
|acegunt
group
34}

AQP

Loss
jaccount
group
35)

AQP

Participalion
wilhout tha
right of
control

AQP

Tolal{qg. 2-

Jea+56+

6.7 + 59+
1020

AQP

Tolal
{q 2-
I+ 4
. 5
6.7 +
-9+
10} <

t

[

directly i equrty -
gecroasa

i2

Profit distribuben -
neieass

4009

4041

4073

4105

105,679

4175

4291

4251

Disinbutron of
profit, 1.e. loss
coverage -
decrease

4010

4042

4074

4106

4175

4212

4252

17

Daviderd payment

40

4043

4075

HO7

4477

4213

4253

Gther - ncresso

4076

4108

4178

4254

15

Other — decrease

4013

4045

4077

4109

||

4179

106,679

4215

4255

20

Total
transactions wilh
owners {ordinal
numbaer 313-14 +
151617 + 18-19)
20

4014

4046

4078

4110

106,679

4180

42186

21

Total
transactons wilh
OWNEEE

{ordinal number
13-14 + 151617
+ 1B-19}

4015

4111

4181

05678

417

4257

Balance as at M
Decembor of tho
provious yoar {for
columns
2,3.4,56,8 and 10
ordinal numbors
G+ 7-5+«910+
1142 + 20-21; for
column 7 ordinal
number & + 8-7,
for celumn 9
ordinal numbor &
+7-B+3e10+
11-42 + 20-29)

4016

960,374

4048

4080

4112

404,726

4137

7.812

4155

4182

163,00

4218

4258

4283

1,535,922

23

Opening balance
an January 1 of
the current year

4017

950,374

4049

4081

4113

404 726

4138

7812

4156

4183

183,010

4219

4259

4284

1,535,922

4290

24

Effecis of the first
apphcaton of new
IFRS — mcrease

4018
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Anex 4

ID number; 17492713

To be filled In by the financtal leasing provider

Activity code: 6491

TAX ID: 103023876

Name: Intesa Leasing doo Belgrade

Headquarters: Bolgrade, Mllentija Popovléa 7b

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the period from 01.01.2022. to 31.12.2022

(in thousands of dinars)

Amount
POSITION AOP code Current Previous
year year
1 2 3 4
A CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
| 15,372,606| 12,396,578
Cash inflows from operating activities (from 3002 to 3007) 3(0(0]1
1. | Inflows from placements in financial leasing 3|0[0[2| 10,695,632 8,489,248
2. | Infiows from placements in operational leasing 3/10]10}3
3 Inflo_ws from the sale of intangible property, real estate, plants and 3lolola
equipment leased and operational leasing
4. |Inflows from advances 3101015 3,923,509| 3,212,584
5. |Interest inflows 3(0]0]|6 678,629 487,323
6. |Inflows from other business activities 3|10{0(7 74,836 207,423
Il [ Cash outflows from operating activities (from 3009 to 3015) 3(0|0|8]| 18,791,593 14,329,423
7. |Leasing outflows 3]10]0(9 34,600 7,740
8 Outflows for the purchase of intangible assets, real estate, plant and 3lol1]o
" | equipment that are leased under operating leases
9. | Advance outflows 3|10|1|1| 18,537,285| 14,089,530
10. | Interest outflows 3(0f1]2
11. | Outflows from gross wages, salaries and other personal expenses 3(0[1]3 143,336 126,804
12. [ Outflows from taxes, contributions and other charges on expenses 3|0(1]4 65,295 99,081
13. | Outflows from other operating expenses 3|10]1]|5 11,077 6,268
14. |Decrease in financial resources and increase in financial liabilities 3|C[1]6
15. [Increasing financial resources and decrease financial liabilities 3(0)1]|7
m Net cash inflow from operating activities before income tax (3001 - 3008 + 3lolals
3016 - 3017)
Y, Net cash outflow from operating activities before income tax (3008 - 3001 3lol1]9 3.418987| 1,932,845
+ 3017 - 3016)
16. [ Income tax paid 310]2]0 67,243 24,026
V [Net cash inflow from operating activities (3018 - 3019 - 3020) 3(0]2]1
VI | Net cash outflow from operating activities (3019 - 3018 + 3020) 310|212 3,486,230 1,956,871
5 CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
| 310(2]3 1,661,441 27,602
Cash inflows from investing activities (from 3024 to 3029)
1. |Inflows from investing in investment securities 3j0|2(4 619,285 27,285
2 lnﬂo_w§ from th_e‘sale of investments in subsidiaries and associated 3lolz2]s 364,891
societies and joint ventures




Amount
POSITION AOP code Current Previous
year year
3 Inflows from the sale of intangible assets, real estate, plants, equipment alol2ls
and other assets
4. | Inflows from the sale of investment properties 31012]7
5. | Dividend inflows and profit earnings 3/10]2]|8
6. | Other inflows from investment activities 3({0]2]9 677,265 317
Il | Cash outflows from investment activities (from 3031 to 3035) 3(0]3]|0 4,818,548 385,371
7. |Outflows from investments in investment securities 3|10(3]1
Outflows for the purchase of investments in subsidiaries and associates
8. and joint ventureps 310132 150,000
a Out_ﬂows for the purchase of intangible assets, real estate, plant and 3lolsls 12.263 11.862
equipment
10. | Outflows from the acquisition of investment property 310134
11. | Other outflows from investment activities 310]13]5 4,806,285 223,509
[t | Net cash flow from investment activities (3023 — 3030) 3(0]13]|6
[V | Net cash outflow from investment activities (3030 — 3023) 3(0(13]7 3,157,107 357,768
B CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
| 310|3]|8| 11,683,734 13,579,065
Cash flows from financing activities (3038 to 3042)
1. | Inflows from capital increases 3/]0]3(9
2. |inflows from loans taken out 310|4|0| 11,683,734 13,579,065
3. | Inflows from the sale of their own shares and shares 3(0|4]1
4. | Other inflows from funding activities 3(0]4]2
Il | Cash outflows from financing activities (3044 to 3047) 3(0]4]3 4,935,377 13,597,677
5. | Outflows from the purchase of their own shares andg shares 3(0]|4]4
6. | Outflows based on loans taken out 3(0]4]5 4,927,278| 13,589,923
7. | Dividend outflows and profit eamnings 310|4|86
8. | Other outflows from funding activities 3(0]4]7 8,099 7,754
[Il |[Net cash flow from financing activities (3038-3043) 310]4{8 6,748,357
IV |Net cash outflow from financing activities (3043-3038) 3|10[4}9 18,612
I | CASH FLOWS (3001 + 3016 + 3036 + 3048) 3|10|5|0| 28,717,781 26,003,245
A | CASH OUTFLOWS (3008 + 3017 + 3020 + 3037 + 3049) 3(0[5]|1| 28612,761| 28,336,497
B | NET INCREASE OF CASH (3051 — 3050) 310|15]2 105,020
E | NET DECREASE OF CASH (3051 — 3050) 3]0|5]|3 2,333,252
X | CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THEYEAR | 3|0 5[4 171,874 2,508,871
3 | EXCHANGE RATE GAINS 3|0[5]|5 942 3,500
N | EXCHANGE RATE LOSSES 310[5]|6 3,786 7.245
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD (3052
3| e 3054 + 3085 - 3056, ( 3lols|7| 2740s0] 171874

In Belgrade,
on 24.03.2023.
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INTESA LEASING D.O.0O. BEOGRAD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2022

Amounts are expressed in RSD thousand, unless otherwise stated

1. BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON INTESA LEASING D.O.0. BEOGRAD

The financial leasing company “Intesa Leasing” d.o.o. Beograd (hereinafter: the “Company’) was
established pursuant to the Decision of the Commercial Court of September 3, 2003 (former name
“Delta Leasing”). The reregistration of the Company into the Register of Business Entities was carried
out with the Business Registers Agency on July 25, 2005 pursuant to the Decision No. 82785/2005.

The name of the Company was changed to Intesa Leasing d.o.o. Beograd on December 16, 2005
pursuant to the Decision of the Business Registers Agency no. 100536/2005.

On December 16, 2005, on the basis of the aforementioned decision of the Business Registers Agency,
the share capital was increased, so that the total amount of the share capital at that moment was
EUR 350,000.00.

By the Decision of the National Bank of Serbia of January 24, 2006, the Company was granted
permission to perform financial leasing activities, based on which lease activities were harmonized
with the Law on Financial Leasing (“Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia”, no. 55/2003, 61/2005,
31/2011 and 99/2011).

Pursuant to the Decision of the Business Registers Agency no. 112635/2006 of March 27, 2006, the
ownership shares of the founders were changed. The ownership share of the founder of Banca Intesa
a.d. Beograd amounted to 51% in total capital, while the ownership share of the foreign founder CIB
Leasing LTD, Budapest, Hungary amounted to 49% in total capital.

Pursuant to the Decision of the Business Registers Agency no. 254739/2006 of December 29, 2006, a
capital increase in the Company was carried out. The share capital was increased to the amount of
EUR 5,350,000.00, whereby the ratio of the founders’ ownership shares remained the same.

Pursuant to the Decision of the Business Registers Agency no. 29167/2009 of March 31, 2009, a new
capital increase in the Company was carried out. The share capital was increased to the amount of
EUR 10,152,452.62, whereby the ratio of the founders’ ownership shares was also changed so that the
share of the founder Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd was increased to 98.7% in total capital, while the
share of the foreign founder CIB Leasing LTD, Budapest, Hungary was reduced to 1.3% in total share
capital.

In 2011, Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd acquired the share of the minority founder CIB Leasing LTD,
Budapest. Pursuant to the Decision of the Business Registers Agency no. 155596/2011 of December
19, 2011, the founder was changed so that Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd (“Parent Bank™) became the
owner of 100% of ownership share in the Company.

The Company engages in financial leasing activities in accordance with the Law on Financial Leasing,
and thus the Company's activity code has been defined by the competent authority as 6491.

On May 6, 2016, the Company received the Decision of the National Bank of Serbia with approval for
insurance agency activities.

Pursuant to the Decision of the Business Registers Agency of February 11, 2016, the branch of the
Company was registered in Novi Sad.

The Company operates as a subsidiary of the owner Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd. The ultimate owner,
Intesa Sanpaolo S.P.A. regularly compiles and publishes consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards approved by the EU, and presents
them on the official website of Intesa Sanpaolo Group: www.group.intesasanpaolo.com.

In accordance with the criteria prescribed by the Law on Accounting (“Official Gazette of the Republic
of Serbia”, no. 73/2019) the Company was classified into large legal entities.The registered office of
the Company is in Belgrade, at 7b, Milentija Popovica Street.




INTESA LEASING D.O.0O. BEOGRAD
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2022

Amounts are expressed in RSD thousand, unless otherwise stated

1. BACKGROUND INFORMATION ON INTESA LEASING D.0O.0. BEOGRAD (Continued)

The Company's tax identification number is 103023875. The Company's registration number is
17492713.

As at December 31, 2022, the Company had 50 employees (December 31, 2021: 44 employees).

2. FRAMEWORK FOR THE PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1. Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

The Company keeps records and compiles regular financial statements in accordance with the
applicable Law on Accounting (“Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia”, no. 73/2019), the Law on
Financial Leasing (“Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia”, no. 55/2003, 61/2005, 31/2011 and
99/2011) and other applicable legislation and by-laws in the Republic of Serbia.

For recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of positions in financial statements the
Company has, as a large size legal entity, an obligation to apply International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) which in the sense of the Law on Accounting includes the following: Framework for
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, International Accounting Standards (IAS),
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and related interpretations issued by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), subsequent changes of those
standards and interpretations related to them, approved by the International Accounting Standards
Board, which were translated and published by the ministry in charge of these affairs.

The translation of IFRS approved and published by the Ministry consists of basic IAS and IFRS texts
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, of interpretations issued by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee in the form in which they are issued and it does not
include bases for making conclusions, illustrative examples, directives, comments, adverse opinions,
elaborated examples and other additional explanatory materials that can be adopted related to
standards, i.e. interpretation, except if it is explicitly cited that it is a constituent part of a standard,
i.e. interpretation.

The Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Serbia decision number 401-00-4980/2019-16 dated
November 21, 2019, establishes the translation of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
which comprise the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (“Framework’), basic texts of the
International Accounting Standards (IAS), basic IFRS texts as published by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), including interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee in the form in which they are published and adopted, and which do not
include basis for conclusions, illustrative examples, guidelines, comments, opposing opinions,
developed examples and other additional explanatory materials which can be adopted in respect of
the standards or interpretations, unless it is explicitly stated that they are integral to the standard
or interpretation. The translated IFRS as established by decision number 401-00-4980/2019-16, were
applied in the financial statements prepared on December 31, 2021.

The Company has applied IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers as of January 1, 2018 and IFRS 16 Leases as of January 1, 2019, in accordance with the
Opinion of the Ministry of Finance, no. 011-00-1051/2016-16 of November 23, 2016. Namely, the
Company has chosen to apply these standards voluntarily from the date on which they come into
force, on January 1, 2018, and January 1, 2019 respectively, although it has not been translated into
Serbian or published in the Republic of Serbia. Consequently, publication of translations of IFRS 9,
IFRS 15 and IFRS 16 did not have any effect on the Company's accounting policies in 2022 compared
to 2021.

These financial statements represent the individual financial statements of the Company. The
Company has no investments in subsidiaries and related parties.
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2. FRAMEWORK FOR THE PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

2.1. Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (Continued)

The attached financial statements are prepared in the format prescribed by the Decision on the
Content and Format of the Financial Statement Forms for Financial Leasing Providers (“Official
Gazette of the Republic of Serbia”, no. 119/2021).

Given the above, as well as that certain laws and by-laws prescribe accounting procedures that in
certain cases deviate from the requirements of IFRS, the accounting regulations of the Republic of
Serbia may deviate from the requirements of IFRS, which may have an impact on the attached
financial statements. Accordingly, the attached financial statements cannot be considered as
financial statements drawn up in full compliance with IFRS in the manner defined in the provisions of
IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”.

In preparing the attached financial statements, the Company has implemented the accounting policies
disclosed in Note 3, which are based on the applicable accounting and tax regulations of the Republic
of Serbia.

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except
where the fair value basis has been specifically indicated, as specified in the accounting policies.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern principle, which
implies that the Company will continue to perform activities in the foreseeable future.

The amounts in the attached financial statements of the Company are expressed in thousands of
Serbian dinars (RSD), unless otherwise stated. The Serbian dinar (RSD) is the functional and reporting
currency of the Company. All transactions in currencies other than functional currency are treated as
transactions in foreign currencies.

The attached financial statements of the Company for 2022 were approved for issuance by the
President of the Executive Board on February 21, 2023.

2.2. Comparable Data

The comparative data consists of the annual financial statements of the Company for 2021, prepared
in accordance with the accounting regulations in force in the Republic of Serbia and explained in Note
2.1, which were the subject of the audit.

The accounting policies and estimates concerning the recognition and measurement of assets and
liabilities used in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with the accounting
policies and estimates applied in the preparation of the Company's annual financial statements for
2021.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
3.1. Recognition of Income and Expenses
(a) Interest Income and Expenses

Interest income and expenses include contracted and default interest and are calculated on the
accrual basis and in accordance with contractual terms defined by contracts between clients and the
Company, or between the Company and the banks.

Interest income and expenses are recognized in the income statement using the effective interest
rate method (which in the case of interest income does not include fees for the approval of
placements based on financial leasing). The effective interest rate method is a method that calculates
the depreciated value of a financial asset or financial liability and allocates the corresponding interest
income/expense to the appropriate reporting period. The effective interest rate is the rate used to
discount future cash flows over the repayment period of a financial instrument to its carrying amount

Default interest is not accrued on accounts receivable subject to collection proceedings by the courts.
(b) Fee Income

Fee income includes income from fees for the approval of financial leasing placements charged to the
lessee, re-invoiced costs to the lessee based on the registration of the contract in the register of
financial leasing, insurance, registration and other costs, income from intercalary interest, income
from the collection of costs for issuing warnings and other costs in case of non-settlement of the
lessee’s obligations.

Income from the financial leasing contract approval fees is calculated and charged in advance, and
then accrued during the term of the financial leasing contract.

(c) Fee Expenses

Fee expenses consist of fees to banks for payment transactions and other banking services, as well as
costs that are invoiced to the lessee for registration of the contract in the register of financial leasing,
and costs of insurance, registration and other costs that are re-invoiced to the lessee. These costs
shall be accrued and posted under expenses in the periods to which they relate.

(d) Other Expenses

Costs of materials, maintenance, repairs and replacement services are recorded in the income
statement at the time they are incurred.

(e) Other Income

Other income mostly refers to income from agent's commission in insurance business and recognized
in the income statement when occurred.

3.2.  Foreign Currency Translation

The items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (functional currency). As stated
in Note 2.1, the financial statements are presented in thousands of dinars (RSD), which is the
functional and reporting currency of the Company.

Transactions reported in foreign currency are initially recorded in functional currency using the valid
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2.  Foreign Currency Translation (Continued)

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are converted into functional currency
using the valid exchange rate at the balance sheet date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the translation of balance sheet positions expressed in
foreign currency and from business transactions in foreign currency are reported in the Company’s
Income Statement as foreign exchange gains and losses and gains and losses arising from FX clause
(Note 7).

Non-monetary items that are measured on a historical cost basis and are denominated in a foreign
currency are translated using the historical exchange rate ruling on initial transaction date Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the day of the assessment.

For the translation of monetary assets and liabilities, the Company used the official middle exchange
rates of the National Bank of Serbia (“NBS”) prevailing at the balance sheet date:

December December
in RSD 31, 2022 31, 2021
Currency
- CHF 119.2543 113.6388
- EUR 117.3224 117.5821

Placements and liabilities related to basic contracts which are tied to a foreign currency (foreign
currency clause) or another variable, are valued in accordance with contractual clauses. Valuation
effects are recorded as foreign exchange gains/losses and gains/losses from currency clause.

During 2022, the Company translated receivables from financial leasing using the contracted exchange
rates, recognizing the gains and losses in the Income Statement under the foreign exchange gains and
losses and gains/losses from contracted currency clause.

3.3. Cash

Cash is presented in the Balance Sheet and includes cash balances in RSD accounts with banks. Cash
is measured at depreciated value in the Balance Sheet.

A financial asset is measured at depreciated value if it is not indicated as measured at fair value
through the Income Statement and meets the following criteria:

o the objective of the business model of the asset is to hold the asset in order to collect the
contracted cash flows and

e contractual terms of the financial asset lead to cash flows that represent only payments of
principal and interest on the balance of the principal on certain dates.

The Company performs RSD payment transactions through the current account with Banca Intesa a.d.
Beograd.

The accounting policy for the calculation of impairment is explained in Note 3.7.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.4.  Financial placements with banks

Financial placements of the Company held with banks include:

o foreign currency accounts and
e term deposits with banks.

Term deposits are initially measured at fair value. After initial recognition, they are measured at
depreciated value.

A financial asset is measured at depreciated value if it is not indicated as measured at fair value
through the Income Statement and meets the following criteria:

e the objective of the business model of the asset is to hold the asset in order to collect the
contracted cash flows and

e contractual terms of the financial asset lead to cash flows that represent only payments of
principal and interest on the balance of the principal on certain dates.

When the Company concludes short-term deposit agreements with a currency clause or foreign
currency deposits, after the initial posting, gains/losses from the currency clause are calculated, as
well as foreign exchange gains/losses that are recorded in the Income Statement under the income
or expenses from exchange differences and gains/losses from the contracted currency clause.

The accounting policy for the calculation of impairment is explained in Note 3.7.
3.5.  Other financial placements and derivatives

Other financial placements are placements in securities that are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income and investments in investment funds that are measured at fair value through
Income Statement.

A debt instrument is measured at fair value within other comprehensive income only if it meets both
of the following criteria:

o the objective of the business model of the asset is to hold the asset in order to collect the
contracted cash flows and for sales, and

e contractual terms of the financial asset lead to cash flows that represent only payments of
principal and interest on the balance of the principal on certain dates.

Initially, they are measured at fair value, increased by costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset.

After initial recognition, financial assets are stated at fair value. The Company measures the fair
value of securities and records the difference between fair value and carrying value as unrealized
gains or losses from securities within the position Reserves, Revaluation Reserves and Unrealized
Gains/Losses (Note 27).

Subsequent valuation of investments in investment funds is recognized in the income statement within
the position Net Profit / (Loss) from other financial instruments at fair value through the Income
Statement.

As at December 31, 2021, the Company has no financial derivatives.

The accounting policy for the calculation of impairment is explained in Note 3.7.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.6. Receivables from financial leasing

Financial leasing is a lease that substantially transfers all the risks and benefits arising from the
ownership over the subject of the lease. At the end of the leasing period, the right of ownership may
or may not be transferred.

Upon initial recognition, the Company as a lessor recognizes the assets held under finance lease in
the Balance Sheet as financial placements equal to net investment in financial leasing.

The gross investment in the lease is the total amount of the minimum leasing installments and any
unguaranteed residual value accruing to the benefit of lessor. Net investments in lease represent
gross investments in lease discounted at the interest rate defined in the leasing agreement. Unearned
financial income is the difference between gross and net investment in lease.

The interest rate which is contained in the lease is the discount rate which at the beginning of the
lease term causes the total sum of the present value of the minimum lease installments and
unguaranteed residual value to be equal to the sum of the fair value of the asset that is the subject
of the lease and all the initial expenses of financial leasing.

Investments in leasing stated in the balance sheet as receivables from financial leasing are
subsequently measured at depreciated value less the estimated value adjustment of receivables from
financial leasing.

Financial income, i.e. interest income from financial leasing activities, is recognized in a manner that
reflects a constant periodic yield on the residual amount of net receivables from financial leasing
activities.

Other receivables from financial leasing are recorded and measured at invoice value less value
adjustment of receivables.

Other receivables from financial leasing include:

o fees;

e Interest rates;

e costs transferred to lessees; and
e warnings.

The Company calculates indirect value adjustment of receivables from financial leasing in accordance
with Receivables Classification Policy and records as income or expense of the period under the item
Net income / (expenses) from impairment of receivables from financial leasing and financial assets.

Receivables from financial leasing agreements that include a contracted currency clause are initially
stated at the counter value of foreign currency, applying the contracted exchange rate at the day of
transaction. Effects of foreign currency clauses are determined, and recognized as income or expense
for the period within the position Net income / (expenses) from exchange rate differences and
currency clause effects, based on the effect of exchange rates changes from the date of transaction
to the date of payment, as well as at each balance sheet date.

3.7. Impairment of Financial Assets

In accordance with the internal policy, on each reporting date, the Company calculates and recognizes
a value adjustment equal to the expected credit losses over the lifetime for financial assets measured
at depreciated value (which include lease receivables) and for debt financial assets recorded at fair
value through other comprehensive income, except for those financial assets for which no significant
increase in credit risk was recorded from the moment of initial recognition.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.7. Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of financial instruments measured at depreciated value is reduced by the amount
of the value adjustment for expected credit losses.

Value adjustments for expected credit losses on debt financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognized through other comprehensive income and Income
Statement, and the carrying amount in the Balance Sheet is not reduced.

The methodology for calculating value adjustments or impairment of financial assets is defined by
the “Asset Classification Policy™.

Impairment is calculated on one of the following grounds:

e 12-month expected credit losses — these are the expected credit losses that occur if default
status occurs within 12 months after the reporting date; and

o lifetime expected losses — the stated credit losses are the result of possible events of default
during the entire expected life of the financial instrument.

The lifetime expected losses are calculated if the credit risk of the financial asset at the reporting
date is significantly increased compared to the initial date of recognition of that asset, while
otherwise 12-month credit losses are calculated.

The Company classifies its risky assets according to the Harmonized International Subsidiary Banks
Division (ISBD) methodology for asset classification. The risky assets that are classified relate to the
credit exposure from the Balance Sheet.

The criteria for the classification of receivables are:

a) An objective criterion for the classification of debtors is the delay in the settlement of
obligations.
The decision of the Management Board of the Company of February 27, 2020 defines a new
delay calculation method. Calculation of days of delay is performed on a daily basis,
whereby the balance on the last day of the month is taken into account for the purposes of
classification and calculation of provisions.
The delay is considered material if the amount of overdue receivables is more than 1% of
balance receivables from the debtors, and more than RSD 10,000 for the debtor who is a
legal entity or RSD 1,000 for the debtor who is a individual, entrepreneur or farmer. The
number of days of delay at the client level is determined as a continuous number of days in
delay beyond the materiality threshold. Subjective classification criteria include all other
information that may indicate that the client is unlikely to fully perform its contractual
obligations.

b) Economic group.

c) Contamination rule.

The classification of assets is based on the objective and subjective criteria specified in the Asset
Classification Policy. The collateral or guarantee established as security instrument cannot affect the
class of the client but only the level of accrued value adjustments.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.7. Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

Receivables are classified into one of the following classes:

a) Non-performing receivables

Doubtful

The classification is based on the criteria for assessment of lessees that are aligned with the definition
of lessees as truly insolvent. A “state of insolvency” means the structural and permanent inability to
regularly fulfill obligations from regular sources, due to lack of liquidity and/or inability to access
external financial resources (e.g. capital market) necessary to maintain / ensure the going concern
status.

Unlikely to pay

Classification in the category of Unlikely to pay is the result of the assessment that the lessee is
unlikely to fully fulfill its obligations (in terms of repayment of principal and/or interest) without
resorting to activities such as the collection from security instruments/collaterals. Such an assessment
shall be made regardless of the amount and number of days of delay. The Unlikely to pay class includes
clients whose credit quality indicators are significantly deteriorated and where future cash flows are
not expected to fully service their financial liabilities.

Past due

Clients who have temporary problems which can be overcome and conditions for the classification of
debtors as Unlikely to pay or Doubtful are not met. The total exposure to the debtor will be classified
under the category Past due if the delay is longer than 90 days in a material amount (the amount of
matured debt exceeds 1% of the total debt more than 90 days in continuity, and amounts to more
than RSD 10,000 for debtor that is a legal entity or RSD 1,000 for debtor who is an individual,
entrepreneur or a farmer)

b) Performing receivables

This class includes all clients who are not classified in one of the non-performing classes and settle
their liabilities towards the Company on a regular basis or with a delay of up to 90 days. Performing
clients are clients who are not classified in one of the Non-performing classes and who regularly settle
their obligations toward the Company.

Exposures with PM status - Watchlist

Exposures with PM (Proactive Management) status indicate exposures with increased credit risk and
do not represent a special class within the Performing category.

Exposures with PM status are exposures to clients who, due to their characteristics or for external
reasons, face different degrees of (financial and/or business) difficulties with subsequent possible
deterioration of their creditworthiness. Placements with PM status include exposures that are still
considered as Performing, but which are not at a direct, but possible risk (of default) if certain
measures are not taken in a timely manner. In other words, PM exposures include those that show the
first signals of potential risk. In addition, all exposures where restructuring plans are in the
negotiation process fall under this category.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.7. Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)
Forborne Exposure

Forborne exposure is “such exposure the initial contractual terms of which have been altered and/or
the placement of which has been partially or fully refinanced due to financial difficulties that prevent
the client from fulfilling its original contractual obligations.

Forbearance measures are concessions to a debtor who is facing or will face difficulties in fulfilling
its financial obligations.

The term concession implies the following:

e amendments to previous contractual conditions that the debtor is not considered to be able
to meet due to financial difficulties, in order to enable debtor’s sufficient ability to repay the
debt, which would not have been approved if the debtor was not in financial difficulties;

o total or partial refinancing of the non-performing debt agreement that would not have been
approved if the debtor was not in financial difficulties;

e contractual amendments that the debtor may request within the contract that has already
been signed and approved by the Company, knowing that the debtor is in financial difficulties
(the so-called “Embedded Forbearance Clauses™).

Minimum criteria for re-classification (return) to Performing

From the moment when the criteria that led the client to NPL are no longer active, a Probation Period
of at least 90 days is initiated, during which the client remains in NPL status. If during the Probation
Period the client is more than 5 days late with payment of a material amount, the counting of days
in the Probation Period starts from the beginning. The Probation Period applies to all NPL clients,
except for clients in Forborne status where the monitoring period lasts at least 12 months.

After the end of the Probation Period, the following should be considered for re-classification (return)
of clients who were NPL to Performing clients:

a) regularity of settlement of obligations during the Probation Period;

b) financial situation of the debtor during the Probation Period;

c) if, after the Probation Period, it is determined that the debtor is likely to still be unable to
pay its obligations in full, without resorting to the realization of collateral, the exposures
should also be classified as NPLs until the Company assesses that the improvement of the
quality of the placement is permanent.

The Probation Period of default status lasts 90 days starting from the point where the default status
triggers are no longer active for the client.

The trial period shall be reset in case of occurrence of at least one of the following conditions:

e Both thresholds of materiality of the delay were exceeded for more than 5 days or
o Anew subjective criterion has been identified.

Probation Period for Past Due Exposures
For clients who are in the Past due status, if there is no overdue exceedance beyond the materiality

threshold (absolute or relative) for the duration of the Probation Period of 90 days, the client
automatically returns from the status of Past due to Performing.

10
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.7. Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)
Manual Return from Probation Period

If the client does not have a delayed exposure, the return to Performing from Unlikely to pay and
Doubtful categories is based on a subjective assessment (taking into account all subjective
classification criteria). A client is considered eligible for return to Performing after 90 days only if it
has paid all due obligations. A client with no material delay in the past 90 days, but still is overdue
in certain amount can not be transferred from the Unlikely to pay status until it pays the due
liabilities.

For Non-Performing Forborne exposures, the application of a 12-month recovery period takes
precedence over the Probation Period.

Calculation of Impairment

In addition to the classification of receivables to Performing, Past due, Unlikely to pay and Doubtful,
the Company classifies receivables into the following impairment levels:

e Stage 1;
e Stage 2; and
e Stage 3.

Impairment levels determine the method of calculating expected credit losses. 12-month expected
credit losses are calculated for receivables from Stage 1, while expected losses until the end of the
lifetime of the financial instrument (Lifetime Expected Loss) are calculated for receivables from Stage
2 and Stage 3.

Stage 3 includes all Non-performing receivables, while Stage 1 and Stage 2 are ““subclasses” within
the Performing receivables. Stage 2 comprises Performing receivables in which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk compared to the moment of initial recognition.

The Company uses the following criteria for the detection of receivables in which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (and consequently classifies them in Stage 2):

1. More than 30 days in delay — Receivables from clients who are overdue more than 30 days
with a material amount.

2. PM (Proactive Management) status / EW (Early Warning) signals — clients assigned with
orange, red or light blue color.

3. Forborne status.

4. Significant increase in the probability of going into default status (PD) from the moment of
initial recognition — Relative change of PD (Lifetime PD) in relation to the moment of initial
recognition, which is above the defined materiality threshold, leads to the classification of
receivables into Stage 2. Thresholds for significant increase of PD for Corporate, SME Retail,
Specialized lending and for individuals segments are defined internally by the Bank, while for
other segments of the portfolio the thresholds are defined by the Parent Company.

11
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INTESA LEASING D.0O.0. BEOGRAD

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.7. Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

The criteria for classifying financial instruments into impairment levels are summarized in the table

below:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
. Performing exposures . Performing exposures . Exposures with more
up to 30 days in delay with more than 30 days of delay than 90 days of delay and
. Performing exposures and beyond materiality beyond materiality threshold
with more than 30 days delay threshold . Unlikely to Pay
but below materiality threshold . Forborne Performing . Doubtful
. Performing exposures Exposures . NPL exposures in the
in which there has been no . Performing exposures Probation Period
significant increase in PD since with a significant increase in PD . Forborne NPL
the moment of initial from the moment of initial Exposures
recognition recognition
. Performing exposures

that are not in Forborne status

In addition to the criteria defined above, in conditions of temporary crisis such as that caused by the
COVID 19 pandemic, the Company may reclassify, for the purposes of classification and calculation of
provisions for credit losses, those clients / exposures whose increased credit risk has been identified,
to one rating class worse, or to Impairment Stage 2. The increase in credit risk can be determined on
the basis of, for example: the client's affiliation with an industry that has been determined to be
particularly negatively affected by the crisis, and / or based on the client's level of indebtedness,
potential vulnerability to the negative effects of the crisis, etc.

Impairment based on credit losses is calculated on the basis of parameters obtained from internal
models or by individual assessment (except for receivables from countries, local governments and
banks where the parameters from the ISP model are used), and the expenses of value adjustments
are recorded at the expense of the Income Statement.

Impairment based on credit losses (expected credit losses) is estimated on the basis of:

a) Collective assessments for all Performing Exposures, as well as Non-performing Exposures with a
total exposure of less than EUR 150,000; and

b) Individual estimates for Non-performing Exposures with a total exposure of more than EUR
150,000.

Expected credit losses for clients who are not subject to individual assessment, are calculated
depending on the Stage of impairment the receivable is classified into (Stage 1, 2 or 3) based on the
criteria for determining the level of credit risk.

For all exposures belonging to Stage 1, provisions for credit losses (expected credit losses) are
calculated for a period of 12 months.

For all exposures belonging to Stage 2, provisions for credit losses (expected credit losses) are
calculated for the period until the maturity of the financial instrument (Lifetime EL).

For exposures belonging to Stage 3 (non-performing exposures), the Company introduces “Add-on”
into the calculation, as an adjustment of the level of provisions. “Add-on” is a measure of the future
(expected) macroeconomic impact on the level of the LGD rate in the coming period.

12
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.7. Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

The impairment of assets, for clients who are not subject to individual assessment, is calculated
depending on the level of impairment to which the receivable is classified (Stage 1, 2 or 3) based on
the defined criteria.

The collective assessment is based on the expected Probability of Default (PD) and Loss Given Default
(LGD) parameters.

The discount rate used in the calculation is the effective interest rate of an individual contract. In
the context of the calculation of lifetime expected credit losses, a methodology for determining the
EAD (Exposure at Default) has been developed for all periods until the final maturity of the financial
instrument. For receivables from financial leasing that are depreciated and for which repayment plans
are available, the future EAD is determined on the basis of repayment plans.

The probability of default (PD) is a probability that the performing receivable/debtor will go into
default status.

e For clients in non-performing Stage 3 classes, the PD is 100%.

e Forexposures belonging to Stage 1 and Stage 2 and relating to clients with an accrued internal
rating, the appropriate value of the PD parameter is assumed depending on the rating and
segment.

e For exposures of clients that do not have a rating on the reporting date and belong to the
segments covered by the PD model, the default rate on the portfolio of unrated clients is
determined, and then the first more conservative rating closest to the value obtained is
assigned to the clients. After that, in accordance with the obtained rating, the exposures are
assigned the appropriate PD parameter (Lifetime PD or 12-month PD) depending on the Stage
to which the exposures belong (Stage 1 or Stage 2).

o For client exposures belonging to segments not covered by the PD model, PD is determined
on the basis of historical default rates of a particular segment, which are further adjusted for
macroeconomic impact projection using appropriate macroeconomic coefficients for different
scenarios, in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9.

o Forexposures related to Intesa Sanpaolo Group members, the PD defined in the Banca Intesa’s
Manual for Calculation of IFRS 9 Lifetime PDs shall apply.

e For exposures belonging to the Bank, State, Central Bank and Local Self-Government
segments, the PD values defined in the Banca Intesa’s Manual for Calculation of IFRS 9 Lifetime
PDs shall apply.

Internal ratings and corresponding PD values, calculated in accordance with the procedures and rules
of the Parent Bank - Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd, are taken over from the Risk Management Sector.

The LGD parameter is calculated on the basis of historical data analysis, separately for homogeneous
portfolio segments. LGD is calculated separately for each of the 4 basic types of subject of leasing
(passenger vehicles, commercial vehicles, equipment, real estate) that may be the subject of
financing, based on the analysis of historical losses incurred by clients who were in the non-performing
class at any time from January 1, 2011 to the moment of calculation. This calculated historical LGD
for the basic types of subjects of leasing is applied to all subcategories of subjects within the basic
type in the calculation of provisions.

13
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.7. Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

The rate of losses in case of default status (LGD) for each type of the subject of leasing is obtained
as an average of all loss rates under individual leasing contracts that are the subject of analysis, while
the individual rate per each of the leasing contracts is the result of the total loss recorded by the
date of calculation. The individual LGD rate for each observed contract is obtained by putting into
relation all losses under a given contract on the day of calculation and the current exposure towards
the client when falling into default status. If the client has returned to the performing class, the LGD
rate for all its contracts will be 0% because it is considered that by its transition to the performing
class it has fulfilled all the conditions for this in accordance with the classification policy, that there
are no losses under that contract and that the client continues to settle obligations on a regular basis.

LGD values obtained in this way represent the Nominal LGD values, which are additionally adjusted
to macroeconomic coefficients (in accordance with IFRS 9) before final application and discounted by
the effective interest rate of the individual contract.

When calculating provisions for credit losses, PD and LGD shall be applied to a base (EAD) equal to
the gross exposure under each leasing agreement.

For exposures exceeding the materiality threshold (EUR 150 thousand) and relating to clients classified
as Doubtful or Unlikely to Pay, the assessment is performed on an individual basis. It is based on an
assessment of the client's financial situation and ability to pay taking into account the repayment
capacity of the client (going concern) and / or collection based on the type and value of collateral
(gone concern), while taking into account forward-looking information and macroeconomic
expectations through the application of different scenarios. Provisions for credit losses are equal to
the difference between the carrying value of receivables and the expected amount to be collected.
The expected amount to be collected is the net present value of expected cash flows discounted by
the effective interest rate of the contract (EIR).

The macroeconomic adjustment of PD is thus carried out by applying stress coefficients obtained from
the EBA PD stress test model. The coefficients are submitted by the Parent Bank and define the
change of PD parameter in relation to the baseline year for the redefined segment. EBA parameters
are submitted only for the basic and unfavorable scenario, so the calculation of the favorable scenario
is done separately, as a difference between the transformed values of the basic and unfavorable PD
parameters added to the basic scenario. The transformation is carried out using the inverse standard
normal distribution. The default rate of the Serbian banking sector on December 31, 2019 is used as
the initial default rate in relation to which the change in the default rate based on the EBA stress test
parameters for the Rest of the World is calculated, since the coefficients are not available for Serbia.
The table below shows the contingent default rates applied to the migration matrix to include
elements related to future events for the next 3 years from the reporting date:

Conditional default rates - First group

Unfavorable Basis Best
Segment Model t-1 t t+1 t+2 t t+1 t+2 t t+1 t+2
SME&LC-2015 1.29% 3.22% 3.12% 2.36% 3.14% 2.16% 1.15% 3.07% 1.47% 0.54%
Corporate SME Retail 3.32% 7.23% 7.04% 5.56% 7.09% 5.16% 3.00% 6.95% 3.71% 1.55%
SB-SE-2013 3.22% 7.04% 6.85% 5.41% 6.90% 5.01% 2.90% 6.76% 3.60% 1.50%

IDV-2015 - Mortgage 0.65% 0.88% 0.87% 0.78% 0.87% 0.75% 0.58% 0.86% 0.65%  0.42%
Retail
IDV-2015 - Other Retail ~ 1.99% 2.85% 2.81% 2.47% 2.82% 2.38% 1.77% 2.78% 2.00%  1.24%
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.7. Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)
Conditional default rates - Second group
Unfavorable Basis Best

Segment Model Stage t-1 t t+1 t+2 t t+1 t+2 t t+1 t+2

Stage 1 1.60% 3.87% 3.76% 2.87% 3.79% 2.63% 1.43% 3.70% 1.81% 0.69%
CORPORATE - OTHER
Nivo2 6.85% 13.30% 13.00% 10.66% 13.08% 9.99% 6.27% 12.86% 7.54% 3.52%
Corporate

RETAIL Stage 1 7.39% 14.16% 13.85% 11.40% 13.93% 10.70% 6.78% 13.70% 8.12% 3.84%
OTHER Stage 2 59.11% 72.32% 71.88% 67.93% 71.99% 66.64% 57.33% 71.65% 60.99% 46.12%

Macroeconomic conditioning of LGD was performed using EBA coefficients in the absence of internally
developed models (since EBA relies only on Basic and Unfavorable coefficients, the coefficients for
the Favorable scenario were calculated internally based on the Group methodology prepared for this
purpose). The “Forward-looking” elements were calculated for the next 3 years of remaining maturity
in relation to the reporting date, so the risk parameters of the Basic scenario are adjusted for the
“add-on” that takes into account all three scenarios. For the macroeconomic conditioning of LGD,
EBA coefficients for the Rest of the World were used, since the coefficients are not available for
Serbia. The value of the coefficients varies depending on the segment. The table below shows the
coefficients used for macroeconomic conditioning of the LGD value as well as the value of the
additional component (Add-on) obtained on the basis of all three scenarios:

Best Basis Unfavorable
Segment T ‘ t+1 ‘ t+2 t ‘ t+1 ‘ t+2 t ‘ t+1 ‘ t+2 Add on
Consumer credit 0.75 0.75 0.75 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.28 1.28 1.28 2.49%
Household mortgage 0.47 0.47 0.47 0.84 0.84 0.84 1.30 1.30 1.30 10.77%
NFC nonRE 0.76 0.76 0.76 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.27 1.27 1.27 2.26%
NFC RE 0.57 0.57 0.57 0.91 0.91 0.91 1.31 1.31 1.31 6.80%

For exposures belonging to the “Low Default Portfolio” segment (countries, local governments and
banks), the parameters obtained by the internal models of Intesa SanPaolo are used, since the
Company does not have enough historical data in this part of the portfolio to calculate them itself.

Projected cash flows are discounted at the effective interest rate and reduced to the present value.
The level of impairment of leasing placements is determined by comparing the present value of
expected cash flows with the gross carrying value of receivables.

The gross carrying value of assets is reduced using the value adjustment, and the expected credit
losses arising from impairment of financial assets are recorded in the Income Statement as expenses
of impairment of receivables from financial leasing and financial assets (Note 9).

If, during the subsequent period, there is a decrease in the amount of a recognized impairment loss
arising as a result of an event occurring after a previously recognized impairment, a previously
recognized impairment loss is reduced by adjusting the allowance account and the amount of the
adjustment is recognized in the income statement as income from impairment of receivables based
on financial leasing and financial assets (Note 9).
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.7. Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)
Write-off of Receivables

Financial assets are written off in accordance with the User Guidelines for Write-off of Uncollectable
Receivables. The subject of write-offs are receivables that meet the following conditions: there is a
delay in the collection of a specific receivable; the Company has failed to collect the receivable
despite the implementation of all collection activities defined by its policies and procedures; court
proceedings were initiated for settlement of the receivables; the value of the receivables is fully
covered by the value adjustment.

The Accounting Department proposes the write-off of receivables, while the Management Board or
the Executive Board of the Company are in charge of approval.

The Executive Board of the Company is responsible for making decisions on the write-off of receivables
up to the value of EUR 10,000, while the Management Board of the Company is responsible for making
decisions on the write-off of receivables in excess of EUR 10,000.

3.8. Repossessed Leased Assets and Inventories
(a) Repossessed Leased Assets

In a situation of early termination of the finance lease contract, the leased asset will be repossessed,
and the value of the financial placement or receivables will be recorded under Repossessed lease
assets accepted in exchange for uncollected receivables that are measured initially and subsequently
at the lower of: estimated value (fair value) or unamortized value of the financial investment
(carrying amount).

Valuation of a repossessed lease asset is performed regularly by a certified appraiser, with any change
in value due to significant changes in the market prices or changes in the physical condition of the
asset, and at least once during the period of one year from the previous valuation. During the
valuation, market factors, depreciation, as well as technical conditions of the lease asset are taken
into consideration.

If the non-depreciated value of financial placement based on financial leasing contract (carrying
amount) is greater than the appraised value of the subject of leasing, such a negative difference is
recorded as a value adjustment of the subject of leasing in exchange for uncollected receivables,
within the Repossessed Leased Assets and Inventories (Note 10).

If the non-depreciated value of financial placement based on financial leasing contract (carrying
amount) is less than the appraised value of the subject of leasing, such a positive difference is
recorded as off-balance item (memo account) until the moment of sale when that positive difference
is realized when it is being transferred to the Balance Sheet.

(b) Inventories

The Company's inventories include:

e material consumed in the process of providing services;
o advances given for subject of leasing; and
e other advances given.

Inventories are initially recorded at cost. After initial recognition, these assets are measured at cost
or net realizable value, whichever is lower.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.9. Intangible assets
Intangible assets are capitalized at cost at the date of acquisition.

After initial recognition, intangible assets are disclosed at cost less accumulated depreciation and
possible losses due to impairment of assets.

The Company's intangible assets consist of a license for computer software that is not an integral part
of the hardware, but has subsequently been acquired.

The Company applies a proportional method of calculating the depreciation of intangible assets with
a useful life of 5 years. The annual depreciation of intangible assets is 20%. During 2022, there were
no changes in depreciation rates compared to the previous period.

The depreciation cost is recognized in the period in which it was incurred (Note 12).

Gains or losses based on the derecognition of an intangible asset, as the difference between the net
sales value and the net carrying value, are recognized in the Income Statement when they arise.

Intangible assets are written off at the through expenses, when the Company estimates that this asset
no longer provides benefits.

3.10. Property, plant and equipment

The Company's property, plant and equipment as at December 31, 2021 consists of equipment. The
equipment is stated at cost, less the total accumulated depreciation and possible accumulated losses
due to impairment. The cost consists of the invoice value, increased by all costs incurred until the
asset is brought to the appropriate condition and location.

Depreciation is calculated evenly on the cost of fixed assets, using annual rates based on the
remaining useful life of the assets, estimated by the Company's management, with the aim of fully
writing off the assets during their useful life.

The accrued depreciation expense is recognized as an expense of the period in which it was incurred
(Note 12).

The applied annual depreciation rates are:

Useful life Depreciation
Type of equipment (years) rate
Computer equipment 5 20.0%
Passenger cars 4 25.0%
Office furniture 8 12.5%
Other equipment 3.33-14.28 7% - 30%

The useful life of the asset is revised and, if necessary, adjusted at the each Balance Sheet date. The
change in the expected useful life of the assets is included as a change in accounting estimates. During
2021, there were no changes in depreciation rates compared to the previous period.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.10. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

The calculation of depreciation for tax purposes is carried out in accordance with the Law on
Corporate Income Tax (“Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia”, no. 25/2001, 80/2002, 43/2003,
84/2004, 18/2010, 101/2011, 119/2012, 47/13, 108/2013, 68/2014, 142/2014, 91/2015, 112/2015,
11372017, 95/2018, 86/2019 and 153/2020) and the Rulebook on the Method of Classification of Fixed
Assets by Groups and the Method of Depreciation for Tax Purposes (“Official Gazette of the Republic
of Serbia”, no. 116/2004; 99/2010 and 93/19), resulting in deferred taxes (Note 14).

3.11. Leased Assets
Starting from January 1, 2019, the Company applies the IFRS 16 Leasing.

When concluding a contract, the Company assesses whether the contract contains leasing
components. A contract has a lease component if it transfers a right-of-use of the asset over a certain
period of time in exchange for consideration. In order to assess whether the contract transfers this
right, the Company uses the definition of leasing from IFRS 16 standard. This policy has been applied
to contracts signed (or amended) starting from January 1, 2019, when the mentioned standard started
to be applied.

The Company as a Lessee

When concluding a contract containing a leasing component, or at the time of its amending, the
Company allocates the agreed compensation to each leasing component on the basis of the respective
individual price of each component.

The Company recognizes the right-of-use asset and the corresponding leasing obligation at the
beginning of the leasing agreement. The asset with the right of use is initially measured at cost, which
includes the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for the lease payment made on or before
the beginning of the lease, increased by the initial direct costs incurred and the estimated costs
necessary to restore the asset to its original state in the case of lease of business premises.

In addition to the above, the cost of the asset with the right of use also includes:

o all payments under the lease made on or before the first day of the lease, less any incentives
received in connection with the lease;

o allinitial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

e an estimate of the costs that the lessee will incur in disassembling and removing the subject
property, restoring the location where the property is located or returning the property to the
state as specified in the lease agreement itself. The obligation for the stated costs for the lessee
arises on the first day of the lease term, or as a result of the use of the subject property over
a certain period.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the linear method in the period from the
beginning to the maturity of the contract. Also, it is periodically assessed whether this asset is
impaired and, if so, its carrying amount is reduced by the amount of the estimated impairment, and
the value of the lease liability is also adjusted.

As a lessee, the Company uses practical reliefs provided by the standard, so it does not recognize
short-term leases (up to 1 year) and low-value leases (when the value of the new subject of leasing
is less than EUR 5,000 excluding tax) as a right-of-use asset, and all payments arising from such leases
are recognized as the cost of the period.

At the initial leasing date, the lease liability is measured at the present value of all future lease
payments not made on that date. Future payments are discounted by applying the interest rate
contained in the lease if this rate can be easily determined. When the interest rate cannot be easily
determined, the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee valid on the day of the beginning of the
lease is used.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.11. Leased Assets (Continued)

Payments for leasing included in the measurement of the leasing liability on the first day of its term,
include the following payments for the right to use the subject property during the lease term, which
were not settled on the first day of the lease term:

o fixed payments, less any incentives received in connection with the lease;

e variable payments that depend on a specific index or rate and that are initially measured
according to that index or rate on the first day of the lease term;

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

o the price of exercising the purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

o penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After initial recognition, lease liabilities are further measured by:

e increasing their carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;

o reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

e remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications that are
significant for its reassessment.

Interest on the lease liability in each period during the term of the lease obligation will be equal to
the amount that gives a constant periodic interest rate on the remaining part of the lease liability.

The lessee shall remeasure the lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments at the revised
discount rate (for the remaining period) in the event of the occurrence of:

. changes in the lease term and
. change in the assessment of an option to redeem the subject property.

Lease Modifications

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease when:

. this modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying items of property; and
. the consideration for the lease increases proportionally to the stand-alone price for the

increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the specific contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, at the effective date of the
lease modification, activities are carried out as required by the standard to allocate the consideration
in the modified contract, determine the lease term of the modified lease, and remeasure the lease
liability by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.11. Leased Assets (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease, the remeasurement of the
lease liability is calculated by:

. decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease. The
lessee shall recognize in Income Statement any gain or loss relating to the partial or full
termination of the lease; and

. making a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset for all other lease
modifications.

The Company presents the right-of-use asset within the Property, Plant and Equipment position, while
the lease liability is presented within the position Other Financial Liabilities and Derivatives and refers
to the lease of property and vehicles. The depreciation cost of the right-of-use asset is stated within
the Depreciation Costs in the Income Statement, while the depreciation of the lease liability is stated
within the item Interest Expense in the Income Statement. Costs arising from short-term leasing and
low value leasing are stated within the position of Other Expenses.

3.12. Impairment of Non-financial Assets

In accordance with the adopted accounting policy, on the day of reporting, the Company's
management analyzes the values at which the Company's intangible assets and equipment are
presented. If there are indications that an asset is impaired, the recoverable amount of that asset
shall be estimated, in order to determine the amount of the impairment.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated as lower than the value at which that asset is
presented, the existing value of that asset is reduced to the level of the recoverable value. The
recoverable value of an asset or “cash generating unit”, if the asset does not generate cash flows
independently, is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss is
recognized in the amount of the difference through expenses in accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets™.

Non-financial assets (other than goodwill for which impairment effects are not reversed) for which
impairment has occurred are revised for each reporting period due to the possible elimination of
impairment effects.

3.13 Financial Liabilities for Loans and Borrowings from Banks

All loans and borrowings taken are initially recognized at cost which is a fair value of the amount
received less the amount of costs associated with the loan.

After the initial recognition of the liability for loans and borrowings from banks, they are subsequently
measurd at depreciated value.

3.14. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when:

(a) the Company has an obligation (legal or actual) that arose as a result of a previous event;
(b) it is probable that an outflow of resources containing economic benefits will be required
to settle the liabilities; and

(c) the amount of the liability can be reliably estimated.

If these conditions are not met, the provision is not recognized.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.14. Provisions (Continued)

When an outflow of economic benefits is no longer probable, in order to settle a legal or derived
obligation, the provision is reversed in favor of income. A provision is monitored by type and may only
be used for expenditures for which it was originally recognized. Provision is not recognized for future
operating losses.

The Company made provisions in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” for retirement benefits
and for unused days off (Note 24).

Provisions for severance payments are measured at the present value of expected future outflows
using a discount rate that reflects interest on high-quality securities denominated in the currency in
which the pension liabilities will be paid.

In accordance with the General Collective Agreement (“Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia”,
No. 50/2008, 104/2008 - Annex | and 8/2009 - Annex Il) and the Law on Labor (Article 119) (“Official
Gazette of the Republic of Serbia”, no. 24/2005, 61/2005, 54/2009, 32/2013 and 75/2014, 13/2017-
CC Decision, 113/2017 and 95/2018-authentic interpretation), the Company is obliged to pay
severance pay to the employee upon retirement in the amount of two average salaries in the Republic
of Serbia, according to the latest published data of the government body competent for statistics.

For employees who have acquired one of the conditions for voluntary retirement, the employer may
determine a incentive severance pay in the amount higher than the one prescribed in the previous
paragraph. There is no fund for these payments.

Provisions for these benefits and related costs are recognized in the amount of the present value of
expected future cash flows using the actuarial Projected Unit Credit Method. Actuarial gains and
losses are recognized as income or expense when the net cumulative, unrecognized actuarial gains
and losses for each individual plan at the end of the previous reporting period exceed the amount of
10% of the net defined benefit liability on that date. These gains and losses are recognized during the
expected average remaining service of the employees participating in the plan.

The costs of previous service are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis during the average
period in which benefits become guaranteed. If the benefits are guaranteed from the moment of
introduction, the cost of previous service is recognized immediately.

Provisions for litigation are formed in an amount that corresponds to the best estimate by the
Company's management of expenses that will be incurred when such obligations are settled.

The Company is a party in a small number of litigations arising from its day-to-day operations. The
Company assesses the probability of a negative outcome of these issues, as well as the amounts of
the probable or reasonably estimated losses. Reasonable estimates include judgment by the
management after considering information that includes notifications, settlements, legal department
assessments, available facts, identification of potential responsible parties and their ability to
contribute to resolution, as well as prior experience.

The provisions for litigation is formed when the occurrence of a liability is probable, the amount of
which can be reliably estimated by due diligence. The required provision may change in the future
due to new events or obtaining new information.

3.15. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. Contingent liabilities are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements (Note 29(a)), unless the likelihood of an outflow of
resources containing economic benefits is very low.

The Company does not recognize contingent assets in the financial statements. Contingent assets are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, if the inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.16. Employee Benefits
(a) Taxes and Contributions for Compulsory Social Security

In accordance with the regulations applied in the Republic of Serbia, the Company is obliged to pay
taxes, as well as contributions to various social security funds owned by the state. These obligations
include contributions at the expense of employees and at the expense of the employer in amounts
calculated by applying the rates prescribed by law.

The Company has the legal obligation to deduce the calculated contributions from the gross salaries
of employees and to transfer the deducted funds on their behalf, to the respective state funds. The
Company has no legal obligation to pay further benefits to its employees upon their retirement, which
fall within the responsibility of the Pension Fund of the Republic of Serbia.

Taxes and contributions at the expense of employees and at the expense of the employer are
recognized within expenses in the period of their occurrence (Note 11).

(b) Liabilities for Other Benefits - Severance Pay on Retirement

The net defined benefit liability consists of the present value of the determined benefit liability less
costs of previously performed work and actuarial losses, and increased by actuarial gains that have
not yet met the recognition criteria (see Note 3.14).

(c) Short-term, Paid Leave

Employees acquire the right to use annual leave after one month of continuous work from the date
of employment with the employer in the calendar year.

The employee may use the annual leave only with the employer with whom he/she has the right to
annual leave, and in the event that the employee does not use it in full or in part, he/she is entitled
to compensation for damage in accordance with the Law on Labor(“Official Gazette of the Republic
of Serbia”, no. 24/2005, 61/2005, 54/2009, 32/2013 i 75/2014, 13/2017-CC Decision, 113/2017 and
95/2018-authentic interpretation).

Compensation for damage shall paid by the employer with whom the employee terminated his/her
employment, and did not use the days of annual leave. It is possible to use the annual leave once or
in several parts, with the first part lasting at least two weeks.

The Company has neither its own pension fund nor payment options for its employees in the form of
shares and that is why it has no liabilities identified on this basis as on December 31, 2022.

3.17. Taxes and Contributions
Current Income Tax

Income tax is calculated and paid in accordance with the provisions of the Law on Corporate Income
Tax (“Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia”, no. 25/2001, 80/2002, 43/2003, 84/2004, 18/2010,
101/2011, 119/2012, 47/13, 108/2013, 68/2014, 142/2014, 91/2015, 112/2015, 113/2017, 95/2018,
86/2019 and 153/2020) and by-laws.

Income tax is calculated by applying the rate of 15% on the tax base stated in the tax balance, after
which it can be reduced for the established tax credits. The basis for taxation consists of taxable
profit, which is determined by adjusting the results (profit or loss) from the income statement, in the
manner determined by this Law.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.17. Taxes and Contributions (Continued)

During the year, the Company pays income tax in the form of monthly advances, the amount of which
is determined on the basis of the tax return for the previous year. The annual tax balance is submitted
within 180 days from the date of expiry of the period for which the tax liability is determined, i.e.
until June 30 of the following year.

Tax regulations in the Republic of Serbia do not allow tax losses from the current period to be used
as the basis for the refund of taxes paid in a certain previous period.

Deferred Taxes

Deferred income taxes are calculated by applying the liability method to all temporary differences as
at balance sheet date that result between the present value of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their values for tax purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except when the
deferred tax liability arises from:

(a) initial recognition of goodwill; or
(b) initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination and
at the time of the transaction does not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit (tax loss).

However, for taxable temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, branches and
affiliated entities and stakes in joint ventures, the deferred tax liability shall be recognized in
accordance with paragraph 39 of IAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and transfers of unused tax
credits and tax losses up to the amount for which it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which carried forward unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be used.

In calculating deferred tax assets and liabilities, tax rates are used that will be effective in year of
exercising the tax benefits or settlement of deferred tax assets, based on currently-enacted tax rates
and regulations at or after the balance sheet date. The tax rate used for calculating deferred tax
assets in 2021 was 15%, and is the same as in previous year.

Current and deferred taxes are recognized as income and expenses and are included in the net profit
for the reporting period. Deferred income taxes related to items that are recorded directly within
equity are also recorded within equity.

Current Tax Assets/Liabilities

In accordance with the accounting regulations in force in the Republic of Serbia, if the amount of
paid income tax for current and previous periods exceeds the amount due for collection for those
periods, the surplus is recognized as a tax asset.

The Company has provided information on the current tax liability for 2022 and 2021 under Note 14.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.17. Taxes and Contributions (Continued)
Transfer Pricing

The tax balance for 2022 has not been submitted until the date of the financial statements of the
Company, since the deadline for submission is 180 days from the date for which the tax is determined.
The Company calculated the tax effects on the basis of the Law on Corporate Income Tax of the
Republic of Serbia. The Company has not yet conducted a transfer pricing study, but the management
believes that this will not have material effects on 2022 because so far it has not had any, and in 2022
there were no significant changes in types of services compared to the previous year.

Taxes and Contributions Not Related to Operating Results

Taxes and contributions not related to operating results include contributions to salaries charged to
the employer, as well as other taxes and contributions that are paid in accordance with state and
local tax regulations.

3.18. Other Assets and Other Liabilities

Other assets include receivables from the sale of seized lease items and other receivables, as well as
prepaid costs and other accrued expenses and deferred income.

Trade payables and other operating liabilities are measured at their nominal value.
3.19. Disclosure of Relations with Related Parties

For the purpose of these financial statements, legal entities are treated as related if one legal entity
has the ability to control the other or exerts significant influence on the financial and business
decisions of the other, as defined in IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures”.

The relations between the Company and its related legal entities are regulated on a contractual basis
and according to market conditions. Balances of receivables and liabilities on the reporting date, as
well as transactions with related legal entities during the reporting periods, are disclosed separately
in the notes to the financial statements (Note 30).

4. KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
Use of Estimates

The preparation and presentation of financial statements requires the Company's management to use
the best possible estimates and reasonable assumptions, which have an effect on the stated values of
assets and liabilities, as well as the disclosure of contingent receivables and liabilities on the date of
preparation of financial statements, as well as revenues and expenses from the reporting period.

These estimates and assumptions are based on the information available at the date of preparation
of the financial statements. Actual results may differ from the stated estimates. Estimates and
assumptions are continuously reviewed, and when adjustments become necessary, they are disclosed
in the Income Statement for the periods in which they became known.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.
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4. KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)
Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognizes a value adjustment for expected credit losses for financial assets measured
at depreciated value or for debt financial assets recorded at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

The carrying amount of financial instruments measured at depreciated value is reduced by the amount
of provisions for expected credit losses.

Provisions for expected credit losses on debt financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognized through other comprehensive income and Income Statement,
and the carrying amount in the Balance Sheet is not reduced.

After initial recognition, a provision for expected credit losses is calculated on each reporting date.
The Company estimates, at each reporting date, the level of impairment of financial assets that are
valued at depreciated value or at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), as well as
on contractual assets. The Company assesses impairment based on the “forward-looking” model of
expected losses in accordance with IFRS 9.

Impairment is measured on one of the following grounds:

. 12-month expected credit losses — these are the expected credit losses that occur if default
status occurs within 12 months after the reporting date; and
. lifetime expected losses — the stated credit losses are the result of possible events of

default during the entire expected life of the financial instrument.

The lifetime expected losses are measured if the credit risk of the financial asset at the reporting
date is significantly increased compared to the initial date of recognition of that asset, while
otherwise 12-month expected credit losses are measured. The Company may estimate that the credit
risk of the financial asset is not significantly increased, if on the reporting date the asset has a low
credit risk

The assumptions and estimates that the Company uses as input in the expected credit losses
measurement model, as well as the evaluation of a significant increase in credit risk, are disclosed in
Note 3.7.

Classification of Financial Assets

The Company assesses the business model within which financial assets are held. Also, the Company
assesses whether the contracted cash flows of financial assets represent only payments of interest
and principal.

Assessment of the Business Model

The Company analyzes business models at the level of financial assets portfolio, since it best reflects
the way business and information are delivered to the management are managed.

The information under consideration relate to policies and strategies related to portfolios, as well as
their application in practice. In particular, it is important whether the strategy of the management
is based on contracted interest income, the adjustment of the lifetime of financial assets and
obligations for which the funds are financed, or the strategy is based on the realization of cash flows
through the sale of assets. Also, the Company considers information on the methods of evaluation and
reporting on portfolio performance, and information about the risks that affect the performance of
the portfolios and how they are managed. In addition, the Company considers the frequency, scope
and timing of the sale of financial assets over the past periods, the reasons for the sale and plans for
the sale of financial assets in the future period.
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4. KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

Assessment of Whether the Contracted Cash Flows Represent Solely Payment of Principal and
Interest

For the purposes of the assessment, the “principal” represents the fair value of the financial asset at
the date of initial recognition. “Interest” is defined as compensation for the time value of money and
for credit risk associated with the principal balance over a specific time period, as well as for other
underlying credit risks (such as liquidity risk, administrative costs) and profit margin.

When assessing whether the contracted cash flows represent solely payment of principal and interest
(SPPI), the Company considers the contracted terms of financial instruments and whether they contain
provisions that could change the time or amount of contracted cash flows, which would result in a
fair measurement of the instruments. The key contractual conditions considered in the assessment
are: the leverage characteristics, the option of extension or early repayment, the characteristics that
limit the Company's right to cash flows to the amount of the specific asset, as well as the
characteristics that lead to a modification of the time value of money, such as periodic adjustment
of interest rates for financial assets with a variable interest rate.

Useful Life of Intangible Assets and Property, Plant and Equipment

The useful life of property, plant and equipment is determined on the basis of previous experience
with similar assets, as well as of the anticipated technical developments and changes that are
influenced by a large number of economic or industrial factors.

The adequacy of a certain useful life is reviewed on an annual basis or whenever there is an indication
that there have been significant changes in the factors that represented the basis for determining the
useful life.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets, Repossessed Leased Assets and Inventories

At the balance sheet date, the Company's management analyzes the values at which intangible assets
and fixed assets are presented, as well as the repossessed leased assets and inventories.

If there are indications that an asset is impaired, the recoverable amount of that asset shall be
estimated, in order to determine the amount of the impairment. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated as lower than the value at which that asset is presented, the existing value of that
asset is reduced to the level of the recoverable value.

Impairment considerations require management to make subjective judgments regarding the cash
flows, growth rates, and discount rates for the cash-generating units under consideration.

The Company's opinion is that there are no significant deviations in the carrying amount of assets
from fair value that would have an impact on the financial statements.

Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized on all unused tax credits to the extent that it is certain that the
level of expected future taxable gains is sufficient for unused tax credits to be used.

A significant assessment by the Company's management is necessary to determine the amount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based on the period of occurrence and the amount of
future taxable gains and the tax policy planning strategy (Note 14(c)).
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4. KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)
Severance Pay Upon Retirement

The costs of established employee benefits after termination of employment, i.e. retirement after
fulfilling legal conditions, are determined by applying the actuarial assessment. Actuarial assessment
includes an estimate of the discount rate, future salary trends, mortality rate and employee
fluctuations.

Due to the long-term nature of these plans, significant uncertainties affect the outcome of the
assessment. Further information is disclosed in Note 24.

Provisions for Litigations

The Company is a party in a number of litigations arising from day-to-day business and relating to
commercial and contractual issues, which are resolved or considered in the ordinary course of
business. The Company assesses the probability of a negative outcome of these issues, as well as the
amounts of the probable or reasonably estimated losses.

Reasonable estimates include judgment by the management after considering information that
includes notifications, settlements, legal department assessments, available facts, identification of
potential responsible parties and their ability to contribute to resolution, as well as prior experience.

The provisions for litigation is formed when the occurrence of a liability is probable, the amount of
which can be reliably estimated by due diligence (Note 24). The required provision may change in the
future due to new events or obtaining new information. Contingent liabilities, as well as items that
do not meet the criteria for establishing provisions, are disclosed, unless the likelihood of an outflow
of resources containing economic benefits is very low.

Leasing
The incremental borrowing rate, which is used as a discount rate for measuring the present value of

leasing payments, is determined by analyzing internal sources of information on loans and corrected
to reflect the contracted leasing terms and type of asset taken into leasing.

5. INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSES

2022 2021
Interest income
Interest income from financial leasing 702,274 502,926
Income from default interest 4,443 2,983
Interest income - securities 5,284 26,385
Interest income from deposits 48,882 285
Total 760,883 532,579
Interest expense
Interest expense for other loans from abroad (203,140) (91,897)
Interest expense for loans from related parties in the country (29,731) (75,232)
Interest expense for rental (831) (256)
Total (233,702) (167,385)
Profit from interest 527,181 365,194
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6. INCOME AND EXPENSES IN RELATION WITH FINANCIAL LEASING

2022 2021
Fee and commission income
Income from fees in relation with approval of leasing placements 84,301 69,469
Income from reminders/warnings 2,219 3,778
Income from intercalary interest 21,333 23,348
Income from costs recharged to clients 47,758 32,440
Other income from fees and commissions 237 8
Total 155,848 129,043
Fee and commission expenses
Costs of insurance of leased assets (280) (248)
Costs of mediation in the placement of leased assets (29,243) (17,749)
Costs of repossession of leased assets 2) (210)
Costs of guarantees for loans (16,453) (13,906)
Expenses for costs recharged to clients (48,114) (31,935)
Other financial leasing expenses (1,700) (897)
Total (95,792) (64,945)
Profit from fees and commissions 60,056 64,098
7. NET EXPENSES FROM FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSSES AND CURRENCY CLAUSE LOSSES

2022 2021
Foreign exchange gains and currency clause gains
Currency clause gains 12,777 6,573
Foreign exchange gains 75,565 8,288
Total 88,342 14,861
Foreign exchange losses and currency clause losses
Currency clause losses (54,662) (5,008)
Foreign exchange losses (36,499) (13,214)
Total (91,161) (18,222)
Net expenses (2,819) (3,361)
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8. NET (EXPENSES) / INCOME FROM DECREASE OF IMPAIRMENT OF RECEIVABLES FOR
FINANCIAL LEASING AND FINANCIAL ASSETS

2022 2021

Net (impairment)/decrease of impairment of long-term

receivables 60 days overdue (56,567) (3,559)
Net (impairment)/decrease of impairment of long-term

receivables up to 60 days overdue and future receivables for

financial leasing (12,039) (46,637)
Net (impairment)/decrease of impairment of short-term

receivables 60 days overdue (1,379) (1,400)
Net decrease of impairment/(impairment) of short-term

receivables up to 60 days overdue (349) (214)
Net (impairment)/decrease of impairment of other financial

placements - securities 3,526 (2,810)
Net (expenses)/income (66,808) (54,620)
9. NET EXPENSES FOR IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS LEASED OUT, LEASED ASSETS AND ASSETS

TAKEN IN EXCHANGE FOR UNCOLLECTED RECEIVABLES

2022 2021
Impairment of repossessed leased assets (45,224) (9,690)
Income from value adjustment of repossessed leased assets 2,310 -
Total (42,914) (9,690)

The impairment of the repossessed leased assets refers to the recorded impairment based on the
assessments of authorized appraisers.

10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2022 2021
Income from representation in insurance of leased subjects 74,280 55,736
Income from decrease in liabilities 113 3,255
Other operating income 5,871 4,186
Net (expenses)/income 80,264 63,177
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11. DEPRECIATION COSTS

2022 2021
Costs of depreciation of intangible assets
(Note 19) 8,057 7,485
Costs of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(Note 20) 836 629
Costs of depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 20) 7,268 6,508
Total 16,161 14,622
12. COSTS OF SALARIES, FRINGE BENEFITS AND OTHER PERSONAL EXPENSES

2022 2021
Costs of gross salaries 108,099 97,692
Cost of accrued bonuses 16,600 14,102
Costs of taxes and contributions 16,216 15,107
Other personal expenses and benefits 2,567 3,861
Costs of temporary employment contracts 9,183 2,086
Total 152,665 132,848
13. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER EXPENSES
Other income

2022 2021
Income from derecognition of provisions for litigations 6,517 3,115
Total 6,517 3,115
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13. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER EXPENSES (continued)

Other expenses

2022 2021
Maintenance costs (b) 19,349 16,599
Advertising costs 979 840
Costs of consulting services (a) 16,697 17,356
Rental costs 888 1,377
Costs of payment transactions 3,016 2,355
Costs of representation and team building 4,954 1,697
Services of youth and student cooperatives 1,549 2,897
Fuel costs 2,920 2,085
Costs of legal services 1,138 1,182
Costs of transport and postal services 2,691 2,131
Costs of materials 967 804
Costs of professional training and professional literature 984 686
Costs of spare parts and small inventory 1,347 882
Audit costs 3,599 3,339
Membership fees 1,480 1,451
Insurance premium costs 325 371
Costs of translation and similar services 632 196
Costs of taxes 3,524 1,882
Costs of litigations (d) 666 900
Provision expenses 6,343 6,625
Costs of other services 9,304 5,147
Total 83,352 70,802

a) The costs of consulting services are lower in the current year compared to the previous year,
primarily due to the decrease in expenditures under the “Service Level Agreement” (SPA) with
Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd, which in 2022 amounted to RSD 15,922 thousand (2021: RSD
16,579 thousand).

b) Theincrease of maintenance costs in the current year mostly refers to the increase in software
maintenance service expenses, which in 2022 amounted to RSD 18,960 thousand (2021: RSD
16,360 thousand).
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14. INCOME TAX
(a) Income tax components

Total tax expense consists of the following taxes:

2022 2021
Income tax for the period 67,161 45,876
Deferred tax expenses of the period 1,578 755
Deferred tax income of the period - -
Total tax expenses of the period 68,739 46,631
(b) Reconciliation of the total amount of income tax stated in the Income Statement and the

product of profit before tax and the prescribed tax rate

Reconciliation of tax expense calculated on profit before tax using the statutory income tax rate and
tax expense using the effective tax rate of the Company, as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 is shown
below:

2022 2021
Profit before tax 310,472 209,641
Income tax at the official rate of 15% 46,571 31,446
Expenses not recognized for tax purposes 81 444
Value adjustment of receivables not recognized for tax purposes 21,979 20,418
Income from interest on securities - issuer Republic of Serbia,
income adjustment (793) (3,958)
Expenses for impairment of assets not recognized in the tax
period 4,575 1,041
Adjustment of income for previously unrecognised tax expenses (5,253) (3,517)
Total current income tax 67,161 45,875
Deferred tax income - tax depreciation 1,153 337
Deferred tax income - IAS 19 (34) (40)
Tax effects of the first application of IFRS 9 459 459
Total deferred tax expenses/income 1,578 756
Total income tax recognized in the income statement 68,739 46,631
Effective tax rate 22.22% 22.24%
(c) Deferred tax assets

Changes in deferred tax assets during the reporting period are shown in the following table:

2022 2021
Balance as of January 1 3,030 3,786
Effects of temporary differences credited/(charged) to the
income statement (1,578) (756)
Balance as of December 31 1,452 3,030
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14.  INCOME TAX (Continued)

The following table shows the basis for recording deferred tax income/(expenses) and effects on the
income statement for 2022 and 2021:

Deferred Income Deferred Income
tax assets statement tax assets statement
2022 2022 2022 2022

Temporary differences between the carrying

value of equipment and intangible assets

and their tax base 1,248 1,153 2,401 337
Temporary differences based on the first

application of

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - 459 459 459
Provisional differences based on provisions
under IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” 204 (34) 170 (40)
Total 1,452 1,578 3,030 756
(d) Current tax liabilities

2022 2021
Balance as of December 31 (22,517) (22,599)

The current tax liability arose as a difference between the calculated income tax for 2022 and the
advance payment for income tax in 2022.

15. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2022 2021
RSD current accounts 164,924 171,848
Foreign currency accounts 82,126 26
Balance as of December 31 247,050 171,874

During 2022 and 2021, the Company performed RSD and foreign currency payment transactions
through accounts opened with Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd.

16. SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS

2022 2021
Term deposits 4,804,317 1,058,356
State bonds of the Republic of Serbia 117,695 735,371
Financial assets - investment in investment funds - 363,718
Balance as of December 31 4,922,012 2,157,445

The investment in investment funds refers entirely to the investment units of the related party
Intesa invest a.d. Beograd.
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17. OTHER FINANCIAL PLACEMENTS AND DERIVATIVES

Below is a comparative overview of investments in state bonds as of December 31, 2022 and 2021:

Market value Maturity of Interest rate
on financial achieved on
Description of the financial placement 31/12/2022 placement purchase
State bonds of the Republic of Serbia 117,695 January 2023 3.74% per annum
Total 117,695
Market value Maturity of Interest rate
on financial achieved on
Description of the financial placement 31/12/2021 placement purchase
State bonds of the Republic of Serbia 614,075 January 2022 3.73% per annum
State bonds of the Republic of Serbia 121,296 January 2023 3.74% per annum
No defined
Intesa Invest - investment units 363,718 maturity -
Total 1,099,089

The Company also calculated value adjustments for financial placements in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Calculations of value adjustments during the year
recorded in the Income Statement under the item Net income from reduction in impairment of
receivables from financial leasing and financial assets.

Changes in value adjustments of investments in financial assets that are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are given through the following overview:

2022 2021
Balance as of January 1 (4,199) (1,389)
Value adjustments during the year - increases - (2,812)
Value adjustments during the year - reductions 3,527 2
Balance as of December 31 (672) (4,199)
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18. SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES FROM FINANCIAL LEASING

The structure of receivables from financial leasing is shown in the following overview:

Due uncollected receivables from financial leasing
Receivables from financial leasing up to 1 year

Short-term receivables for leasing fee

Accrued interest income from financial leasing

Deferred income from fees based on the approval of financial
leasing placements

Total short-term receivables from financial leasing

Less

Correction of due uncollected receivables from financial leasing
Adjustment of receivables from financial leasing

up to 1 year

Adjustment of short-term receivables

Total value adjustment of short-term receivables from
financial leasing

Net short-term receivables from financial leasing

Receivables from financial leasing from 1 to 5 years
Receivables from financial leasing over 5 years

Deferred income from fees based on the approval of financial
leasing placements

Total long-term receivables from financial leasing

Less

Adjustment of receivables from financial leasing
from 1 to 5 years

Adjustment of receivables from financial leasing
over 5 years

Total value adjustment of long-term receivables from financial
leasing

Net long-term receivables from financial leasing

2022 2021
453,305 291,188
8,175,179 7,004,232
18,514 16,833
44,775 28,671
(38,775) (47,633)
8,652,998 7,293,291
(275,599) (218,216)
(52,965) (48,758)
(15,139) (13,430)
(343,703) (280,404)
8,309,295 7,012,887
2022 2021
15,275,252 12,248,371
637,361 601,301
(93,451) (47,779)
15,819,162 12,801,893
(89,736) (86,511)
(5,367) (4,577)
(95,103) (91,088)
15,724,059 12,710,805

The Company's receivables from financial leasing as of December 31, 2022 amounted to RSD
24,033,354 thousand and increased by 19.30% compared to the previous year (December 31, 2021:
RSD 20,145,092 thousand). Short-term receivables in relation with leasing fee refer to other
receivables from the financial leasing activities: receivables from fees for the approval of requests,

re-invoiced services, default interest, reminders/warnings and intercalary interest.
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18. SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES FROM FINANCIAL LEASING (Continued)

Accrued interest income from financial leasing refers to the proportional part of interest in leasing
installments that are due in the following year, and refers to the period from the maturity of the
previous installment to December 31 of the year for which the financial statements are prepared.

Deferred income from fees based on the approval of financial leasing placements was charged in
advance for manipulative costs and is a deductible item to receivables from financial leasing in the
amount of RSD 132,226 thousand for 2022, and RSD 95,413 thousand for 2021.

The residual risk management strategy for the rights retained by the Company in its assets includes
any means to reduce that risk. Such assets are By-back contracts, residual value guarantees, sureties.

(a) The present and future value of receivables from minimum leasing installments as of
December 31, 2022, without adjustment for short-term receivables of fee, accrued interest income
from financial leasing and accrued pre-collected financial leasing origination costs, is shown in the
following table:

Net present Unearned Gross

value income receivables

Up to 1 year and due 8,309,295 791,637 9,100,932
From 1 to 5 years 15,094,867 1,105,086 16,199,953
Over 5 years 629,192 66,473 695,665
Total 24,033,354 1,963,196 25,996,550

The present and future value of receivables from minimum leasing installments as of December 31,
2021, without adjustment for short-term receivables of fee, accrued interest income from financial
leasing and accrued pre-collected financial leasing origination costs, is shown in the following table:

Net present Unearned Gross

value income receivables

Up to 1 year and due 7,295,420 442,626 7,738,046
From 1 to 5 years 12,248,371 579,343 12,827,714
Over 5 years 601,301 44,473 645,774
Total 20,145,092 1,066,442 21,211,534
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18. SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES FROM FINANCIAL LEASING (Continued)

(b) Changes in accounts of value adjustment of receivables from financial leasing during the

year are shown as follows:

2022 2021
Balance as of January 1 (371,492) (348,578)
Value adjustments during the year - increases (75,759) (56,307)
Value adjustments during the year - reductions 5,374 4,540
Write-off of receivables - decrease 2,156 28,896
Exchange rate differences - increase 2,341 (142)
Exchange rate differences - decrease (1,426) 99
Balance as of December 31 (438,806) (371,492)
Changes by impairment stages can also be shown in the following table:
Increase/
decrease
December during the December
Balance of value adjustment 31, 2021 year 31, 2022
Stage 1 (64,694) (1,804) (66,498)
Stage 2 (21,887) (18,237) (40,124)
Stage 3 (284,911) (47,273) (332,184)
Total (371,492) (67,314) (438,806)
(c) The value of receivables for minimum leasing installments, without adjustment for accrued

financial leasing origination costs pre-collected and without short-term receivables and related
adjustments, as of December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 and value adjustments of receivables
by impairment levels is shown in the following overview:

Value
Value of adjustments Net value of
receivables of receivables receivables
Impairment stage 1 21,878,550 (66,498) 21,812,065
Impairment stage 2 2,215,484 (40,124) 2,175,381
Impairment stage 3 447,063 (332,184) 130,042
Total as of December 31, 2022 24,541,097 (438,806) 24,117,488
Value
Value of adjustments Net value of
receivables of receivables receivables
Impairment stage 1 18,773,327 (64,683) 18,708,644
Impairment stage 2 980,495 (21,870) 958,625
Impairment stage 3 391,270 (271,509) 119,761
Total as of December 31, 2021 20,145,092 (358,062) 19,787,030
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18. SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM RECEIVABLES FROM FINANCIAL LEASING (Continued)

ECL trends during 2022 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Opening balance - 01/01/2022 64,694 21,887 284,911 371,492

Transfer to Stage 1 - (7,894) (629) (8,523)
Transfer to Stage 2 (5,931) - (295) (6,226)
Transfer to Stage 3 (987) (2,809) - (3,796)
Changes in ECL due to measurement change (8,476) 21,298 41,997 54,819
New production 40,022 16,284 29,388 85,694
Collections (22,824) (8,642) (21,051) (52,517)
Write-offs - - (2,137) (2,137)
Balance as of December 31, 2022 66,498 40,124 332,184 438,806
(d) Financial leasing contracts in 2022 were concluded for a period of up to 10.5 years. The

financial leasing contract transfers the economic benefits and risks to the lessee. In accordance with
the contracts, the right of ownership is transferred to the lessee upon the agreed repayment of the
leasing installment. In 2022, the fee for processing the request was calculated on average in the
amount of 0.60% of the gross purchase value of the lease subject (2021: 0.54%).

As a hedge against foreign exchange risk, the Company uses a currency clause when concluding a
financial leasing agreement.

The nominal interest rates for financial leasing contracts approved in 2022 ranged from:

Placements From To
Placements in EUR 1.70% 10.03%
Placements in RSD 3.13% 10.77%

The average rate of the clients’ participation in accordance with the lease agreements in 2022 was
16.53% of the net purchase value of the lease subject (2021: 20.93%).
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible
Licenses and assets under

software development Total
COST
Balance as of January 1, 2021 62,416 1,588 64,004
Increases during the year - new acquisitions 2,248 6,742 8,990
Transfer (from)/to 1,080 (1,080) -
Disposals and write-offs (80) - (80)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 65,664 7,250 72,914
Increases during the year - new acquisitions 6,373 3,803 10,176
Transfer (from)/to 6,101 (6,101) -
Disposals and write-offs - - -
Balance as of December 31, 2022 78,138 4,952 83,090
ACCUMULATED VALUE ADJUSTMENT
Balance as of January 1, 2021 42,161 - 42,161
Depreciation (Note 11) 7,485 - 7,485
Balance as of December 31, 2021 49,646 - 49,646
Depreciation (Note 11) 8,057 - 8,057
Balance as of December 31, 2022 57,703 - 57,703
Carrying value as of:
- December 31, 2022 20,435 4,952 25,387
- December 31, 2021 16,018 7,250 23,268

In 2022, the upgrade of the information system “Nova” continued with the upgrade of the existing
modules, as well as investment in intangible assets under development, for a new process.

Based on the assessment of the Company's management, as of December 31, 2022, there are no
indications that the value of intangible assets has been impaired.
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Vehicles and Other
property, Other Lease acquired
Vehicles lease* equipment subjects assets Total
COST
Balance as of January 1, 2021 9,263 22,483 4,061 72,103 597 108,507
Increases during the year - new -
acquisitions - 11,355 897 185,148 197,400
Disposals and write-offs - (1,759) (524) (190,902) - (193,185)
Balance as of December 31, 597
2021 9,263 32,078 4,434 66,348 112,720
Increases during the year - new -
acquisitions - 40,116 1,203 293,206 334,525
Disposals and write-offs (4,131) (10,811) (867) (240,784) - (256,593)
Balance as of December 31, 597
2022 5,132 61,383 4,770 118,770 190,652
ACCUMULATED VALUE
ADJUSTMENT
Balance as of January 1, 2021 9,263 12,600 2,096 56,034 - 79,993
Depreciation (Note 11) - 6,508 629 - - 7,137
Disposals and write-offs - (1,759) (524) - - (2,283)
Value adjustment -
increase/decrease - - - 9,689 9,689
Balance as of December 31, -
2021 9,263 17,349 2,201 65,723 94,536
Depreciation (Note 11) - 7,268 836 - - 8,104
Disposals and write-offs (4,131) (10,811) (877) - - (15,819
Value adjustment -
increase/decrease - - - 29,028 29,028
Balance as of December 31, -
2022 5,132 13,806 2,170 94,741 115,849
Carrying value as of:
- December 31, 2022 - 47,577 2,600 24,029 597 74,803
- December 31, 2021 - 14,729 2,233 625 597 18,184

*  The column Vehicles and property, lease, shows the value of the right-of-use assets in accordance with IFRS 16 Leasing.

The Company has no restrictions on the ownership of equipment as of December 31, 2022 and no liens

established as a guarantee of liabilities.

Based on the assessment of the Company's management, as of December 31, 2021, there are no

indications that the value of equipment has been impaired.

21. IFRS 16 Leasing

Right-of-use assets, business premises and vehicles in 2022:

Leased

Leased passenger
property vehicles Total
Balance as of January 1, 2022 7,339 7,390 14,729
Increases during the year 33,649 6,467 40,116
Depreciation during the year (4,181) (3,087) (7,268)
Balance as of December 31, 2022 36,807 10,950 47,577
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21. IFRS 16 Leasing (continued)

The amounts stated in the Income Statement relating to leases under IFRS 16 can be stated in the
following overview:

Leased

Leased passenger
property vehicles Total
Interest expense 683 148 831
Depreciation expense 4,181 3,087 7,268
Total 4,864 3,235 8,099

The amount stated in the Statement of Cash Flows at the position Cash outflows from financial
activities can be shown in the following overview:

Outflow from property leasing 4,864
Outflow from passenger vehicles leasing 3,235
Total 8,099

22. OTHER ASSETS

2022 2021
Receivables for representation in insurance 4,103 6,247
Receivables for VAT 26,403 6,320
Receivables for unconfirmed changes in tax bases 1,935 1,562
Other prepayments and accrued income 4,192 6,116
Prepaid expenses 47,185 27,285
Receivables from the sale of lease subjects 5,687 25,231
Advances paid 10,182 34,907
Receivables for interest on deposits 26,898 27
Other receivables 1,475 1,785
Balance as of December 31 128,060 109,480

The change in prepaid expenses in 2022 was mostly due to an increase in fees for representation in
placements, paid during the year, and the expense is recorded by a degressive method during the
term of the contract on financial leasing for which they were incurred. The value of this group of
accrued costs as of December 31, 2021 amounted to RSD 26,522 thousand, while the balance as of
December 31, 2022 amounted to RSD 46,275 thousand.

Receivables from interest on deposits refer to 16 deposit agreements on December 31, 2022, while
on December 31, 2022 the data referred to one deposit agreement.

Regarding the advances paid, the largest part refers to advances for the procurement of lease
subjects, as of December 31, 2022 in the amount of RSD 10,170 thousand (as of December 31, 2021:
RSD 34,907 thousand).
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23. LONG-TERM AND SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Overviews of financial liabilities for funds borrowed from banks and other financial institutions are
given below:

A) Long-term financial liabilities

Overviews of financial liabilities for funds borrowed from banks and other financial institutions are
given below:

2022 2021
Portion of liabilities for domestic long-term loans that is due in 1
to 5 years 464,790 766,682
Portion of liabilities for foreign long-term loans that is due in 1
to 5 years 19,360,799 14,133,627
Portion of liabilities for foreign long-term loans that is due in
over 5 years 670,414 1,633,085
Total liabilities 20,496,003 16,533,394
Deferred costs of loan approval in the country (492) (1,197)
Deferred costs of loan approval abroad (15,184) (14,187)
Balance as of December 31 20,480,327 16,518,008
B) Short-term financial liabilities

2022 2021
Liabilities for short-term loans in the country 3,280,837 1,238,442
Liabilities for interest on loans in the country 3,352 1,407
Liabilities for interest on loans abroad - 3,067
Portion of liabilities for domestic long-term loans that is due
within one year 300,198 300,863
Portion of liabilities for foreign long-term loans that is due
within one year 3,326,631 2,406,197
Total liabilities 6,911,018 3,949,776
Accruals and deferred income from interest and guarantees for
long-term loans 27,716 13,536
Deferred costs of loan approval in the country (3,523) (1,643)
Deferred costs of loan approval and guarantees for loans, abroad (12,234) (8,831)
Balance as of December 31 6,922,977 3,953,038

Financial liabilities for borrowings from banks are reduced by prepaid costs incurred for approval of
disbursed loans that are deferred in the periods in which the loans are used.

Financial liabilities for borrowings from banks were increased by accrued interest and accrued costs
of guarantees for disbursed loans.
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23. LONG-TERM AND SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued
As of December 31, 2022, the Company did not have approved and unused loans.

The interest rate on long-term loans granted abroad ranges from 0.38% to 3.14% on an annual basis,
depending on the maturity period, or depending on the period when the contracts were concluded.

The agreed repayment periods for long-term loans from abroad range from 5 to 11 years.

As of December 31, 2022, the Company did not break the limits from covenants under contracts with
creditors where defined.

Financial Liabilities Towards Creditors

The following table shows the changes in the balance of liabilities for loans:

Balance as Balance as

Balance as of Balance as of of

January 1, of January Withdrawal Repayment December December

2022 inRSD 1, 2022 in S during the during the 31, 2022 in 31, 2022 in

Creditor thousand EUR year in EUR year in EUR EUR 000 RSD

Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd 2,305,987 19,611,717 34,500,000 (19,627,036) 34,484,681 4,045,826

VUB banka 2,351,642 20,000,000 30,000,000 - 50,000,000 5,866,120

European Investment Bank 6,987,659 59,427,912 - (4,444,255) 54,983,657 6,450,815

KfW Entwicklungsbank 784,273 6,670,000 - (3,334,000) 3,336,000 391,388

Banka Intesa Sanpaolo d.d. 5,408,777 46,000,000 30,000,000 (4,000,000) 72,000,000 8,447,213
European Bank for Reconstruction -

and Development 2,640,558 22,457,143 (3,685,714) 18,771,429 2,202,309
94,500,000

Total 20,478,896 174,166,772 (35,091,005) 233,575,767 27,403,671

The loan balance as of December 31, 2022 of RSD 27,403,671 thousand represents the amount of
outstanding loan principal, i.e. financial liabilities for loans without interest liabilities, without
accrued interest costs and guarantees and without deduction for deferred costs of approval.
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24. PROVISIONS

Provisions for severance pay upon retirement of employees were formed on the basis of the report of
the independent actuary with the balance as of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 and they
are stated in the amount of the present value of expected future payments. When determining the
present value of expected outflows, a discount rate of 6.80% was used. The provision was determined
on the basis of the Rules of Procedure of the Company and the assumption of an average increase in
salaries of employees in Serbia of 8% per year and with an annual turnover of employees of 7.0%.

The provisions structure is shown in the following table:

2022 2021
Long-term provisions for severance pay upon retirement 1,362 1,134
Provisions for litigations 6,237 7,346
Balance as of December 31 7,599 8,480
Changes in provisions during the year are shown in the following table:

2022 2021
Balance as of January 1 8,480 12,521
Long-term provisions for severance pay upon retirement (Note
11) 228 269
Provisions for litigations (Note 13) (1,109 (4,310)
Balance as of December 31 7,599 8,480

The assessment of the risk of loss in connection with litigations and provisions for contingent liabilities
in the amount of RSD 6,237 thousand (2021: RSD 7,346 thousand) refer to two passive litigations
initiated against the Company (as of December 31, 2021, three passive litigations were conducted).

Litigations in which the Company is the defendant were conducted due to non-compliance with
EURIBOR, i.e. damage to insurance policies.
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25. OTHER LIABILITIES

2022 2021
Trade payables 25,237 27,045
Liabilities towards customers 127,816 105,740
Liabilities for unused annual paid leave 4,715 4,146
Other accruals and deferred income 4,706 3,255
Tax liabilities 104 86
Value added tax liabilities - -
Liabilities for salaries and fringe benefits 17,107 13,189
Liabilities from long-term lease 47,954 14,867
Other obligations 604 598
Balance as of December 31 228,243 168,926

Liabilities towards customers in the amount of RSD 127,816 thousand as of December 31, 2021
(December 31, 2021: RSD 105,740 thousand) mostly relate to prepaid installments by customers in
the amount of RSD 87,722 thousand (2021: RSD 67,163 thousand).

We provide an overview of long-term lease liabilities below

Liabilities Liabilities

for lease of for lease of

business passenger
premises vehicles Total
Balance as of January 1, 2021 3,639 6,336 9,975
Increases during the year 8,153 3,202 11,355
Decrease - repayment during the year (4,392) (2,071) (6,463)
Balance as of December 31, 2021 7,400 7,467 14,867
Increases during the year 33,563 6,452 40,015
Decrease - repayment during the year (3,870) (3,058) (6,928)
Balance as of December 31, 2022 37,093 10,861 47,954

Future minimum payments of lease liabilities for concluded lease agreements are presented as
follows:

Contractual

non-

discounted

Present value cash flows

Up to 1 year 7,835 8,625
From 1 to 5 years 23,395 25,389
Over 5 years 16,725 17,303
Total as of December 31, 2022 47,954 51,317
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26. SHARE CAPITAL - OWNERSHIP SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The capital structure of the Company, by shareholders as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, is shown
below:

2022 2021
Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd 960,374 960,374
Balance as of December 31 960,374 960,374

As of December 31, 2022, Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd is the sole owner of the Company with a 100%
ownership share in its share capital.

Pursuant to the Decision of the Business Registers Agency no. 155596/2011 of December 19, 2011, the
founder was changed so that Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd was registered as the sole owner of the
Company's shares.

The subscribed, paid and registered share (monetary) capital of the Company with the Business
Registers Agency amounts to EUR 10,152,453 on the day of payment.

The monetary part of the share capital of the Company on December 31, 2022 meets the minimum
amount prescribed by Article 10a of the Law on Financial Leasing (“Official Gazette of the Republic
of Serbia”, no. 55/2003, 61/2005, 31/2011 and 99/2011).

27. RESERVES

The structure of the Company's reserves as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 is shown below:

2022 2021
Unrealized gains converted to market
value of securities 612 7,812
Other reserves - transferred profits 567,736 404,726
Balance as of December 31 568,348 412,538

Unrealized profit in 2021 is the result of the measurement of securities (Note 17) at market value (at
the reporting date there is a loss in the amount of RSD 60 thousand; December 31, 2021: profit in the
amount of RSD 3,614 thousand), as well as the calculation of the expected credit loss in accordance
with the requirements of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for Securities that the company had on
December 31, 2022 in the amount of RSD 672 thousand (December 31, 2021: profit: RSD 4,198
thousand).

Other reserves refer to the profits transferred from previous years based on the decisions of the
Company's bodies (Note 32).
28. PROFIT

The total retained profit of the Company as of December 31, 2022 amounts to RSD 241,733 thousand
(December 31, 2021: RSD 163,010 thousand) and refers to the profit of the current year.
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29. ASSUMED AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) Litigations

As of December 31, 2022, two passive litigations are conducted against the Company. The total value
of these litigations is RSD 6,237 thousand (December 31, 2021: RSD 7,346 thousand) and for these
litigations, in the opinion of the management, the Company is expected to lose the provisions for
contingent losses on this basis (note 24).

(b) Tax Risks

The tax system of the Republic of Serbia is under continuous review and subject to changes. The tax
period in the Republic of Serbia is considered to be open for a five-year period, in accordance with
the period of limitation defined by the Law on Tax Procedure and Law on Tax Administration. In
different circumstances, tax authorities may have different approaches to certain issues and may
determine additional tax liabilities along with subsequent default interest and penalties. The
Company's management believes that the tax liabilities recorded in the attached financial statements
are properly stated.

30. DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

In its regular operations, the Company carries out business transactions with its founder and other
related parties.

Guarantees received from related parties that are recorded off-balance sheet and can be presented
as follows:

2022 2021
Guarantees of Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. Milano 7,677,268 9,235,816
Guarantees of Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd 3,677,268 1,941,600
Balance as of December 31 11,155,663 11,177,416

(a) Transactions with the Founder Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd

The balance of receivables and liabilities as at December 31, 2022 and 2021 arising from transactions
with Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd, as well as income and expenses incurred during the year are
presented as follows:

Receivables from Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd 2022 2021
Cash (Note 15) 247,050 171,874
Term deposits 4,804,317 1,058,356
Receivables from SLA contract - 427
Receivables from interest on transaction deposits 26,898 27
Balance as of December 31 5,078,265 1,230,684
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30. DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

(a) Transactions with the Founder Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd (Continued)

Liabilities towards Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd

Long-term financial liabilities (Note 23)

Short-term financial liabilities (Note 23)

Interest liabilities (Note 23)

Deferred costs of granting loans in the country (Note 23)
Liabilities for long-term lease (Note 25)

Other obligations

Balance as of December 31

Income from transactions with Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd

Interest income from deposits (Note 5)

Interest income - financial leasing

Fee and commission income

Net foreign exchange gains and income from effects of
contracted currency clause

Total

Expenses for transactions with Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd

Interest expenses (Note 5)

Fee and commission expenses

Expenses for services under the SLA (Note 13(a))

Net foreign exchange losses and expenses due to effects of
contracted currency clause

Other expenses

Total

2022 2021
464,790 766,682
3,581,065 1,539,305
3,352 1,407
(4,015) (2,840)
37,093 7,400
20,262 20,576
4,102,517 2,332,530
2022 2021
48,882 285
- 14

- 3

923 -
49,805 302
2022 2021
29,731 75,232
6,022 4,516
15,922 16,579

- 3,062

8,822 7,403
60,497 106,792

The largest share in the structure of other expenses with the related party Banca Intesa a.d.
Beograd, belongs to the commission expenses for the mediation in relation with financial leasing
placements, and as of December 31, 2022, they amounted to RSD 4,377 thousand (as of December

31, 2021: RSD 3,874 thousand).

Income from Intesa Invest a.d. Beograd 2022 2021
Profit from investments 1,173 2,833
Total 1,173 2,833
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30. DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

(b) Transactions with other related parties

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company had the following receivables and liabilities towards
other members of Intesa Sanpaolo Group - Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. Milano, as well as expenses during

the year:

Receivables from Intesa Sanpaolo Group members

Intesa Invest a.d. Beograd: Financial assets -
investment units

Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. Milano: Other assets
Balance as of December 31

Liabilities towards Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. Milano

Liabilities for accrued costs of guarantees
Other obligations

Balance as of December 31

Liabilities towards Banka Intesa Sanpaolo d.d. Kopar

Long-term financial liabilities (Note 23)
Short-term financial liabilities (Note 23)
Interest liabilities

Deferred costs of loan approval

Other obligations

Balance as of December 31

Liabilities towards VUB

Long-term financial liabilities (Note 23)
Short-term financial liabilities (Note 23)
Deferred costs of loan approval

Balance as of December 31

Expenses from transactions with Intesa Sanpaolo Group

members

Expenses for guarantee fees of Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. Milano.
Expenses for Banka Intesa Sanpaolo d.d. Kopar approval fees

Expenses for VUB approval fees

Interest expense in relation with Bank Intesa Sanpaolo d.d. Kopar

Interest expenses in relation with VUB

Expenses for guarantee fees of Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A. Milano

Total

2022 2021

- 363,718

- 363,718

2022 2021

3,965 4,244

23 24

3,988 4,268

2022 2021

7,616,931 4,938,448

830,282 470,328

- 3,067

(5,682) (7,348)

8,452,895 5,404,496

2022 2021

5,369,756 2,351,642
496,364

(5,764) (1,423)

5,871,884 2,350,219

2022 2021

10,431 9,391

3,939 1,782

1,098 351

66,540 21,622

48,962 8,118

23 24

130,993 41,288
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30. DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (Continued)
(c) Compensation to the Management of the Company

During 2022 and 2021, salaries in the following amounts were paid to the Company's management:

2022 2021
Total gross salaries 30,311 29,035
Total net salaries 21,889 21,102

During 2022 and 2021, no compensation was paid to the members of the Management Board of the
Company.

31. RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is an integral part of the business of financial institutions and it is impossible to completely
eliminate it. However, it is important that risks are managed in such a way that they are reduced to
the limits acceptable to all interested parties: owners of capital, lessors, lessees, regulators.

Risk management is the process of continuous identification, assessment, measurement, monitoring
and control of the Company's risk exposure. An important part of the risk management process is
reporting and mitigating risks. An adequate risk management system is an important element in
ensuring the stability of the Company and the profitability of its operations.

By the nature of its activity, the Company is exposed to the following most significant types of risks:

. credit risk;

. liquidity risk,

. market risk (interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and other market risks); and
. operational risk.

The management is responsible for establishing an adequate risk management system and its
consistent application in practice. The management establishes procedures for the identification,
measurement and assessment of risks, and is responsible for the establishment of a single risk
management system in the Company and for the supervision of that system.

The management is responsible for identifying, assessing and measuring the risks to which the
Company is exposed in its operations and applies the risk management principles approved by the
Management Board of the Company.

The Management Board of the Company analyzes and adopts the Company's proposed policies and
procedures regarding risk management and the system of internal controls that are submitted to the
Management Board for consideration and adoption. Also, the Management Board analyzes and
supervises the use and adequate implementation of the adopted risk management policies and
procedures and, if necessary, proposes measures for their improvement.

In addition to the Decision on the adoption of the limit defining the risk adjustment factor of the
Company (RAF limits), as an umbrella document governing risk management, in order to apply a
special and unique risk management system and ensure functional and organizational separation of
risk management activities from regular business activities, the Risk Management Department and
the Credit Management Department of Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd are involved in the of risk
management.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Company signed a Risk Participation Guarantees with Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd for three clients
which cover the Concentration limit per individual client or group of related parties.

The risk management process in the Company has been formalized through a set of procedures that
are harmonized with the rules of Intesa SanPaolo Group and updated at least once every two years.

The risk management procedures are as follows:

. Exposure risk management procedure;

. Liquidity risk management procedure;

. Interest risk management procedure;

. Operational risks management procedure;

. Compliance risk management procedure;

. Foreign exchange risk management procedure;

. Credit risk management policy;

. Socio-ecological risks management procedure; and
. Information system management policy.

The bodies of the Company and Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd responsible for risk management,
constantly monitor changes in legal regulations, analyze their impact on the level of risk at the level
of the Company and take measures to harmonize operations and procedures with new regulations
within the framework of controlled risk.

In addition, the introduction of new services was accompanied by the necessary market and economic
analyses in order to optimize the ratio of revenues and provisions for the estimated actual risk.

31.1. CreditRisk

Credit risk is the risk that one party fails to fulfill its obligation and thus causes financial loss to the
other party.

With its internal acts and procedures, the Company creates a system of credit risk management and
reduces credit risk to an acceptable level.

Credit risk management includes the determination of credit risk level limits for one or more debtors.

Credit risk management is carried out at several levels, namely:

. individual level;
. group of related parties level; and
. entire portfolio level.
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31.

31.1.

RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit Risk (continued)

According to the Service Level Agreement with Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd, assessment of the
creditworthiness of each client, after submission of the placement approval request, is performed as

follows:

The Company collects all necessary documentation from clients that is necessary for the
analysis of their creditworthiness.

If the decision-making level is above the internal limit, the collected documentation is
forwarded to the Credit Management Department of Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd, where
the client's creditworthiness analysis, regularity in settling obligations in the past and the
analysis of the value of the offered hedging instruments are carried out.

The Credit Management Department of Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd makes a
recommendation on the approval of placement.

The Credit Committee of the Company, consisting of the President and members of the
Executive Board make a decision on placement on the basis of the recommendation on
the approval of placement of the Credit Underwriting Department.

The credit process within the Company is governed by the Credit Risk Management Procedure starting
from December 28, 2021 as follows:

The credit process for application approval within the Company consists of:

an automated credit process for application approval
accelerated credit process.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31.1. Credit Risk (Continued)

The Company manages the credit risk by setting up limits with respect to period, amount, transaction
terms such as collateral and results of the individual customer’s creditworthiness, by diversification
of placements to a larger number of customers and by contracting a foreign currency clause.

Credit risk management is also carried out by accepting adequate security instrument for repayment
of placements and determining an adequate price of placements that covers the risk of placements.

The total risk exposure towards an individual client or group of related parties regarding the exposure
limit shall be considered and analyzed prior to the execution of the transaction.

Concentration risk is also monitored within the credit risk management. Concentration risk is the risk
of loss due to an excessive volume of placements to a particular group of debtors.

Groups of debtors are defined according to various criteria, the most important of which are: by
related parties, i.e. economic groups.

The conditions for securing each individual placement are determined by the client's
creditworthiness, the type of exposure to credit risk, maturity of the placement and the amount of
placement. The amount and type of collateral required of the client depend on the estimated credit
risk.

Considering the essence of the financial leasing business, the basic security instrument/collateral is
the subject of the lease. Standard security instruments taken from the client are, in addition to the
subject of the lease itself, blank promissory notes.

Additional security instruments, depending on the assessment, may be: mortgages on immovable
property, pledge on movable property, pledge on stakes or receivables, buy-back contracts with the
supplier and contracting co-debtor status of another person who thus becomes a joint and several
debtor, as well as a deposit as a guarantee for the settlement of obligations.

If a mortgage on immovable property or a pledge on movable property is established as an additional
collateral for the client, the Company shall provide an appraisal of the value of the property made
by an authorized appraiser in order to minimize the risk.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.1. Credit Risk (Continued)
Based on the Service Level Agreement, the Risk Management Department of Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd
assesses the impairment of the Company’s receivables from financial leasing.

When assessing the impairment of receivables from financial leasing, the following important factors
are taken into account, such as: a delay in servicing the principal of the placement or interest due,
observed weaknesses in the client's cash flows, non-compliance with the contractual terms and
conditions and deterioration of the client's credit rating.

Impairment of Company’s receivables from financial leasing is carried out by group assessment of
value adjustments. Individual assessment is carried out for non-performing client exposures in excess
of EUR 150,000. The impairment assessment is carried out once a month.

During 2022, the Non-performing Placements Management Board adopted a number of measures and
activities to find the best possible solutions for these placements.

Company’s total exposure to credit risk is shown in the following table:

2022 2021
Cash 247,050 171,874
Financial placements with banks - deposits 4,804,317 1,058,356
Other financial placements and derivatives 117,696 1,099,089
Receivables from financial leasing 24,033,354 19,723,692
Other assets - receivables from the
sale of subject of lease 20,294 26,231
Maximum exposure to credit risk 29,222,711 22,079,242
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.1. Credit Risk (Continued)

(a) Portfolio Quality

The following table shows the quality of the portfolio for gross placements, i.e. receivables from
financial leasing, without short-term receivables, accrued interest and without pre-collected
origination costs (Note 18) by type of placement, based on the Company's internal classification
system and value adjustments of receivables, as of December 31, 2022:

Placements to customers
Corporate placements
Medium-sized enterprises
Small enterprises

Micro enterprises
Entrepreneurs

Individuals

Farmers

Other customers

Total

Share in total
gross placements

Placements to customers
Corporate placements
Medium-sized enterprises
Small enterprises

Micro enterprises
Entrepreneurs

Individuals

Farmers

Other customers

Total

Share in total
value adjustments

Unlikely Total

Performing Past due to pay Doubtful 31/12/2022
828,359 - - - 828,359
5,323,459 - 5,628 26,167 5,355,254
11,453,025 43,512 10,482 76,255 11,583,274
3,860,450 44,922 388 106,354 4,012,114
2,260,622 5,735 13,803 31,421 2,311,581
313,357 3,102 1,037 12,593 330,089
8,025 - 4,772 60,892 73,689
46,737 - - - 46,737
24,094,034 97,271 36,110 313,682 24,541,097
98.18% 0.40% 0.15% 1.27% 100.00%
1,461 - - - 1,461
12,722 - 1,082 26,167 39,971
40,987 7,716 1,870 70,862 121,435
27,330 8,285 76 95,069 130,760
22,433 1,181 2,559 27,083 53,256
1,481 520 196 12,532 14,729

40 - 931 60,891 61,862

135 - - - 135
106,589 17,702 6,714 292,604 423,609
25.16% 4.18% 1.58% 69.08% 100.00%
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.1. Credit Risk (Continued)

(a) Portfolio Quality (Continued)

The following table shows the quality of the portfolio for gross placements, i.e. receivables from
financial leasing, without short-term receivables, accrued interest and without pre-collected
origination costs by type of placement, based on the Company's internal classification system and

value adjustments of receivables, as of December 31, 2021:

Placements to customers
Corporate placements
Medium-sized enterprises
Small enterprises

Micro enterprises
Entrepreneurs

Individuals

Farmers

Other customers

Total

Share in total
gross placements

Placements to customers
Corporate placements
Medium-sized enterprises
Small enterprises

Micro enterprises
Entrepreneurs

Individuals

Farmers

Other customers

Total

Share in total
value adjustments

Unlikely Total

Performing Past due to pay Doubtful 31/12/2021
973,180 - - - 973,180
4,738,541 - - - 4,738,541
9,028,587 4,400 3,647 95,474 9,132,108
3,064,188 47,398 5,117 89,356 3,206,059
1,619,404 25,161 23,239 23,595 1,691,399
238,254 4,733 - 6,758 249,745
35,709 - - 62,393 98,102
55,959 - - - 55,959
19,753,822 81,692 32,003 277,576 20,145,093
98.06% 0.41% 0.16% 1.38% 100.00%
1,299 - - - 1,299
8,878 - 1,151 - 8,878
34,472 778 577 88,438 124,265
22,382 8,631 892 81,301 113,206
18,045 6,614 4,235 10,437 39,421
1,089 880 - 6,758 8,727
202 - - 61,851 62,053

187 - - - 187
86,554 16,903 6,855 248,785 358,036
24.17% 4.72% 1.62% 69.49% 100.00%
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INTESA LEASING D.0O.0. BEOGRAD

31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.1. Credit Risk (Continued)

(a) Portfolio Quality (Continued)

Below is an overview of gross placements by internal ratings:

Share of gross Share of
placements adjustments in
Gross in total Value total value
Internal rating for 2022 placements placements adjustments adjustments
Inter Company - 0.00% - 0.00%
Al 779,517 3.18% 123 0.03%
A2 1,686,293 6.87% 304 0.07%
A3 2,794,089 11.39% 835 0.20%
Bl 4,118,993 16.78% 2,408 0.57%
B2 4,224,740 17.21% 6,988 1.65%
B3 3,528,341 14.38% 12,518 2.96%
B4 1,687,508 6.88% 12,473 2.94%
C1 1,699,111 6.92% 15,076 3.56%
C2 844,596 3.44% 11,092 2.62%
C3 277,304 1.13% 18,651 4.40%
D 447,063 1.82% 317,021 74.83%
S12 38,026 0.15% 85 0.02%
STRONG 353,342 1.44% 24,434 5.77%
Unrated 2,062,174 8.40% 1,601 0.38%
Total 31/12/2022 24,541,097 100.00% 423,609 100.00%
Share of gross Share of
placements adjustments in
Gross in total Value total value
Internal rating for 2021 placements placements adjustments adjustments
Inter Company
Al - 0.00% - 0.00%
A2 396,864 1.97% 93 0.03%
A3 2,033,254 10.09% 464 0.13%
Bl 3,177,343 15.77% 1,705 0.48%
B2 3,524,453 17.50% 3,373 0.94%
B3 2,765,044 13.73% 7,428 2.07%
B4 3,465,747 17.20% 12,278 3.43%
C1 1,666,584 8.27% 10,783 3.01%
C2 760,835 3.78% 9,708 2.71%
C3 353,503 1.75% 7,114 1.99%
D 201,244 1.00% 12,401 3.46%
S13 391,270 1.94% 271,482 75.83%
STRONG 55,230 0.27% 128 0.04%
Unrated 269,183 1.34% 786 0.22%
1,084,539 5.38% 20,293 5.67%
Total 31/12/2021 20,145,093 100.00% 358,036 100.00%
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.1. Credit Risk (Continued)

(a) Portfolio Quality (Continued)

The following tables show the quality of the portfolio for net placements, i.e. receivables from
financial leasing, without short-term receivables, accrued interest and without pre-calculated
manipulative costs by types of placements, based on the Company's internal classification system, as

of December 31, 2021 and 2020:

Placements to customers
Corporate placements
Medium-sized enterprises
Small enterprises

Micro enterprises
Entrepreneurs

Individuals

Farmers

Other institutions

Total

Share in total
net placements

Placements to customers
Corporate placements
Medium-sized enterprises
Small enterprises

Micro enterprises
Entrepreneurs

Individuals

Farmers

Other institutions

Total

Share in total
net placements

Unlikely Total

Performing Past due to pay Doubtful 31/12/2022
826,899 - - - 826,899
5,310,737 - 4,547 - 5,315,284
11,412,038 35,796 8,612 5,393 11,461,839
3,833,120 36,637 313 11,284 3,881,354
2,238,188 4,555 11,245 4,339 2,258,327
311,875 2,582 841 60 315,358
7,985 - 3,840 - 11,825
46,602 - - - 46,602
23,987,444 79,570 29,398 21,076 24,117,488
99.46% 0.33% 0.12% 0.09% 100.00%
Unlikely Total

Performing Past due to pay Doubtful 31/12/2021
971,881 - - - 971,881
4,729,664 - - - 4,729,664
8,994,114 3,621 3,070 7,037 9,007,842
3,041,806 38,767 4,226 8,055 3,092,854
1,601,359 18,547 18,914 13,158 1,651,978
237,165 3,853 - - 241,018
35,507 - - 541 36,048
55,772 - - - 55,772
19,667,268 64,788 26,210 28,791 19,787,057
99.39% 0.33% 0.13% 0.15% 100.00%
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.1. Credit Risk (Continued)

CY

Age Structure of Receivables

Portfolio Quality (Continued)

The age analysis of placements to customers as of December 31, 2022 is shown below:

Upto Overdue 31 Overdue Total

30 days to 60 days more than 60 Not due 31/12/2022
Placements to customers
Corporate placements 74 37 - 828,249 828,360
Medium-sized enterprises 81,542 14,802 12,493 5,246,417 5,355,254
Small enterprises 41,397 6,396 60,432 11,475,048 11,583,273
Micro enterprises 35,618 14,416 76,706 3,885,375 4,012,115
Entrepreneurs 12,476 10,042 13,394 2,275,670 2,311,582
Individuals 3,714 334 7,818 318,223 330,089
Farmers 654 - 60,933 12,100 73,687
Other institutions 27 - - 46,710 46,737
Total 175,502 46,027 231,776 24,087,792 24,541,097
Share in total due placements of
high and standard level of
quality 0.72% 0.19% 0.94% 98.15% 100.00%
The age analysis of placements to customers as of December 31, 2021 is shown below:

Upto Overdue 31 Overdue Total

30 days to 60 days more than 60 Not due 31/12/2021
Placements to customers
Corporate placements 3,992 2,751 - 966,438 973,181
Medium-sized enterprises 9,497 2,513 - 4,726,531 4,738,541
Small enterprises 22,768 36,974 37,584 9,034,782 9,132,108
Micro enterprises 21,287 3,300 61,630 3,119,842 3,206,059
Entrepreneurs 8,729 1,689 8,166 1,672,816 1,691,400
Individuals 1,060 54 6,758 241,873 249,745
Farmers 716 - 61,719 35,665 98,100
Other institutions 1 - - 55,958 55,959
Total 68,050 47,281 175,857 19,853,905 20,145,093
Share in total due placements of
high and standard level of
quality 0.34% 0.23% 0.87% 98.55% 100.00%
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.1. Credit Risk (Continued)

(b) Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk

The structure of the maximum exposure of the Company to credit risk, expressed in the value of
gross placements, i.e. receivables from financial leasing, without short-term receivables and

without pre-collected origination costs (Note 18) as of December 31, 2022, by geographic areas, is
given in the following table:

Value

Placements to adjustments Net % Share in
Geographic area customers of placements 31/12/2022 net placements
Vojvodina 8,653,562 (142,197) 8,511,365 35.29%
Beograd 11,268,740 (159,018) 11,109,722 46.07%
Southern and Eastern Serbia 1,135,405 (49,222) 1,086,183 4.50%
Sumadija and Western Serbia 3,483,390 (73,172) 3,410,218 14.14%
Total 24,541,097 (423,609) 24,117,488 100.00%

The structure of the maximum exposure of the Company to credit risk, expressed in the value of
gross placements, i.e. receivables from financial leasing, without short-term receivables and
without pre-collected origination costs (Note 18) as of December 31, 2021, by geographic areas, is
given in the following table:

Value

Placements to adjustments Net % Share in
Geographic area customers of placements 31/12/2021 net placements
Vojvodina 7,316,833 (99,743) 7,217,090 36.47%
Beograd 8,943,304 (148,280) 8,795,024 44.42%
Southern and Eastern Serbia 922,505 (46,491) 876,014 4.43%
Sumadija and Western Serbia 2,962,451 (63,522) 2,898,929 14.65%
Total 20,145,093 (358,036) 19,787,057 100.00%

The analysis of the Company's exposure to credit risk, by sectors, i.e. types of subjects of lease, is
expressed at the carrying value of net placements, i.e. receivables from financial leasing without
other receivables from financial leasing, accrued interest and no pre-collected origination costs. The
largest share is occupied by the Transport and Storage sector; Information and Communications with
27.51%; the largest increase in share in the portfolio was achieved by the Other Activities sector of
2.08% compared to 2021; the largest decrease in share was recorded by the Transport and Storage
sector; Information and Communications of 2.77% compared to 2021.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.1. Credit Risk (Continued)

(b) Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk (Continued)

The analysis as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 is presented in the following tables:

Structure by sectors

1 Agriculture, forestry and fishery

2 Mining; Processing industry;

Water supply, wastewater management
and similar activities

3 Supply of electricity, gas, steam and
air conditioning

4  Construction

5 Wholesale and retail trade; repair of
motor vehicles, motorcycles

6 Transport and storage; Information
and communication

7 Accommodation and catering services
8 Financial and insurance

activities

9 Health and social care

10 Other activities

Total

Exposure by the subject of lease

1 Production machinery and equipment
2 Construction machinery and
equipment

3 Agricultural machinery and equipment
4 Freight vehicles, minibuses and buses
5 Passenger vehicles

6 Railway vehicles, vessels and aircrafts
7 Household appliances

8 Machinery and equipment for the
provision of services

9 Other movable items

10 Commercial immovable assets

11 Other immovable assets

Total

Maximum  Percentage of Maximum Percentage
exposure exposure exposure exposure
2022 2022 2021 2021
991,631 4.11% 1,167,932 5.90%
3,234,058 13.41% 2,500,777 12.64%
36,201 0.15% 52,887 0.27%
3,955,499 16.40% 3,153,942 15.94%
2,718,283 11.27% 2,057,335 10.40%
6,634,233 27.51% 5,991,935 30.28%
443,287 1.84% 272,978 1.38%
74,019 0.31% 30,566 0.15%
178,237 0.74% 169,284 0.86%
5,852,040 24.26% 4,389,421 22.18%
24,117,488 100.00% 19,787,057 100.00%
Maximum  Percentage of Maximum Percentage
exposure exposure exposure exposure
2022 2022 2021 2021
54,311 0.23% 78,030 0.39%
2,997,972 12.43% 2,463,701 12.45%
773,325 3.21% 968,217 4.89%
10,027,487 41.58% 8,591,499 43.42%
7,600,741 31.52% 5,276,572 26.67%
16,191 0.07% 19,321 0.10%
977,650 4.04% 1,048,655 5.30%
1,598,539 6.62% 1,236,509 6.39%
71,272 0.30% 77,553 0.39%
24,117,488 100.00% 19,787,057 100.00%

Freight vehicles and buses have the largest share of 41.58% with a decrease in share in the structure
of 1.84% compared to 2021, which is also the largest decrease in share in the exposure structure
during the year. The maximum exposure by type of the subject of lease is 55% of the value of the
total exposure. In the observed periods, the Company did not exceed the exposure limit by type of
the subject of lease. During the year, the largest increase in exposure was in the case of passenger

vehicles of 4.85% compared to 2021.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.1. Credit Risk (Continued)

(b) Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk (Continued)
Exposure Risk

The Company monitors and measures exposure to one person or group of related parties and takes
into account the compliance of exposure indicators when making decisions on the approval of
placements.

Exposure to one person or to a group of related parties is monitored through the following reports:

- Exposures to clients with individual gross placement amount greater than 10% in relation to
the Company's capital.

The risk of exposure to the client is measured in relation to the Company's capital. As of December
31, 2022, 13 clients had an individual exposure greater than 10% in relation to the Company's capital
(2021: 15 clients).

The decision on the adoption of limits defining the risk adjustment factor of Intesa Leasing d.o.o.
Beograd (RAF limits) for individual clients or groups of related parties, defines a maximum exposure
of 30% in relation to the capital of the Company. At the date of preparation of the financial
statements, the Company had no exposure to an individual client (group of related parties) above the
established limit.

As a protection against credit risk, the Company established collaterals for certain placements,
namely mortgages, dedicated term deposits of clients and subjects of lease.

The effect of collaterals (except for the subjects of lease) on the calculation of value adjustments of
receivables from financial leasing without included receivables for damage after the sale of the
subject of lease and deduction for pre-collected origination costs is shown in the following table:

2022 2021
Carrying amount of value adjustments of receivables 423,609 358,036
Amount of value adjustments of receivables without collateral 425,744 360,266
Effect on the calculation of value adjustments of receivables 2,135 2,230
Effect on the calculation of collective adjustments 2,135 2,230

Effect on the calculation of individual adjustments - -

The amounts expressed as an effect on the calculation of the value adjustment of receivables explain
how much the calculation of the value adjustment of receivables would be higher in the event that
collateral is not used in the calculation.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.1. Credit Risk (Continued)

(b) Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk (Continued)
Analysis of Security Instruments/Collaterals

The analysis of the portfolio by security instruments (collaterals) as of December 31, 2021 and 2020
is given in the following overview:

2022 2021

Gross Total value of Gross Total value of

placement collateral placement collateral

Placements to legal entities 21,690,292 20,002,448 18,059,299 17,181,647

Secured by mortgage 10,693 8,133 51,495 44,653

Secured by deposit and guarantee 3,348,425 1,663,141 1,844,417 1,117,526

Secured by the subject of lease 18,331,174 18,331,174 16,163,387 16,019,387

Unsecured by collateral - - - -
Placements to entrepreneurs,

individuals and farmers 2,715,358 2,568,943 2,039,243 1,898,802

Secured by mortgage - - 5,267 5,267

Secured by deposit 998 207 1,742 208

Secured by the subject of lease 2,714,360 2,568,736 2,032,236 1,893,327

Unsecured by collateral - - - -

Placements to banks - - - -
Secured by mortgage - - - -
Secured by deposit - - - -
Secured by the subject of lease - - - -
Unsecured by collateral - - - -

Placements to the state

and local self-government 135,447 130,832 46,549 46,310
Secured by mortgage - - - -
Secured by deposit - - - -
Secured by the subject of lease 135,447 130,832 46,549 46,310
Unsecured by collateral - - - -

Total as of December 31 24,541,097 22,702,223 20,145,093 19,126,759

The value of collateral is shown up to the amount of receivables. The mortgage as a collateral must
additionally meet the following conditions: that it is entered in the appropriate register, that for the
subject property there is an appraisal of the value performed by the authorized appraiser not older
than 3 years, that the owner of the property is not bankrupt, that the estimated value of the property
less the amount of all claims with a higher right of priority is not less than the value of receivables
and that the receivables secured by the mortgage are settled with a delay of no longer than 720 days.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.1. Credit Risk (Continued)

(b) Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk (Continued)
Analysis of Security Instruments/Collaterals (Continued)

The overview of the ratio of placements and value of the collateral (loan-to-value (LTV) ratio) as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021 is given below:

2022 2021

Value of Value of

LTV Ratio placements LTV Ratio placements
<50% 1,785,431 <50% 1,502,784
51% - 70% 4,810,987 51% - 70% 3,711,710
71% - 90% 7,320,065 71% - 90% 5,144,034
91% - 100% 3,787,817 91% - 100% 3,196,260
>100% 6,836,798 >100% 6,590,305
Total 24,541,097 Total 20,145,093

LTV ratio in the range of 51% - 70% and 91% - 100% in 2022 had the largest increase due to the increase
in new placements during the business year.

(o) Assessment of Impairment of Financial Assets
The structure of impairment of financial assets, i.e. receivables from financial leasing, without short-

term receivables, without accrued interest and without accrued income from receivables, as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020 is shown below:

Gross Net

receivables receivables

from financial Value from financial

2022 leasing adjustment leasing
Corporate placements 828,359 (1,461) 826,899
Medium-sized enterprises 5,355,254 (39,971) 5,315,284
Small enterprises 11,583,274 (121,435) 11,461,839
Micro enterprises 4,012,114 (130,760) 3,881,354
Entrepreneurs 2,311,581 (53,256) 2,258,327
Individuals 330,089 (14,729) 315,358
Farmers 73,689 (61,862) 11,825
Other institutions 46,737 (135) 46,602
Total 24,541,097 (423,609) 24,117,488
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31.1. Credit Risk (Continued)
(c) Assessment of Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)
Gross Net
receivables receivables
from financial Value from financial
2021 leasing adjustment leasing
Corporate placements 973,180 (1,299) 971,881
Medium-sized enterprises 4,738,541 (8,878) 4,729,664
Small enterprises 9,132,108 (124,265) 9,007,843
Micro enterprises 3,206,059 (113,206) 3,092,853
Entrepreneurs 1,691,399 (39,421) 1,651,978
Individuals 249,745 (8,727) 241,018
Farmers 98,102. (62,053) 36,049
Other institutions 55,959 (187) 55,771
Total 20,145,093 (358,036) 19,787,057

The structure of impairment of financial assets according to the model of calculation of adjustments
as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 can be seen from the following tables:

Gross
receivables % %
from financial of gross Value of total
2022 leasing receivables adjustment adjustments
Collective adjustment 24,521,942 99.92% (413,913) 97.71%
Individual adjustment 19,155 0.08% (9,696) 2.29%
Total 24,541,097 100.00% (423,609) 100.00%
Gross
receivables % %
from financial of gross Value of total
2021 leasing receivables adjustment adjustments
Collective adjustment 20,106,752 99.81% (325,367) 90.88%
Individual adjustment 38,341 0.19% (32,669) 9.12%
Total 20,145,093 100.00% (358,036) 100.00%

Off-balance sheet exposure of receivables that were derecognized in 2022 amounts to RSD 3,255
thousand, but they are still subject to collection techniques. Receivables for damage after the sale
of repossessed subjects of lease are also included in the derecognition during 2022.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31.1. Credit Risk (Continued)
(c) Assessment of Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

The Company carried out a credit risk assessment for the position Other Financial Placements for
Securities Measured at Fair Value through other comprehensive income.

Changes in securities impairment are shown in the following tables:

2022 2021
Balance as of January 1 4,199 1,389
Increases during the year - 2,812
Decreases in accruals during the year (3,527) (2)
Balance as of December 31 672 4,199

31.2. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settle its due liabilities. The liquidity of
the Company depends primarily on the maturity matching of the Company's assets and liabilities, i.e.
on the matching of inflows and outflows of assets.

The management of the Company controls the maturity of receivables and liabilities and performs
daily and weekly projections of cash flows arising from operations.

The liquidity management objectives include:

e Planning of cash inflows and outflows and
e Setting and monitoring liquidity indicators.

Liquidity risk is measured by continuously monitoring and analyzing the matching of assets and
liabilities through the preparation of appropriate reports and indicators and reports on the Maturity
Mismatch.

The Finance and Operations Department is responsible for measuring and monitoring the liquidity
situation, as well as for the regular preparation of reports showing the impact of trends of different
categories of assets and liabilities of the Company on the liquidity position.

The projections of inflow and outflow take into account and calculate the historical percentage of
collectability of receivables (behavior coefficient), both those that are due in the future period, and
due and uncollected receivables.

The Company also has contractual long-term loan facilities, as a liquidity management instrument as
of December 31, 2022.

The table below shows an analysis of the maturities of the Company's assets and liabilities based on
the agreed payment terms. The agreed maturities of assets and liabilities are determined on the basis
of the remaining period on the balance sheet date in relation to the agreed maturity period. The
column Gross Amount in the tables, shows the total amounts of positions of assets and liabilities
without deduction for value adjustments.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31.2. Liquidity Risk (Continued)

Periodic GEP is negative for a period of over 18 months due to the fact that during that period more
loan liabilities mature for payment than the placements. The Company plans to correct this GEP by
withdrawing new long-term loans.

The cumulative GEP is adjusted for the entire analysis period.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.2. Liquidity Risk (Continued)

Gross Gross Gross Gross Gross Gross amount Gross amount
Gross amount up amount amount amount amount from over 18 Gross without
Carrying amount to30 from1lto3 from3to6 from6 to 12 12 to 18 months amount over defined
value total days months months months months To 5 years 5 years maturity*
ASSETS
Cash 247,050 247,050 247,050 - - - - - - -
Short-term financial assets 4,922,012 4,922,012 3,550,816 - - 550,000 821,256 - - (60)
Short-term receivables, financial
leasing 8,309,295 8,636,434 1,325,717 1,578,959 2,010,598 3,715,160 - - - 6,000
Intangible assets 25,387 83,090 - - - - - - - 83,090
Property, plant and equipment 74,803 208,207 - - - - - - - 208,207
Long-term receivables, financial
leasing 15,724,059 15,835,725 - - - - 3,390,575 11,901,240 637,361 (93,451)
Deferred Tax Assets 1,452 1,452 - - - - - - - 1,452
Other assets 128,060 194,282 28,292 32,287 2,697 7,896 12,779 - - 110,331
TOTAL ASSETS 29,432,118 30,128,252 5,151,875 1,611,246 2,013,295 4,273,056 4,224,610 11,901,240 637,361 315,569
LIABILITIES
Share capital and ownership
interests 960,374 960,374 - - - - - - - 960,374
Profit 241,733 241,733 - - - - - - - 241,733
Reserves 568,348 568,348 - - - - - - - 568,348
Long-term financial liabilities 20,480,327 20,480,327 - - - - 2,514,586 17,311,003 670,414 (15,676)
Short-term financial liabilities 6,922,977 6,922,977 3,228,174 571,703 994,129 2,144,727 - - - (15,756)
Provisions 7,599 7,599 - - - 6,237 - - - 1,362
Current tax liabilities 22,517 22,517 - - 22,517 - - - - -
Other obligations 228,243 228,243 114,775 9,065 18,991 3,934 3,286 15,893 20,941 41,358
TOTAL LIABILITIES 29,432,118 29,432,118 3,342,949 580,768 1,035,637 2,154,898 2,517,872 17,326,896 691,355 1,781,743
Maturity mismatch as of
December 31, 2022 696,134 1,808,926 1,030,478 977,658 2,118,158 1,706,738  -5,425,656 -53,994 -1,466,174
Cumulative mismatch 696,134 1,808,926 2,839,404 3,817,062 5,935,220 7,641,958 2,216,302 2,162,308 -
* The amounts shown in the column Gross Amount without defined maturity represent non-financial assets or liabilities.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.2. Liquidity Risk (Continued)

Gross Gross Gross Gross Gross Gross amount Gross amount
Gross amount up amount amount amount amount from over 18 Gross without
Carrying amount to30 from1lto3 from3to6 from6 to 12 12 to 18 months amount over defined
value total days months months months months To 5 years 5 years maturity*
ASSETS
Cash 171,874 171,874 171,874 - - - - - - -
Short-term financial assets 2,157,445 2,157,445 617,937 - - 1,058,356 113,820 - - 367,332
Short-term receivables, financial
leasing 7,012,887 7,285,755 973,079 1,366,415 1,757,249 3,207,975 - - - (18,963)
Intangible assets 23,268 72,914 - - - - - - - 72,914
Property, plant and equipment 18,184 112,719 - - - - - - - 112,719
Long-term receivables, financial
leasing 12,710,805 12,809,428 - - - - 2,771,876 9,484,030 601,301 (47,779)
Deferred Tax Assets 3,030 3,030 - - - - - - - 3,030
Other assets 109,480 163,259 20,449 12,608 7,190 4,000 410 52 - 118,550
TOTAL ASSETS 22,206,973 22,776,424 1,783,339 1,379,023 1,764,439 4,270,331 2,886,106 9,484,082 601,301 607,803
LIABILITIES
Share capital and ownership
interests 960,374 960,374 - - - - - - - 960,374
Profit 163,010 163,010 - - - - - - - 163,010
Reserves 412,538 412,538 - - - - - - - 412,538
Long-term financial liabilities 16,518,008 16,518,008 - - - - 1,485,383 13,414,926 1,633,084 (15,385)
Short-term financial liabilities 3,953,038 3,953,038 320,256 617,665 1,096,508 1,929,083 - - - (10,474)
Provisions 8,480 8,480 - - - 7,347 - - - 1,133
Current tax liabilities 22,599 22,599 - - 22,599 - - - - -
Other obligations 168,926 168,926 95,051 5,170 844 14,817 1,713 6,338 3,433 41,560
TOTAL LIABILITIES 22,206,973 22,206,973 415,307 622,835 1,119,951 1,951,247 1,487,096 13,421,264 1,636,517 1,552,756
Maturity mismatch as of
December 31, 2021 569,451 1,368,032 756,188 644,488 2,319,084 1,399,010 -3,937,182 -1,035,216 -944,953
Cumulative mismatch 569,451 1,368,032 2,124,220 2,768,708 5,087,792 6,486,802 2,549,620 1,514,404 -

*  The amounts shown in the column Gross Amount without defined maturity represent non-financial assets or liabilities.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31.3. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that fair value or expected future cash flows of financial instruments will
fluctuate, due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, exchange rates, equity prices or
commodity prices.

In its daily operations, the Company is exposed to changes in market variables that can positively or
negatively affect the financial result, and they include:

e Interest rate risk;
e Foreign exchange risk; and
e Risk of changes in the price of goods.

The risk of changing prices of goods is significant, since the subjects of lease can be used as collateral
in the event of termination of the leasing contract.

Almost all types of the subject of lease record a decline in value, both due to market and technological
reasons.

31.3.1. Interest Rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of the possibility of negative effects on the financial result and capital of
the Company due to changes in interest rates.

The Company is exposed to the risk of changes in interest rates, which, through the effects of changes
in the level of market interest rates, affect its financial position and cash flows, as a result of the
mismatch between the maturities of assets and liabilities for which fixed interest rates have been
agreed.

Exposure to interest rate risk depends on the ratio of interest-sensitive assets and liabilities of the
Company. Therefore, the Company controls interest rate risk by monitoring the ratio of interest-
bearing assets, i.e. liabilities and their share in total assets, i.e. liabilities.

The following table shows the Company's exposure to the interest rate risk (Repricing Gap) as of
December 31, 2022. Assets and liabilities are presented by the date of re-determination of interest
or maturity date, whichever comes earlier. The table also contains non-financial assets and liabilities
(positions: Repossessed subjects of lease and inventories, Intangible assets, Property, plants and
equipment, Deferred tax assets, Provisions, Current tax liabilities) for the purpose of completeness
of the overview and comparability with the Balance Sheet.

The Repricing Gap report identifies the difference between interest-sensitive assets and interest-
sensitive liabilities for different time intervals in the future. Based on the established gaps, an analysis
of the sensitivity of the Company's profit and capital to certain changes in market interest rates is
performed.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31.3. Market Risk (Continued)
31.3.1. Interest Rate Risk (Continued)
Gross Gross
Gross amount amount from amount from Gross amount Gross amount Gross amount
Carrying up to 30 1to3 3to6 from6tol2 from12to 18 over 18 months Interest-
value days months months months months To 5 years Over 5 years insensitive
ASSETS
Cash 247,050 247,050 - - - - - - -
Short-term financial assets 4,922,012 617,756 - - 3,483,060 821,256 - - (60)
Intangible assets 25,387 - - - - - - - 25,387
Property, plant and equipment 74,803 - - - - - - - 74,803
Short-term and long-term
receivables from financial leasing 24,033,354 511,211 14,922,622 1,053,648 1,559,646 1,330,159 4,514,312 649,498 (507,742)
Deferred Tax Assets 1,452 - - - - - - - 1,452
Other assets 128,060 15,000 - - - 11,898 - - 101,162
TOTAL ASSETS 29,432,118 1,391,017 14,922,622 1,053,648 5,042,706 2,163,313 4,514,312 649,498 -304,998
LIABILITIES
Share capital and ownership
interests 960,374 - - - - - - - 960,374
Profit 241,733 - - - - - - - 241,733
Reserves 568,348 - - - - - - - 568,348
Long-term and short-term financial
liabilities 27,403,304 3,368,148 11,439,961 2,096,954 763,190 1,103,186 8,300,376 335,207 (3,717)
Provisions 7,599 - - - - - - - 7,599
Current tax liabilities 22,517 - - - - - - - 22,517
Other obligations 228,243 - - - - - - - 228,243
TOTAL LIABILITIES 29,432,118 3,368,148 11,439,961 2,096,954 763,190 1,103,186 8,300,376 335,207 2,025,097
Maturity mismatch as of
December 31, 2022 -1,977,131 3,482,661 -1,043,306 4,279,516 1,060,127 -3,786,064 314,291 -2,330,095
Cumulative mismatch -1,977,131 1,505,530 462,225 4,741,741 5,801,868 2,015,803 2,330,095 -
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INTESA LEASING D.0O.0. BEOGRAD

31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.3. Market Risk (Continued)
31.3.1. Interest Rate Risk (Continued)
Gross Gross Gross
amount up to amount from Gross amount Gross amount amount from Gross amount
30 1to3 from3to6 from6 to 12 12 to 18 over 18 months Interest-

Carrying value days months months months months To 5 years Over 5 years insensitive
ASSETS
Cash 171,874 171,874 - - - - - - -
Short-term financial assets 2,157,445 617,937 - - 1,058,356 113,820 - - 367,332
Intangible assets 23,268 - - - - - - - 23,268
Property, plant and equipment 18,184 - - - - - - - 18,184
Short-term and long-term
receivables from financial leasing 19,723,692 318,502 12,851,565 1,038,866 1,271,261 1,128,826 3,108,158 427,914 (421,400)
Deferred Tax Assets 3,030 - - - - - - - 3,030
Other assets 109,480 - - - - - - - 109,480
TOTAL ASSETS 22,206,973 1,108,313 12,851,565 1,038,866 2,329,617 1,242,646 3,108,158 427,914 99,894
LIABILITIES
Share capital and ownership
interests 960,374 - - - - - - - 960,374
Profit 163,010 - - - - - - - 163,010
Reserves 412,538 - - - - - - - 412,538
Long-term and short-term financial
liabilities 20,471,046 541,779 9,484,066 2,102,637 769,359 587,785 6,148,539 849,204 (12,323)
Provisions 8,480 - - - - - - - 8,480
Current tax liabilities 22,599 - - - - - - - 22,599
Other obligations 168,926 - - - - - - - 168,926
TOTAL LIABILITIES 22,206,973 541,779 9,484,066 2,102,637 769,359 587,785 6,148,539 849,204 1,723,604
Maturity mismatch as of
December 31, 2021 566,534 3,367,499 -1,063,771 1,560,258 654,861 -3,040,381 -421,290 -1,623,710
Cumulative mismatch 566,534 3,934,033 2,870,262 4,430,520 5,085,381 2,045,000 1,623,710 -
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.3. Market Risk (Continued)

31.3.1. Interest Rate Risk (Continued)

The total cumulative GAP up to 18 months as of December 31, 2022 is RSD 1,060,186 thousand
(December 31, 2021: RSD 654,861 thousand) and can be considered an acceptable level of interest

matching.

The interest rate risk is also monitored by analyzing the scenario, i.e. by observing the impact of
interest rate changes on the Company's income and expenses.

The risk of interest rate changes can also be shown through the following overviews:

0-18 18 months - 3-5 5-10

Total months 3 years years years

Total 23,135 (114,766) 45,059 77,516 15,326
EUR 42,499 (103,063) 49,233 81,003 15,326
RSD (19,364) (11,703) (4,174) (3,487) -

By changing the interest rate by 2.00%, the effect on the Company's income or expenses would amount
to RSD 23,135 thousand, which is less than the limit of 15% in relation to capital, which is RSD 265,568
thousand. The percentage of use of the limit is 13.95% for a change of -2%, or 10.04% for a change of
+2%.

The interest rate risk limit is a measure of acceptable risk to which the Company may be exposed.
The limit is measured according to the change in the net asset value when the interest rates change
by +200 b.p. and must not exceed 20% of the Company's regulatory capital. The Company regularly
measures and reports to the Parent Bank on the exposure to interest rate risk. In the event of
exceeding the permitted limit, it is necessary to adopt measures to eliminate it as soon as possible.

The forms of risk that may be subject to monitoring are:

o the risk of time mismatch of the maturity of the interest rate repricing (Repricing Risk). In
the case of interest-sensitive positions with a fixed interest rate, the risk arises from
mismatched maturities of asset and liability positions, and in the case of positions with a
variable interest rate, the risk arises due to the difference in time of repricing of the interest
rate between asset and liability;

e vyield curve risk is the risk of change in the form of yield curve;

e basis risk is the risk of exposure according to different reference interest rates for interest-
sensitive positions with similar characteristics in terms of maturity and repricing; and

e optionaly risk, the risk of repricing the interest rate after the realization of contractual
provisions for interest-sensitive positions (e.g. early repayment risk).

The Company measures and reports the interest rate risk arising from the repricing of interest rates
(Repricing Risk). The interest rate risk arising from the change in the yield curve, basis risk and
optionaly risk, is intangible.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31.3. Market Risk (Continued)
31.3.1. Interest Rate Risk (Continued)

Attached is an overview of the market risk related to Securities held for sale:

Sensitivity of the net value of the portfolio 200bp 200bp
Securities held for sale increase decrease
2022

As of December 31 - 185 322
Average of the period - 1,338 2,213
Maximum of the period - 185 3,463
Minimum of the period - 2,259 322
2021

As of December 31 (4,216) 5,056
Average of the period (10,782) 13,404
Maximum of the period (15,611) 21,890
Minimum of the period (4,216) 5,056

31.3.2. Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of the possibility of negative effects on the financial result and capital
of the Company due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The principle of protection against foreign exchange risk of the Company is to realize and maintain
foreign currency assets at least in the amount of foreign currency payables, i.e. foreign currency
liabilities. Also, this ratio is harmonized from the aspect of maturities of foreign currency receivables
and foreign currency liabilities.

In order to manage the risk of currency exchange rates changes, the Company contracts the financial
leasing placements in EUR, whereby annuities are paid in RSD at the applicable agreed exchange rate.
Leasing financing in different currencies conditions exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates of
multiple currencies. In accordance with the internal policy of the Company and the Decision of the
Management Board of the Company, the limit of the open position was defined, up to EUR 1 million,
which was valid during 2022.

The Company measures foreign exchange risk on a daily basis according to the methodology
established by the Foreign Exchange Risk Management Procedure based on the methodology of the
National Bank of Serbia through the Report on Foreign Exchange Risk Indicator.

During 2022, the Company was monitoring the observance of foreign exchange risk indicators, and no
exceeding of the limit was recorded.

The total open foreign exchange position as of December 31, 2022 amounted to RSD 2,361 thousand,
while the foreign exchange risk indicator amounted to 0.13% of capital, and as of December 31, 2021
it amounted to RSD 65,948 thousand, while the foreign exchange risk indicator amounted to 4.29% of
the Company's capital.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31.3. Market Risk (Continued)
31.3.2. Foreign Exchange Risk (Continued)

The Company's exposure to foreign exchange risk as of December 31, 2022 can be seen from the

following table:

Carrying

value RSD EUR
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 247,050 164,924 82,126
Short-term financial assets 4,922,012 1,167,696 3,754,316
Short-term receivables from financial
leasing 8,309,295 158,122 8151.173
Intangible assets 25,387 25,387 -
Property, plant and equipment 74,803 53,800 21,003
Long-term receivables from financial
leasing 15,724,059 145,584 15,578,475
Deferred Tax Assets 1,452 1,452 -
Other assets 128,060 102,154 25,906
TOTAL ASSETS 29,432,118 1,819,119 27,612,999
LIABILITIES
Share capital and ownership interests 960,374 960,374 -
Profit 241,733 241,733 -
Reserves 568,348 568,348 -
Long-term financial liabilities 20,480,327 (15,676) 20,496,003
Short-term financial liabilities 6,922,977 (15,757) 6,938,734
Provisions 7,599 7,599 -
Current tax liabilities 22,517 22,517 -
Other obligations 228,243 52,342 175,901
TOTAL LIABILITIES 29,432,118 1,821,480 27,610,638
Net FX position -
December 31, 2022 - (2,361) 2,361

The table also contains non-financial assets and liabilities (positions: Repossessed subjects of lease
and inventories, Intangible assets, Property, plants and equipment, Deferred tax assets, Provisions,
Current tax liabilities) for the purpose of completeness of the overview and comparability with the

Balance Sheet.

75



INTESA LEASING D.0O.0. BEOGRAD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2022

Amounts are expressed in RSD thousand, unless otherwise stated

31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31.3. Market Risk (Continued)
31.3.2. Foreign Exchange Risk (Continued)

The Company's exposure to foreign exchange risk as of December 31, 2021 can be seen from the

following table:

Carrying

value RSD EUR
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 171,874 171,848 26
Short-term financial assets 2,157,445 1,099,089 1,058,356
Short-term receivables from financial
leasing 7,012,887 99,632 6,913,255
Intangible assets 23,268 23,268 -
Property, plant and equipment 18,184 17,558 625
Long-term receivables from financial
leasing 12,710,805 55,092 12,655,713
Deferred Tax Assets 3,030 3,030 -
Other assets 109,480 55,901 53,580
TOTAL ASSETS 22,206,973 1,525,418 20,681,555
LIABILITIES
Share capital and ownership interests 960,374 960,374 -
Profit 163,010 163,010 -
Reserves 412,538 412,538 -
Long-term financial liabilities 16,518,008 (15,385) 16,533,393
Short-term financial liabilities 3,953,038 (10,474) 3,963,512
Provisions 8,480 8,480 -
Current tax liabilities 22,599 22,599 -
Other obligations 168,926 50,224 118,702
TOTAL LIABILITIES 22,206,973 1,591,366 20,615,607
Net FX position -
December 31, 2021 - (65,948) 65,948
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31.3. Market Risk (Continued)
31.3.2. Foreign Exchange Risk (Continued)

The following table shows the impact of changes in the exchange rate (RSD compared to EUR) on the
Company's result:

Effect on the Effect on the

Income Income
Scenario Statement 2022 Statement 2021
10% depreciation RSD 2,597 6,595
20% depreciation RSD 2,833 13,189

As shown in the previous table, in case of depreciation of the RSD exchange rate, the effect on the
result and on the capital of the Company would be positive, and in case of depreciation of the
exchange rate by 10% it would amount RSD 2,597 thousand.

The foreign exchange risk indicator in the event of a 10% exchange rate depreciation would be 0.15%,
and in the event of a 20% exchange rate depreciation it would be 0.16%.

The instruments of managing the Company's foreign exchange position are derived directly from the
parameters of the foreign exchange position, and according to the degree of operability for the
Company, they can be sorted in the following order:

1. Borrowing / Repayment of indexed loans (foreign currency liabilities);
2. Reimbursement / Collection of indexed placements (foreign exchange assets); and
3. Purchase and sale of foreign currency for RSD.

a) By increasing indebtedness related to RSD indexed loans, the position opened by reimbursing
indexed placements is adjusted, and vice versa.

b) The reimbursement of indexed placements creates a long position in the currency in which
the loan is indexed, and the collection of such a loan shortens the position.

c) The most operative instrument for managing the foreign exchange position is the purchase or
sale of a foreign currency for RSD. This can establish an adjusted foreign exchange position
on a daily basis. The transaction is executed by contacting the dealer in the Treasury
Department of Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd, who provides a quotation for the required type of
transaction.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31.4. Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of negative effects on the financial result and capital of the Company, due
to failures in the performance of business activities, human errors, system errors and the effect of
external factors.

The role of the operational risk management process is to identify, assess, control and reduce the
possibility of occurrence and impact of operational risks and losses.

The Company cannot eliminate all operational risks, but through the process of recording and
analyzing operational losses it can identify deficiencies in its processes, products and procedures and
by improving them reduce the frequency as well as the negative impact of operational losses on the
operations and profitability of the Company.

An important aspect of the operational risk management process is the up-to-date reporting of
significant operational risks to management, as well as the continuous training of all employees
involved in the operational risk data collection process and the comprehensive development of
awareness of the importance of identifying, measuring, controlling and mitigating operational risks.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31.4. Operational Risk (Continued)
Operational risks include:

a) Internal fraud and activities;

b) External fraud and activities;

c) Relations with employees and safety at the workplace;
d) Damage to fixed assets;

e) Business interruption and system failure;

f) Clients, products and business practices; and

g) Execution, delivery and management of processes, etc.

During 2022, the records of operational risks were kept through the “BIBOp” application. Recording
of observed events that cause operational risks in the Company is carried out by operational risk
monitoring coordinators.

Data entry is done in real time, which means that the event can be entered immediately after its
detection. The coordinators shall enter the event no later than 48 hours from the date of its detection.
The event can be saved in the draft version and during this period the coordinators have access to
the document.

When all known event data is entered into the app, it becomes visible to the verifier who has the task
of reviewing the event data and verifying it. The event should also be verified within 48 hours at the
latest.

During 2022, two cases of operational risk occurred and they can be presented by the following table,
in which the values are in RSD thousand:

Type of operational risk:
Potential

Number of damage in
cases RSD thousand

Disposal of assets under financial leasing 2 17,961

Total 2 17,961

After a potential fraudulent act was observed, the financial leasing agreement was terminated, the
subject of lease was repossessed by the Company and receivables under the agreement were collected
through sale of the subject of lease.

The corrective action for fraudulent acts of this type is that in the future, in cases where the user
makes a payment through the exchange offices or bank counters, it will not be treated as correct
until it is recorded on the Company's current account statement.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
31.5. Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities

The Company's business policy is to disclose information on the fair value of financial assets and
liabilities for which official market information exists and when the fair value differs significantly
from the carrying value.

Market price, where there is an active market, is the best evidence of the fair value of a financial
instrument. However, market prices are not available for a range of financial assets and liabilities of
the Company. Therefore, when the market price of financial instruments is unavailable, the fair value
of assets and liabilities is determined using present value or other measurement methodologies based
on the current state of the market.

Based on detailed analyses, the Company's management believes that the fair value of financial assets
and financial liabilities of the Company corresponds to their carrying amounts at the reporting date.

The Company's financial instruments at depreciated value generally bear a variable interest rate
reflecting current market conditions, except for Securities.

Determination of the fair value of financial instruments that are expressed at depreciated value must
respect the criteria, principles and hierarchy, which is aligned with the fair valuation rules of Intesa
San Paolo Group.

Measurement of the fair value of financial instruments that are not expressed at depreciated value
follows the following hierarchy that reflects the credibility of the inputs used in determining fair
value:

. Level 1: inputs are quoted market prices (without adjustments) in the active market for
identical instruments;
. Level 2: inputs that are not quoted prices included in level 1, but are either directly or

indirectly (derived from prices) quoted on the market. This category includes: market
interest rates, CDS market quotes (credit default swap), market prices of bonds from
primary auctions or market exchange rates when determining the value of instruments;
and

. Level 3: inputs for which no information is available from the market. This category
includes all instruments for which input value information is not directly or indirectly
measurable on the market.

The application of the aforementioned hierarchy is mandatory and the Company cannot freely choose
the information it uses to determine the fair value of financial instruments that are not expressed at
depreciated value, but must respect the aforementioned hierarchy.

Financial instruments that are presented at fair value to which the rules of the Fair Value Policy apply
are:

- Government bonds of the Republic of Serbia that are measured by applying the technique of
discounting future contracted cash flows, applying market risk-free curve yields adjusted for the
country risk (in the case of bonds denominated in EUR) or liquidity risk (in the case of RSD bonds for
which there is no direct quotation) (Level 2) and investments in investment funds.
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.5. Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities (Continued)

The following table shows the value of financial instruments at fair value in the Company's balance
sheet as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, measured on the basis of different information in accordance

with the hierarchies harmonized with the fair valuation rules of the Intesa San Paolo Group:

Total fair
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value Carrying value

Short-term financial assets
Securities - 117,696 - 117,696 117,696
Investment units - - - - -

Total - 117,696 - 117,696 117,696
Total fair

2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value Carrying value

Short-term financial assets

Securities - 735,371 - 735,371 735,371

Investment units - 363,718 - 363,718 363,718

Total - 1,099,089 - 1,099,089 1,099,089

In the opinion of the Company's management, the amounts in the attached financial statements
reflect the value that is most credible and useful for reporting purposes in the given circumstances.

The following tables show the fair values of financial instruments that are not valued at fair value in
the Company's balance sheet as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 and are distributed according to the
appropriate levels of the fair valuation hierarchy:

Total fair

2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value Carrying value
Cash - 247,050 - 247,050 247,050
Financial placements with banks - 4,886,443 - 4,886,443 4,886,443
Receivables from

financial leasing - - 23,535,031 23,535,031 24,033,354
Total assets - 5,133,493 23,535,031 28,668,524 29,166,847
Financial Covenants - 26,418,382 - 26,418,382 27,403,304
Total liabilities - 26,418,382 - 26,418,382 27,403,304
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31. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

31.5. Fair Value of Assets and Liabilities (Continued)

Total fair

2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value Carrying value
Cash - 171,874 171,874 171,874
Financial placements with banks - 3,186,423 - 3,186,423 3,186,423
Receivables from

financial leasing - - 17,175,027 17,175,027 19,723,692
Total assets - 3,343,690 17,175,027 20,518,717 20,717,669
Financial Covenants - 18,968,439 - 18,968,439 20,471,046
Total liabilities - 18,968,439 - 18,968,439 20,471,046

The fair value of cash and financial placements with banks are equal to the carrying value, since these
are short-term receivables that are contracted at interest rates that correspond to market conditions.

The fair value of financial leasing placements and the fair value of loan liabilities were calculated
using the techniques of discounting future cash flows by applying market yield curves, taking into
account maturity and market interest rates.

32. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that the Company maintains
a strong credit rating and a healthy capital adequacy ratio as a support to business and maximizing
the value of capital.

In accordance with the Law on Financial Leasing (“Official Gazette of the Republic of Serbia”, no.
55/2003, 61/2005, 31/2011 and 99/2011), for the performance of financial leasing activities, where
the subject of lease is movable property, the monetary part of the share capital of the Company may
not be less than EUR 500,000 in RSD countervalue, according to the official middle exchange rate of
the National Bank of Serbia on the day of payment.

For the performance of financial leasing activities, where the subject of lease is immovable property,
the monetary part of the share capital of the lessor may not be less than EUR 5,000,000 in RSD counter
value, according to the official middle exchange rate on the day of payment. The Company has
fulfilled the census of EUR 5,000,000 and performs activities of financing of immovable property
leasing.

In its operations, the lessor is obliged to ensure that its monetary part of the share capital is always
in the amount not less than the stated amounts, according to the official middle exchange rate of the
RSD on the day of calculation, depending on the subject of lease.

As of December 31, 2022, the Company's share capital is RSD 960,374 thousand (December 31, 2021:
RSD 960,374 thousand) and is significantly above the prescribed minimum. The calculation of capital
adequacy performed for the purposes of reporting to Intesa Sanpaolo Group shows that the capital
level is also significantly above the envisaged minimum level.

On March 25, 2022, the Assembly of the Company adopted the Decision on the Distribution of Retained
Profit from the previous year. In accordance with the decision of the Assembly of the Company, the
retained profit from the previous year in the total amount of RSD 163,010 thousand is allocated to
reserves within the Company's capital. Given the amount of the Company's share capital, the
aforementioned distribution of retained profit does not affect the meeting of the capital census.
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33. RECONCILIATION OF RECEIVABLES AND LIABILITIES

The Company has, in accordance with the provisions of Article 22 of the Law on Accounting, performed
the reconciliation of liabilities and receivables with its creditors and debtors as of December 31, 2022.

The reconciliation was carried out with 4,494 lessees. The total receivables disputed by the lessees
during reconciliation, amounts to RSD 4,027 thousand. The analysis of disputed receivables showed
that the cause of disputes are data which were not updated in accordance with the current repayment
plans by the lessee, i.e. the lessee did not apply exchange rates to liabilities in its records. These
lessees were provided with current repayment plans in order to make adjustments in their records.

As of December 31, 2022, the Company also reconciled its liabilities with the creditors.

In addition to the reconciliation on the day of preparation of the financial statements, the Company
carried out continuous harmonization with clients during the financial year.

34. MACROECONOMIC AND GEOPOLITICAL INSTABILITY AND IMPACT ON BUSINESS/FINANCIAL
REPORTING

In order to react in a timely manner to the expected negative effects of the current economic crisis
and uncertainties caused by the war in Ukraine, as well as sanctions against Russia and Belarus,
strong inflationary pressures and energy crisis, and in order to carefully manage the credit portfolio,
the Company conducted additional analyses and established additional criteria for assessing the
impact of this crisis on expected credit losses. Based on the assessment of the impact of the crisis
on various industries and clients, the Company increased the expected credit loss for certain
positions of the credit portfolio, based on the anticipated negative effects of the crisis. The main
reason for this approach is the concern that the negative effects of this crisis will not be
immediately recognized and calculated by simply applying the existing models and methodologies
for calculating expected credit losses. Therefore, it is justified to resort to a cautious and
conservative approach when assessing the quality of the credit portfolio and the adequacy of
provisions for credit losses.

In the case of legal entities, the Company has performed an analysis of the impact of the crisis on the
financial position of clients based on the estimated decline in turnover in the industries of the clients.
The results of the project related to credit management, led by the Parent Bank, which identified
business activities sensitive to the crisis, were used. Based on the estimated decline in industry
revenues, the financial position of clients and their debt servicing capacity were estimated.

In the case of individuals, two criteria have been established to identify clients particularly vulnerable
to the crisis. The first criterion is the level of indebtedness. The second criterion is the industry, i.e.
the primary business activity of the legal entity in which the individual is employed.

For all clients, legal and individuals who are assessed as vulnerable to the crisis based on the defined
criteria, a deterioration of the rating for one to two rating categories is carried out, for the purposes
of calculating the expected credit loss and staging.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD DATE

There were no significant events after the reporting period date that would require adjustments or
disclosure in the notes to the attached financial statements of the Company for 2022.

Disruptions in the market of components installed in vehicles had an impact on the volume of
placements in 2022 and it is expected that this impact will remain to a lesser extent in 2023, These
are mostly delays in the delivery of parts for the automotive industry that led to disruption in the
operation of car factories that reduced the production volume. The demand for new vehicles is
constant and is higher than the current offer. Due to the slow delivery of vehicles, the Company did
not realize part of the already agreed placements in 2022, primarily to lessees engaged in vehicle
rental activities, and the slow realization of these placements is also expected in 2023.

The Covid-19 epidemic had no significant impact on business in 2022, so no significant changes and
impacts are expected in 2023.

Belgrade, February 21, 2023

Report prepared by _ Legal Representative
] 4 RW2IEt!
J'fl‘{{j/f | ; )‘E\,‘ :'. . \'. "\
/ IR

Predrag Topalovi¢ Nebojsa Janicijevic

b |
\
]

84



INTESA LEASING D.O.O. BEOGRAD

2022 ANNUAL REPORT



INTESA LEASING D.O.0. BEOGRAD

ANNUAL REPORT
for the year ended 31 December 2022

1.1.
1.2.

2.1.
2.2.
2.3.
2.4.
2.5.
2.6.

© ©® N o o0 & W

CONTENTS
BUSINESS ACTIVITIES AND ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE ......oveeee e 1
BUSINESS AC T VI ES. ...ttt ettt ettt e e ettt e e e e e e ettt e e e eeeeeear e rreeees 1
OrganisationNal STFUCTUIE ..........oi ittt e eee e 2
COMPANY’S BUSINESS OPERATIONS ... 4
COMMIETCIAL ACTIVITIES. ..ot ettt ettt e ettt e e e e e e e e eea e e eeeeeeeenns 4
Y g ] AR AT 1 =TT 6
FINANCIAL POSITION. ...ttt et et st e e srae e e nteeesneeeens 9
BUSINESS TESUITS ..ottt ettt ettt ettt e et e ettt et e e e e e e et ee e e s eeeeeeees e rreeees 10
L (=T g T LS Lo [ TR 10
JLIE= B 115 1= o L o SR RTR 11
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ...ttt eeeeeeseeeneeeeneenennnnnnnnnnnnnes 11
SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR END......coooo e oo 11
PLANNED FUTURE DEVELOPMENT ....ueeetieeteteteeee e eeeeeseseeesenesnesensnennnnnnnes 11
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES. .. . eeeeeieeeeeeeeeeenennennnne 12
OWN SHARE REPUR CHASE ... ..o 13
EXISTENCE OF BRANGCHES. .....eeoeeeeeee e eeeeeeeneeeneenenennennnnnennnnnnnes 13
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT S ..ttt eeesenesesnenennnsnnnnnnnnnnnnes 13
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT ...ttt eeeesneeneenennnnnnnnnnennnnnnnns 13
RISK EXPOSURE. ...t eeennnnenennnnnnnnnnnnnnnnen 15




INTESA LEASING D.O.0. BEOGRAD

ANNUAL REPORT
for the year ended 31 December 2022

1. BUSINESS ACTIVITIES AND ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

1.1. Business activities

“Intesa Leasing” d.o.o. Beograd, a financial leasing company (hereinafter: “Company” or “Intesa
Leasing”) was established upon the Decision of the Commercial Court, dated 3 September 2003
(previous name: “Delta Leasing”). The Company was re-registered in the Business Entities Register
on 25 July 2005 upon Decision no. 82785/2005.

Intesa Leasing is in the financial leasing business, in compliance with the Financial Leasing Act
(“Official Gazette of RS,” no. 55/2003, 61/2005, 31/2001, and 99/2011), hence the competent
authority determined the Company’s business activity code as 6491.

The Company provides funds for: equipment, real estate, passenger, and commercial vehicles. Sales
channels are: a direct sales channel (Intesa Leasing), Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd sales channel, and
41 external sales channels through intermediaries.

Pursuant to the criteria of the Accounting Act (“Official Gazette of RS,” no. 62/2013), the Company
was defined as a large legal person for the purpose of compiling 2022 financial statements.

As of 19 December 2011, Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd became the owner of 100% share in the Company
and has the leading role in the Company management.

The Company’s headquarters are located at Milentija Popoviéa 7b, Belgrade.

The Company’s tax identification number is 103023875. The registration number of the Company is
17492713.

In 2022, the Company achieved:

e Stable and sustainable growth in portfolio, total assets, and new placements;
e Portfolio and assets quality improvement;
e More favourable financing sources.
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1. BUSINESS ACTIVITIES AND ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

1.2. Organisational structure

The Rulebook on the Company’s Internal Organisation, as the main internal regulatory document,
governs the main and specific organisational units within the Company’s internal structure where
leasing activities, the level of management coordination, listing the main responsibilities by
organisational units, and other internal organisation issues are dealt with.

In 2022, no organisational changes took place.

The Company’s organisational structure consists of:

- Departments;
- Offices; and
- Teams.

The Company management bodies are:

- General Assembly of the Company which includes one representative from Banca Intesa a.d.
Beograd.

Board of Directors of the Company which includes the President and two members of Banca
Intesa a.d. Beograd Board of Directors.

- Executive Board of the Company (Top Management): the President and two members of the
Executive Board of the Company. The President of the Company’s Executive Board represents
the Company, in compliance with the law. The Department for Product Management and Sales
and Department for Finances, Planning, and Operations are within the competence of the
members of the Company’s Executive Board.

Other management personnel of the Company are:

- Middle Management: Office Directors;
- Line Management: Team Leaders; and

- Special organisational units directly responsible for their work to the President of the Executive
Board and providing support to the President of the Executive Board in managing the Company’s
business operations, as part of their responsibilities, are: Legal and General Affairs Office and
Credit Analysis Support Office.
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1. BUSINESS ACTIVITIES AND ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE (Continued)

1.2. Organisational structure (Continued)

Figure 1. Intesa Leasing Organisational Chart
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2. COMPANY’S BUSINESS OPERATIONS

2.1. Commercial activities

In 2022, Intesa Leasing unstoppably moved forward and achieved the best result in the history of its
business. During the observed period, from 2019 to 2022, the Company recorded continuous growth
in sales results. With respect to 2021, when the Company reached the highest level of new
production, in 2022, it achieved exceptional sales growth and exceeded all previous results. The
level of new placements realised in 2022 amounted to EUR 124.409 thousand, i.e., 3,470 new lease
agreements.

Figure 2. Financed value of new placements by year
(in EUR thousand)

New production in EUR thousand

124.409

91.965

78.283
68.952

2019 2020 2021 2022

With respect to the previous year, the Company recorded new placement growth rate of 35.28%

(EUR 32.444 thousand). The achieved financial value of the placements for 2022 amounted to EUR

124.409 thousand, i.e., 34.69% (EUR 32.039 thousand) considerably above the planned value for

2022 (EUR 92.370 thousand), and it represents the highest placement level in the history of the

Company.

Figure 3. Comparison between the realisation of new placements and the plan for 2022 and 2021
(in EUR thousand)

Realisation vs. Plan Realisation with respect to 2021
124.409 124.409
92.370 91.965
2021 2022
2022 Budget 2022
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2.1 Commercial activities (Continued)

The total number of new agreements implemented in 2022 is 3,470, which represents a growth of
1,009 as compared to 2021.

Figure 4. Comparison between the realisation of new agreements for 2022 and 2021

3.470

2.461

2021 2022

The Company records continuous portfolio growth. In 2022, the Company reached the highest level
of placements since its establishment, i.e., EUR 209.2 million, which is by EUR 37.6 million higher
value than the value in 2021 (EUR 171.6 million).

Figure 5. Portfolio growth by year

Portfolio in EUR million
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2.2. Market share

According to Q3 2022 data of the Association of Leasing Companies of Serbia (“ALCS”), the Company
took second place on the leasing market according to the indicators of new placements: purchase
values excluding VAT with 19.0% market share, purchase values including VAT with 18.8% market
share, and financed values with 18.4% market share.

The charts below show market shares of five largest leasing companies at the end of Q3 2022
according to the criterion of new production: purchase values including VAT, purchase values
excluding VAT, and financed values. The values are given in EUR thousand.

Figure 6. Market shares of five largest leasing companies according to new production indicators:
purchase value including VAT and purchase value excluding VAT (in EUR thousand)

Purchase value including VAT

OTP Leasing Srbija d.0.0. = 19,2% 159.118
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Purchase value excluding VAT
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INTESA LEASING DOO
BEOGRAD 19,0% 132.334
S-LEASING DOO BEOGRAD @ 16,3% 113.344
RAIFFEISEN LEASING DOO
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2. COMPANY’S BUSINESS OPERATIONS (Continued)

In comparison to five largest leasing companies, the Company took stable second position on the
market. In 2022, the leasing market achieved considerable growth in new production, as much as
21.8% with respect to 2021.

According to the financed value indicator, the Company took second place with 18.4% share in the
total realisation of new placements on the leasing market in 2022. The total value of leasing
placements on the leasing market at the end of 2022 amounted to EUR 675.5 million, which
represents a growth of 21.8% as compared to 2021.

Figure 7. Market share of five largest leasing companies according to the financed value indicator
for new placements (in EUR thousand)

Financed value of new placements

OTP Leasing Srbija d.o.0.  19,2% 129.476
INTESA LEASING DOO BEOGRAD [18,4% 124.034
S-LEASING DOO BEOGRAD @ 15,5% 104.765
RAIFFEIS;é\IOléQiIDNG DOO 13,5% 91.244
UNICREDIT I_BEE/?)S(IBI\FI{C;;RBIJA DOO 13,3% 89.732

At the end of 2022, the Company took first place in the commercial vehicles segment. In the segment
of passenger vehicles, the Company took third place, while in the equipment segment, it took the
fifth place.

The charts below illustrate market shares of five largest leasing companies at the end of 2022
according to the criterion of new production by type of leasing products (in EUR thousand):

Figure 8. Market shares of five largest leasing companies by equipment type (in EUR thousand)

Commercial vehicles

INTESA LEASING 20,8% 55.647
S-LEASING DOO BEOGRAD  19,3% 51.644
OTP Leasing SRBIJA  17,9% 47.976
SCANIA LEASING DOO  13,2% 35.312
RAIFFEISEN LEASING RS DOO 12,9% 34.641
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2. COMPANY’S BUSINESS OPERATIONS (Continued)

2.2. Market share (Continued)

Passenger vehicles

PORSCHE LEASING SCG 21,7% 58.411
RAIFFEISEN LEASING DOO | 19,7% 53.034
INTESA LEASING [17,0% 45.678
OTP Leasing SRBIJA  16,4% 44,152
UNICREDIT LEASING SRBIJA 13,7% 36.702
Equipment
OTP Leasing SRBIJA  27.3% 37.348
RAIFFEISEN LEASING DOO 21,0% 28.685
UNICREDIT LEASING SRBIJA | 18,1% 24.771
S-LEASING 17,2% 23.476
INTESA LEASING [115,2% 20.780

In 2022, the Company also made progress in the market share by equipment groups. In the segment
of commercial vehicles, the Company took first place. In the segment of passenger vehicles, the
Company improved by moving from the fourth place at the end of 2021 to the third place at the end
of 2022. In the segment of equipment, the Company took fifth place. The total financed value of
real estate in 2022 was EUR 5.4 million.
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2.3.

Financial position

At the end of 2022, the total balance sheet assets of the Company amounted to RSD 29.432.118
thousand. Upon comparison with the previous year, when it amounted to RSD 22.206.973 thousand,
a growth in the balance sum amounting to 32.54% (RSD 7.225.145 thousand) was recorded.

The balance of placements at the end of 2022 amounted to RSD 24.033.354 thousand, which is higher
than the balance from the previous year (RSD 19.723.692 thousand) by 21.85 % (RSD 4.309.662

thousand).

Over the years, the Company significantly improved the portfolio quality. In 2022, the level of non-
performing investments was lower than the level of non-performing placements in 2021.

Portfolio quality indicators at the end of 2022 are as follows:

e The share of non-performing placements in the total placements (% NPL) had been decreasing
and at the end of 2022, it amounted to 1.82%, which is considerably lower that the planned level
(0.63%). At the end of 2021, % NPL amounted to 1.9%;

e Upon provision, the coverage ratio for non-performing placements amounted to 70.9%, and in
the previous year, it amounted to 69.38%.

Figure 7. Share of non-performing placements (NPLs) in the total value of placements
(gross long-term receivables - in RSD million)
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2. COMPANY’S BUSINESS OPERATIONS (Continued)
2.4. Business results

The realised profit of the Company at the end of 2022 amounted to RSD 241.733 thousand, which
was higher than the profit level in the previous year (RSD 163.010 thousand) by RSD 78.723 thousand
or 48.3%, and 41.2% higher than the budget. Costs of provisions in 2022 were lower than the
budgeted amount (RSD 7.019 thousand). In comparison to the previous year, the costs of provisions
were considerably lower, i.e., lower by RSD 18.469 thousand.

Cost/Income Indicator (Cost/Income Ratio) for 2022 amounted to 36.4% with respect to the end of
2021, when it amounted to 42.8%. The realised Cost/Income Ratio was lower than the planned level
by 4.6%, i.e., lower than the Cost/Income Ratio in the previous year by 6.4%.

In comparison to the end of 2021, the number of employees increased. By and including 31 December
2022, the Company had 50 employees.

2.5. Internal Audit

During 2022, two internal audits were conducted, in compliance with the Company’s Internal Audit
Plan, in the following organisational units of the Company: Department for Product Management
and Sales and Department for Finances, Planning, and Operations.
The goal of the audit was to establish the existence and compliance of the following processes:
- Management strategies, planning, and control;
- Service and business models;
- Financial reporting management;
- Entrusting activities to third parties;
- Purchasing goods and services;
- Compliance with local laws and rules, as well as ISP Group and Banca Intesa ad standards and
policies;
- Risk appetite framework (RAF limits);
- Interrelated activities (Complaint Management);
- Legal consulting and disputes (Legal Consulting Management and Civil and Criminal Disputes);
- Accounting and reporting (Reporting to Regulatory Bodies);
- Corporative Management (transactions with affiliated companies/entities and obligations of
management body members and key managers).

The residual risk was rated as “moderate”, because the internal audit system was rated as
“improvements required”.

The main findings indicate the necessity to:

e Update internal regulations that specify the implementation of criteria in the process of
lease placement approval;

e Implement the procedure for hiring and monitoring of sales agents;

e Provide required information on complaint submission on the Company’s internet page;

e Provide full information about persons related to the members of the Company’s Executive
Board to the Bank;

e Specify and monitor the work of external lawyers.

The rest of the unapplied recommendations of the Internal Audit will be applied according to
specified activity plans in the first half of 2023.

10
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2.6. Tax inspection

In 2022, no tax inspection was conducted in the Company.
3. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

By the Socio-Environmental Risk Management procedure, the Company has established risk
monitoring in the area of environmental protection.

Environmental risk refers to the possibility that the activity of the Company's clients may directly
or indirectly endanger the environment.

The procedure is applied to the management of environmental risks associated with the activities
of clients, legal entities or entrepreneurs financed by the Company, particularly when approving
new funds. The Company checks whether the proposal for financing refers to the financing of
activities from the List of Activities Not Supported by the Company, and if the activity is listed, it
makes a decision to reject the request for financing.

In 2022, the Company significantly increased the financing of items that have a favourable impact
on the environment. While in 2021 the Company financed only 4 items, which were hybrid and
electric vehicles, in 2022 the number of financed electric and hybrid vehicles was 92. In addition to
vehicles, in 2022 the Company also financed solar panels whose total financed value amounted to
EUR 1.2 million. The company continues this trend in 2023.

4. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR END

No significant events occurred after the date of the reporting period which would require corrections
or disclosure in the 2022 Annual Report of the Company.

5. PLANNED FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

The Company has adopted 2022-2025 Strategic Plan where the following strategic directions of
development are highlighted:

— To become the most successful leasing company on the Serbian leasing market through
profitable and sustainable business operations;

— To increase the share of passenger vehicle financing in the total new production;

— To introduce a new product: “Operating Lease”;

— To ensure more favourable loan facilities and lower financing costs leading to a better
position when approving new placements and providing a possibility to further improve the
portfolio quality;

— To obtain new more favourable loan facilities from international financial institutions and
funds, which is significant for the accomplishment of strategic goals;

— To participate in government subsidy programmes for equipment and construction
machines, Environment-Friendly Vehicles (electric, hybrid vehicles, etc.), and agriculture
equipment;

— New 2023-2025 ESG cost as a strategic focus of the Group;

— To increase the business performance and reduce the Cost/Income Indicator (Cost/Income
Ratio), through the increase in operating income and continuous growth in the business
efficiency, and reduction in administrative and general expenses; and

— To improve operating efficiency and improve and automate business processes.

11
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6.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

The Company’s development activities are primarily focused on the improvements in business
processes and further improvements in Business Process Management (BPM).

The following new tools have been developed and applied in the NOVA System:

E-invoices represent the automated process of sending and receiving all invoices via the e-
Fakture Portal. The process development was initiated and conditioned by the adoption of the
new Electronic Invoicing Act. In the first phase of the process, the process of sending outgoing
invoices to public sector companies as well as legal entities that are VAT payers and users of
the Electronic Invoice System was developed.

APR Web Service includes the process which enables electronic deregistration of contracts in
the Business Registers Agency (APR). The process involves filling out an electronic application
with the existing information stored in the system. This process has considerably contributed to
time and work savings as the entire contract registration and deregistration process in the
Business Registers Agency had been manual, starting from application completion and
submission of documents to submission of paper documentation in person at the Business
Registers Agency service desk.

E-authorisations represent a project where registration authorisations are electronically sent
to lessees. Registration authorisations are digitally signed and as such sent to the Business
Registers Agency, and thereafter, through the Ministry of Interior to MOT. The entire process
of sending authorisations to clients can be completed without hard copies, client’s visit to
obtain the authorisation, sending the authorisation via the Post Office, and without waiting.

The development of new tools in the system has been initiated:

Pricing Calculator includes fully automated provision of offers to interested client with all
requirements and approved discounts. The conditions to be offered to the client, depending on
the rating, potential, and the leased item will be specified in the process. Approved discounts
are currently manually defined and recorded.

E-invoices represent the automated process of all invoice receipt via the e-Fakture Portal. In
the second phase of the process, the process of receiving incoming invoices, as well as importing
them to the system will be developed. This automation will contribute to the considerable
improvement in invoice posting and sending processes, which provides an opportunity for
additional improvements in the work process.

Digital signatures represent the continuation and upgrade of the process which is developed
and widely internally applied in signing the decisions of the Credit Committee. The goal of this
process development is to enable digital signing of the entire contract documentation, which
would significantly expedite the process of contract registration and deregistration in the Lease
Register of the Business Registers Agency. The goal is to ensure a simpler and faster digital flow
of documentation between Intesa Leasing and stakeholders.
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7. OWN SHARE REPURCHASE

The Company did not repurchase own shares in 2022.

8. EXISTENCE OF BRANCHES

The Company registered one branch in 2022 and that was a branch in Novi Sad.

9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In 2022, the financial instruments that the Company used were securities, i.e., long-term
government bonds of the Republic of Serbia. The market value of these financial instruments as at
31 December 2022 was RSD 117.696 thousand.

10. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is an integral part of the Company’s business operations and it is not possible to fully eliminate
it. The Company manages risks so as to reduce them to limits acceptable to all stakeholders: equity
holders, lessors, lessees, regulators.

Risk management is the process of continuous identification, assessment, valuation, monitoring and
control of the Company’s exposure to risks. An important part of the risk management process is
risk reporting and mitigation. A proper risk management system is an important element in securing
the stability of the Company and the profitability of its business.

Due to the nature of its business activity, the Company is exposed to the following most significant
types of risks:

- Credit risk;

- Liquidity risk;

- Market risk (risk of interest rate fluctuation, foreign exchange risk, and other market risks);
and

- Operational risk.

Management is responsible for establishing an adequate risk management system and its consistent
application in practice. Management establishes procedures for risk identification, valuation, and
assessment, and it is responsible for the establishment and monitoring of a unique risk management
system in the Company.

The management is responsible for identification, assessment, and valuation of risks to which the
Company is exposed in its operations and it applies the risk management principles approved by the
Company's Board of Directors.

The Management Board of the Company analyses and adopts proposals for the Company's policies
and procedures related to risk management and the system of internal controls, which are submitted
to the Management Board for consideration and adoption. In addition, the Board analyses and
supervises the application and proper implementation of the adopted policies and procedures for
risk management and, if necessary, proposes ways to improve them.
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10. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Company has developed a risk management system by introducing policies and procedures, as
well as by establishing limits for risk levels that are acceptable for the Company. Certain risks, such
as foreign exchange risk, are monitored by the Company on a daily basis, while monthly reports are
prepared for other risks, which are monitored in the form of reaching the limits.

On 28 December 2021, the Board of Directors adopted the Decision on the Adoption of Limits
Defining the Company's Risk Appetite (RAF Limits) to ensure additional compliance with the rules
for risk management of the parent bank (Banca Intesa a.d. Beograd) in accordance with the
regulations, standards and rules of professional conduct. Limits of capital adequacy, liquidity,
operational risk exposure (the so-called “top of the house limits”), and specific limits of credit
risk/concentration, foreign exchange and interest rate risk have been established. With the adoption
of this Decision, the previous decision adopted on 2 April 2019 ceased to be effective.

/i/ Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party might fail to meet its obligation, thus causing a financial loss to
the other party.

By its internal regulatory documents and procedures, the Company creates its risk management
system and lowers the credit risk to an acceptable level.

The credit risk indicator may be illustrated by the following table of portfolio quality, shown in the
net placement value, i.e., financial leasing receivables, excluding other financial leasing
receivables, previously calculated interest, and handling costs charged in advance (where the
amounts are given in RSD thousand):

Share in total

Share in total net

2022 net placements 2021 placements

Performing 23,987,444 99.46% 19,667,268 99.39%
Past due 79,570 0.33% 64,788 0.33%
Unlikely to pay 29,398 0.12% 26,210 0.13%
Doubtful 21,076 0.09% 28,791 0.15%
Total 24,117,488 100.00% 19.787.057 100.00%

As shown in the table, the share of net non-performing placements in both observed years was low
- in 2022, it amounted to the total of 0.54%, and in 2021 to 0.61%.
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11. RISK EXPOSURE

By continuous monitoring, the Company managed to reduce the share of non-performing placements
in 2022 with respect to the previous year. The credit risk is at a satisfactory level with respect to
the specified limits.

lii/ Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company would not be able to meet its due obligations.

The Company’s liquidity is primarily subject to maturity structure of its assets and liabilities, i.e.,
the structure of funds inflows and outflows.

The liquidity risk may be illustrated by the following table for gross amounts of assets and liabilities
(with amounts given in RSD thousand):

2022 2021

Cumulative Cumulative

Assets Liabilities mismatch Assets Liabilities

mismatch

Gross exposure
up to 30 days 5,151,875 3,342,949 1,808,926 1,783,339 415,307
Gross exposure
from
1 to 3 months 1,611,246 580,768 2,839,404 1,379,023 622,835
Gross exposure
from3to 6
months 2,013,295 1,035,637 3,817,062 1,764,439 1.119,951
Gross exposure
from 6 to 12
months 4,273,056 2,154,898 5,935,220 4,270,331 1.951,247
Gross exposure
from 12 to 18
months 4,224,610 2,517,872 7,641,958 2,886,106 1.487,096
Gross exposure
from 18 months
to 5 years 11,901,240 17,326,896 2,216,302 9,484,082 13.421,264
Gross exposure
over 5 years 637,361 691,355 2,162,308 601,301 1.636,517
Gross exposure
without
specified
maturity 315,569 1,781,743

607,803 1.552,756

1,368,032

2,124,220

2,768,708

5,087,792

6,486,802

2,549,620

1,514,404

Gross exposure -
total 30,128,252 29,432,118 696,134 22,776,424 22,206,973

569,451

As provided in this overview, the Company has high liquidity consistency, i.e., it is able to meet its
due obligations in all observed periods.

/iii/ Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of possible negative effects on the Company's financial results and capital
due to changes in interest rates.
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11. RISK EXPOSURE (Continued)

fiii/ Interest rate risk (continued)

The company is exposed to the risk of changes in interest rates, which, through the effects of
changes in market interest rate levels, affect its financial position and cash flows, as a result of a
mismatch between the maturity dates of assets and liabilities for which fixed interest rates have
been agreed on.

Exposure to interest rate risk depends on the ratio of interest rate sensitive assets and interest rate
sensitive liabilities of the Company. Therefore, the Company controls interest rate risk by
monitoring the ratio of interest-bearing assets, i.e., liabilities, and its share in total assets, i.e.,
liabilities.

The calculated Repricing Gap Indicator shows that, in case of a change in the interest rate of 2.00%,
the effect on the Company's income in 2022 would have been RSD 23.135 thousand, which was within
the limit provided by the Procedure for the Interest Rate Risk Management.

liv/ Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of possible negative effects on the Company's financial result and
capital due to a change in the foreign exchange rate.

The principle of the Company's protection against foreign exchange risk is to realise and maintain
foreign-currency assets at least to the extent of foreign-currency payables, i.e., foreign-currency
liabilities. This relationship is also made consistent from the point of view of the maturity dates of
foreign-currency receivables and foreign-currency liabilities.

On 31 December 31 2022, the Company achieved an open position of RSD 2.361 thousand, which was
0.13% of the Company's capital. The foreign exchange risk is within the established limit of EUR
1.000 thousand converted by applying the middle exchange rate of the National Bank of Serbia on
the reporting date.

N/ Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of negative effects on the Company's financial result and capital, due to
omissions in business operations, human errors, system errors, and the influence of external factors.
The role of the operational risk management process is to identify, assess, control and reduce the
possibility of occurrence and impact of operational risks and losses.

Operational risks include:
(1) Internal frauds and activities;
(2) External frauds and activities;
(3) Relations with employees and occupational safety;
(4) Fixed assets damages;
(5) Business interruption and system failure;
(6) Clients, products, and business practice; and
(7) Process performance, delivery, and management, etc.
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11. RISK EXPOSURE (Continued)

In 2022, operational risk records were kept through the “BIBOp” application. Records of observed
events that cause the Company's operational risks were maintained by operational risk monitoring
coordinators.

Data entry is performed in real time, which means that an event can be entered immediately after
it has been observed. Coordinators enter the event no later than 48 hours from the date of its
detection. The event can be saved in a draft version and during that period the coordinators may
access the document. Once all known event data has been entered into the application, the event
becomes visible to a verifier who shall recheck the event data and verify it. In addition, the event
should be verified no later than 48 hours.

In 2022, two cases of operational risk occurred and they may be shown in the following table where
the values are given in RSD thousand.

Potential

Number of savings in RSD

cases 000

Alienation of property under financial leasing 2 17,961
Total 2 17,961

After the potential fraudulent act had been detected, the financial lease contract was terminated,
the leased item was taken over by the Company, and the claims under the contract were collected
by selling the leased item.

The corrective action for fraudulent actions of this type is that in the future, in cases where the
lessee makes a payment through exchange offices or bank service desks, such payment will not be
considered correct until the moment it is recorded in the Company's current account statement.

The overall assessment of the Company's exposure to risks for 2022 indicates that all risk indicators

are within the set limits and as such are very effective for the Company’s management, which is
also evidenced by the overall results of the Company's operations.
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